
Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk continuing to do what matters for Ryedale

                  From 6pm

1 Presentation on HR Services at North Yorkshire County Council (MEMBERS 
ONLY) 
To be given by Justine Brooksbank, NYCC Assistant Chief Executive - Business 
Support

Not before 6:30pm

2 Emergency Evacuation Procedure. 
The Chairman to inform Members of the Public of the emergency evacuation 
procedure.

3 Apologies for absence 

4 Minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2018 (Pages 3 - 6)

5 Urgent Business 
To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be 
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of 
the Local Government Act 1972.

6 Declarations of Interest 
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of 
Conduct.

Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council 
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest.  This requirement is 
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation. 

Please Contact Will Baines

Extension 01653 600666 x 228

Date of Publication 26 September 2018

E Mail will.baines@ryedale.gov.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Thursday 4 October 2018 at 6.00 pm
 
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton

     Agenda

Public Document Pack

http://www.ryedale.gov.uk/


7 Report by Everyone Active on the 2017/18 delivery of the leisure contract for 
Ryedale District Council (Pages 7 - 248)

8 Draft Terms of Reference - Scrutiny Review of Governance Arrangements for 
services with North Yorkshire County Council (Pages 249 - 256)

9 Delivering the Council Plan (Pages 257 - 272)

10 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review Letter 2018 (Pages 273 - 278)

11 Customer Complaints Q1 2018-19 (Pages 279 - 284)

12 Comments on guidance document from the Centre for Public Scrutiny (Pages 
285 - 290)

13 Scrutiny Reviews Progress Report (Pages 291 - 302)

14 Decisions from other Committees 
Policy and Resources Committee held on 27 September 2018 (To follow)

15 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent. 



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1 Wednesday 25 July 2018

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
on Wednesday 25 July 2018

Present

Councillors  Acomb (Vice-Chairman), Bailey, Clark (Chairman), Jowitt and Oxley

In Attendance

Will Baines, Beckie Bennett, Mandy Burchell, Fiona Casson, Stuart Cutts (Veritau), Max 
Thomas (Veritau) and Rashpal Khangura (KPMG)

Minutes

14 Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Cussons, Frank, 
Sanderson, and Keal.

15 Minutes of the meeting held on 14 June 2018

 Decision

That the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 14 
June 2018 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

16 Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business.

17 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

18 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Annual Report 2017/18

Considered – Report of the Section 151 Officer

Decision

That Members: 
a) Note the results of the audit and counter fraud work undertaken in 2017/18.
b) Accept the opinion of the Head of Internal Audit on the adequacy and the 

effectiveness of the authority’s internal control environment.

Voting Record
5 For

Public Document Pack

Page 3



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2 Wednesday 25 July 2018

0 Against
0 Abstentions

19 Counter Fraud Framework Update

Considered – Report of the Section 151 Officer.

Decision

That Members
a) Approve the updated counter fraud and corruption strategy action plan
b) Comment on and note the analysis of current fraud risks faced by the 

council

Voting Record
5 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions

20 Statement of Accounts 2017/18

Considered.

In the absence of conclusive advice on this matter, the following amendment 
was moved:

If required by the Audit Committee, delegate authority to the Chair of 
the Audit Committee to approve any further adjustments that need to be 
made to the Statement of Accounts prior to the 31 July 2018.

Upon being put to the vote, the amendment was carried.

Voting Record
5 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions

Subsequent to the meeting, it was confirmed that the amendment was not 
required.

Decision

That the Statement of Accounts 2017/18 be noted.

Voting Record

Page 4



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3 Wednesday 25 July 2018

4 For
0 Against
1 Abstentions

The Chair wanted to place on record his thanks to the Finance Team officers 
involved in the production of the accounts a month earlier than usual to ensure 
publication by the end of July 2018, and to the team from the external auditors 
KPMG for their input to the committee in recent years. 

21 Scrutiny Reviews - Task Group

Decision

That the Scrutiny Review Task Group into the governance arrangements 
around the shared service arrangements with North Yorkshire County Council 
compromise Councillor Acomb, Councillor Clark and Councillor Jowitt, along 
with other members of the Overview and Scrutiny committee available to 
attend.   

Voting Record
5 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions

22 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

The Chair wished to thank Fiona Casson for her support in assisting the 
Overview and Scrutiny committee, as this was her final meeting before leaving 
the authority.

There being no other business, the meeting closed at 8:25pm.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



SCRUTINY 4 OCTOBER 2018

REPORT TO: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (SCRUTINY)

DATE: 4 OCTOBER 2018

REPORT OF THE: DELIVERY AND FRONTLINE SERVICES LEAD
BECKIE BENNETT

TITLE OF REPORT: REPORT OF EVERYONE ACTIVE ON THE 2017/18 
DELIVERY OF THE LEISURE CONTRACT FOR RYEDALE 
DISTRICT COUNCIL

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To provide to Members a presentation by Everyone Active of their achievements within 
the fourth  year of the contract, highlight areas of work and identify future plans for the 
next year.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That Members note the report and the Everyone Active 2017/18 Annual Report and 
2018 Active Community Plan.

2.2 That Members identify what further performance information to consider in future to 
performance manage the Leisure Contract.

3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To ensure Members are kept informed of the progress of the Leisure Contract.

4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1 There are no significant risks in receiving this report or presentation. 

5.0 POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1 Council Plan: 'Capitalising on our culture, leisure and tourism opportunities' and 
'Helping our partners keep our communities safe and healthy'.

5.2 No consultation has taken place on the production of this report or presentation.

Page 7



SCRUTINY 4 OCTOBER 2018

REPORT

6.0 REPORT DETAILS

6.1 Sports and Leisure Management Ltd, (SLM) trading as Everyone Active, took over the 
running of the Council's leisure facilities in October 2014.

6.2 The 2017/18 Annual Report is attached in Appendix A, which outlines current activity 
and a presentation will be made to Members at the meeting by SLM.

6.3 The 2018 Active Community Plan, attached in Appendix B, has been developed by 
SLM to achieve the RDC Leisure Strategy “To improve the quality of sport and active 
recreation opportunities for people in the area.” It will be reviewed by the contract 
manager on an annual basis.

6.4 SLM has supported Lady Lumley's school and Ryedale District Council to successfully 
replace the Artificial Turf Pitch at the Northern Ryedale Leisure Centre. It is anticipated 
that this will result in increased income generation from pitch hire.

6.5 SLM safeguarding policies has been audited by the Ryedale District Council 
Safeguarding Panel and the organisation was found to have sound policies in place.

6.6 Members will be aware that SLM provided information and evidence to the recent 
Scrutiny Review of Provision of Swimming Lessons in RDC Pools. This concluded in 
May 2018 and its recommendations were agreed by Council on 12.6.18 (Minute 8 
refers). 

6.7 Members are asked to consider if any further performance information is required to 
better monitor the Leisure Contract performance, on an ongoing basis.

7.0 IMPLICATIONS

7.1 The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial

There are no financial implications. This report is for information.

b) Legal
None.

c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime & 
Disorder)
None.

Beckie Bennett
Delivery and Frontline Services Lead

Author: Jos Holmes, Senior Commissioning Officer 
Telephone No: 01653 600666 ext:240
E-Mail Address: jos.holmes@ryedale.gov.uk 

Background Papers: Nil

Page 8



 

1 | P a g e  
 

  

 
        
 
LEISURE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT 
 
ANNUAL REPORT 
 
1st April 2017 – 31st March 2018 
 
Reported complied:  Rachael Barnes (General Manager) 
    Kevan Murray (Area Contract Manager) 
     
 
 
 
 
1.0 OVERVIEW 
 
Sports & Leisure Management (SLM Ltd) trading as Everyone Active were awarded a 10.5 
year contract to manage the following leisure facilities in partnership with Ryedale District 
Council:- 
 
Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre 
Ryedale Leisure Centre (dual-use facility at Lady Lumley’s School) 
Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre 
 
The contract commenced on 1st October 2014. 
 
During the last 12 months we have continued to develop the centres and activities, here are 
some of the highlights:- 
 

• Ryedale Swim & Fitness have undertaken QUEST, the national quality scheme 
for sport and leisure (www.questnbs.org).  We have undertaken Quest Plus and 
we were delighted to achieve a rating of Very Good, after receiving a mystery 
visit and audit. The assessor complimented the colleagues on the progress made 
and the achievements at the centre. QUEST provides a vital tool for bench 
marking and continuous improvement. 
 

• The Tier 2 Weight Management Service funded by NYCC was successfully 
launched. The Tier 2 Weight Management service 18 month trial was due to 
finish in July 2017 but extended to December 2017. Unfortunately we were not 
successful in the tender for the main service. The scheme in Ryedale has been 
challenging due to the rural location of the district and the support of GP’s. 
Ryedale Tier 2 weight management service had 193 referrals from the start date 
until end of March 17, so far 63 have finished the programme and 39 of those 
have achieved the target 3% weight loss. 

 

Page 9



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
• All 3 sites had a full internal Health & Safety audit, with Derwent Swim & Fitness 

Centre scoring 92%, Ryedale Swim & Fitness 99% and Ryedale Sports Centre 
scoring 98.5%.  Overall an excellent set of results. 

 
• Working with Lady Lumley’s School and Ryedale District Council, the necessary 

funding has been secured to replace the playing surface at Ryedale Sports 
Centre will a new astro surface.  This is to be completed during the summer of 
2018. 

 
• Swimming lessons currently have 423 pupils on the scheme at Derwent Swim & 

Fitness Centre and 395 on scheme at Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre. We have 
receive positive feedback on the quality of the swimming lessons and have 
introduce Aqua Passport where parents can log on to see their child progress.  

 
• We have introduced new fitness opportunities such as outdoor fitness classes on 

the open space behind the building at Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre as well as 
introducing EA30 classes within the gym. We have received a great amount of 
positive comments regarding these classes and are looking to introducing more, 
due to their popularity.  

 

Page 10



 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
2.0 REFURBISHMENT / MAINTENANCE / ENVIRONMENTAL 
 
2.1 Refurbishment 

 
Derwent Swim and Fitness 
 

• We have bought 2 brand new state of the art Techno Gym Treadmills 
• We have painted reception, gym and office/colleague area 
• New kitchen and flooring installed 

 
Ryedale Swim and Fitness 
 

• Colleague room was painted  and new flooring laid 
• Brand new pool inflatable was purchased 
• New lane ropes were purchased 
• Refurbishment of the manager’s office 
• Replacement of pool main circulation pump 
• We redecorated the gym, reception and colleague room 

 
Ryedale Sports Centre 
 

• New equipment for the Bootcamp classes 
• Purchased a new stereo for the classes 
• We purchased new sporting equipment for our Kids Club 

 
 
2.2 Maintenance 
 
We have recruited a Contract Technical Assistant to provide maintenance support across 
both Ryedale and our Scarborough Contract. We have local crafts man, plumber and 
electrician for the contract which we use for any urgent work that the contract technical 
assistant is unable to complete. This has ensured a swift response to the work requested on 
our ‘Workbased Asset Management’ system. 
 
We continue to work to our Planned Preventative Maintenance Programme for scheduled 
maintenance through our local and national suppliers.  
 
Please see Appendix 1 for Ryedale and Derwent’s PPM schedules. 
 
2.3 Environmental 
 
Each centre has an ‘Energy Champion’ who is tasked with managing an Energy Action Plan to 
reduce our energy usage.  The Energy Champion attends regular company training. We have 
energy actions boards in each centre informing the public the centres plans to reduce waste 
and ensure we are operating efficiently. All colleagues have regular training regarding how 
to be more energy efficient and we actively encourage customers as well.  In addition 
Everyone Active have attained ISO14001, this is an Environmental Management System 
which provides a structure for measuring and improving an organisations environmental 
impact. 
 

Page 11



 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
3.0 ATTENDANCE 
 
3.1 Overall Attendance  
 
We have had 212,342 visits during the year 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018 (Appendix 2). 
 
 
3.2 Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre 
 
With 40% of total visits across the leisure facilities that Everyone Active manage in Ryedale 
District, the centre continues to be busy.  With 83,692 visits during the year.  Malton and 
Norton have a number of other competing leisure facilities including Malton Community 
Sports Centre and The Workhouse Gym. 
 
The facility is constrained by its location and unfortunately, we are unable to expand the 
fitness area and add a much needed exercise studio, which is much in demand. 
 
 
3.3 Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre 
 
The busiest facility continues to be Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre with 103,779 and just 
under 50% of all visits to the 3 centres in Ryedale District.  Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre 
has a great mix of facilities, with a good sized gym, 4 lane swimming pool, flumes, outdoor 
area for BootCamps and a large reception area for vending, meetings and resale. 
 
The population of Pickering is relatively small with a population of around 7,000 and usage 
of the centre remains good. 
 
 
3.4 Ryedale Sports Centre 
 
With 24,871 visits to this dual-use facility last year, the centre continues to provide a diverse 
range of activities for the local community. 
 
The outdoor astro-turf pitch is at the end of its life and requires replacement. Working with 
Lady Lumley’s School and Ryedale District Council, the necessary funding has been secured 
to replace the playing surface at Ryedale Sports Centre with a new astro surface.  This is to 
be completed during the summer 2018. 
 
 
3.5 Summary 
 
Attendance figures across the 3 facilities have fallen from last year’s figure high of 240,071.  
This is due to a number of factors.  The negative press around the discussions on the 
swimming clubs provision of swimming lessons, the current state of the astro-turf at Ryedale 
Sports Centre and increased competition.  Everyone Active have agreed a new Sports 
Development Plan with Ryedale District Council to drive increases in participation. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

5 | P a g e  
 

 
4.0 TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 
 
We have a training development plan for colleagues on the Ryedale Contract. This is a 
combination of internal and external training; 
 
4.1 External Partners 
 
Lifetime Fitness   NVQ and apprenticeships 

Customer Care 
Fitness 
Reception 
 

Institute of Swimming   Swimming Teaching (ASA Level 1 & Level 2) 
    CPD - Safeguarding 
 
QDOS    Customer Care 

Sales Training 
Complain Handling 

 
 
4.2 Investors in People  
 
Everyone Active as a company has retained its Investors in People accreditation, which we 
have now held for over 25 years. 
 
4.3 Company Training 
 
Everyone Active offer internal training to all colleagues for their job role in line with 
Everyone Active’s commitment to Investors in People.  We are informed every 3 months of 
possible courses which are taking place and have the opportunity to book onto the courses. 
Please see below for examples of some of the courses which are offered to us; 
 

• National Pool Lifeguard Qualification 
• National Pool Lifeguard Trainer Assessor Qualification 
• Pool Plant Operators 
• First Aid at Work 
• IOSH Managing Safely 
• Duty Manager Training  
• HR Managing People / Employing People 
• Legionella Awareness Training 

 
 
4.4 Lifeguard Training 

 
All our lifeguards are RLSS National Pool Lifeguard Qualified and in addition they have now 
all competed the refresher training in the use of defibrillators. All lifeguards must attend 
training once a month to refresh dry and wet first aid. We have also introduce the new 
spinal boards in both the wet sites, all colleagues have been trained in the correct procedure 
when carrying out a spinal injury on the new PXB board.  
 
Training records available for inspection at the centres by RDC Client Officer. 

Page 13



 

6 | P a g e  
 

 
 
4.5 Swimming Lesson Qualifications 
 
Our swimming teachers hold the ASA Level 2 qualification and we continue to upskill our 
ASA Level 1 assistant teachers to ASA Level 2.  This ensures a continuous supply of qualified 
swimming teachers. 
 
4.6 Health and Safety 
 
Each site has a designated Site Safety Co-ordinators who has been trained in IOSH Managing 
Safely qualification.  
 
All Duty Managers are either first aid qualified or have a valid National Pool Lifeguard 
Qualification and attend regular refresher training. The Duty Managers at the wet site also 
have National Pool Plant Operators Certificate.  
 
5.7 Fitness 
 
All the fitness team have undertaken the NVQ level 2 in fitness. Many of them upskilling to 
NVQ level 3 in fitness through our external training provider Lifetime Fitness. 
 
4.8 Apprentices 
 
We continue to offer a comprehensive apprentice scheme. Our 2 fitness apprentices have 
completed their apprenticeship and have been rewarded with an opportunity to work 
towards their level 3 qualification. Our activity apprentices have become lifeguards within 
the company, 2 completing their swimming teacher qualification and teaching their own 
lessons, as well as lifeguarding. We have had a great success form the apprenticeship 
scheme and all the colleagues have fully enjoyed the work experience as well as the 
qualification they have received. We have recently promoted one of our apprentice who 
became a lifeguard to duty manager which is a massive achievement for the individual.  
 
We currently have a job advert within the company to employee more apprenticeships to 
give them the fantastic opportunity as a stepping stone for greater success.  
 
4.9 Development 
 
We have identified key colleagues from each centre who show enthusiasm and the 
characteristics to become managers and promoted to senior management. At Ryedale Swim 
& Fitness Centre, a colleague has been promoted from Lifeguard to Team Leader and then 
after doing a fantastic job he was promoted to a Duty Manager. We also conduct yearly 
personal development program reviews with all colleagues to establish what goals they have 
within the company and provide training where possible to enable there goals. We are 
currently training 3 lifeguards who have identified they would like to become Duty Managers 
through our in house training programme.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 

7 | P a g e  
 

 
 
5.0 ACCIDENTS / HEALTH & SAFETY 
 
Both the Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre and Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre have achieved 
the company KPI for accidents per 10,000 visits of under 5. The accident reduction strategies 
have been implemented and are working well. The Ryedale & Derwent Swim and Fitness 
accidents per 10,000 improved from the previous year (April 16 – March 17) see table 
below.  
 
Ryedale Sports Centre has increased this is due to roller skating getting more popular 
however we have implemented an accident reduction strategies to lower the number of 
accidents from this activity. Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre have reduced the number of 
accidents year on year, as a result of a detailed slip reduction plan, which was successfully 
developed and implemented by the General Manager. 
 

 
 
 
 
Please see attached at Appendix 3 the Accident Analysis sheet for all three sites. 
 
All 3 sites have now been through the second set of health and safety audits with both 
Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre scoring 92%, Ryedale Swim & Fitness Scoring 99% and 
Ryedale Sports Centre Scoring 98.5%. 
 
The company and local management plan for Health & Safety is working well, with a clear 
focus from the General Manager. 

 April 16 – March 17 April 17 – March 18 
Site Per 10,000 Per 10,000 
Ryedale Sports Centre 2.2 9.6 
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 2.6 2.3 
Derwent Swim & Fitness 2.6 1.9 

Page 15



 

8 | P a g e  
 

 
6.0 CUSTOMER FEEDBACK  
 
6.1  Customer Feedback  

 
Across all the centre we collect customer feedback via the following methods:- 
 

• Customer Comments Cards displayed in the centre receptions 
• Verbal feedback via colleagues who are recorded in a log 
• E-mail the manager via the website or Atreemo 
• Social Media 
• Via RDC customer services 
• A mystery shopper scheme through our external provider QDOS Mystery Shopper 

Ltd. 
 
Launched in August 2016, Everyone Active have made a significant investment into a 
new software package called Single Customer View.  This provides a new method for 
providing feedback. Single Customer View guarantees that a customer will always get a 
response within 48 hours. If a customer does not get a response then the comment is 
escalated to the next Line Manager. The software also allows us to look at the feedback 
and identify trends.  
 

6.2 Customer Comments 
 

Customer comments are available to view on site by the RDC Client Officer due to the 
amount we have collated we have only provided the overview for each site. Many of the 
customers will only comments or contact us with negative feedback however we are now 
encouraging customers in the centre to provide all feedback with the chance to win Red 
Letter Days. Please see Appendix 4 for a summary of the feedback ratings we have received. 
 
To summarise we have received positive comments on:- 
 

• We have received positive comments regarding the Active Kids club. 
 

• Group exercise classes at Ryedale Sports Centre have received many positive 
comments regarding the equipment and the new instructor’s enthusiasm. There has 
been an increase in participation and more classes have been added to meet 
demand. 

 
• The colleagues at all parts of the business have been receiving positive comments in 

relation to their approachability and the professional advice which they are able to 
give out to customers.  

 
• The water quality at Derwent and Ryedale was praised on a number of occasions as 

well as the pool timetable which supports this and its ability to actively encourage 
participation across all demographics within the Ryedale District Council Area.  

 
We received some negative comments on the following:- 
 

• Astro turf pitch at Ryedale Sports Centre regarding the surface. We have been 
working in partnership with Lady Lumley’s School and RDC to try and secure Sport 
England funding however this was unsuccessful, and are now looking at the football  

Page 16



 

9 | P a g e  
 

federation to secure funding although there is a commitment in the contract to 
replace the pitch within 5 years of the start of the contract. 
 

• Comments were raised regarding the information available on the website for 
activities and the accuracy of this information. A recent upgrade to the bookings 
system and a launch of a website upgrade means that all the information for 
bookings and sessions on the receptions screens, now directly maps that of the 
website and also allows customers the ability to book more activities online too. 
 

• The cleaning in changing rooms at Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre, after busy periods 
has been the cause for a number of comments. A detailed review of the cleaning 
rotas and colleague resourcing at peak times has been conducted, and since 
comments regarding the cleaning standards at peak times have reduced. 
 

• Negative customer comments have come in regarding the prices of casual swimming 
across both Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre and Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre. 
Prices have been standardised and not increased this financial year, so this 
information was relayed back to the customers. 
 

• Issues with TV signals in the gym at Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre. A new Ariel 
cable was installed direct to the side of the TV unit to allow a better and more 
consistent signal. 
 

• Comments regarding the cancellation of Aqua across both sites. Current recruitment 
is underway through adverts and currently reviewing potential training 
opportunities across the business to upskill any appropriate colleagues to be able to 
restart these sessions at both sites. 

 

Page 17



 

10 | P a g e  
 

 
7.0 MARKETING / PRICING 
 
We have actively marketed the centres over the last 12 months. Through a variety of media 
Newspapers, Leaflets, E-mail, Social Media and Banners as well as in-reach competitions 
such as a few events below, where we asked children who visited the centre to take part in a 
variety of activities to win a family fun swim such as:- 
 

• Design a fish 
• Design a snowflake 
• Compose a poem regarding tour de Yorkshire 

 
We displayed all the children’s creations in reception for the public to see. 
 
Please see Appendix 5 for the Ryedale Contracts Marketing Collection. 
 
We have held the casual swimming session. Listed below are the local competitor prices for 
general swimming.  As you will notice the prices in Ryedale are particularly competitive. 
 
Scarborough  £4.75 Adult 
  £3.50 Junior / Concession 
 
Selby  £4.10 Adult 
  £2.90 Junior / Concession 
 
Hambleton £4.75 Adult 
  £3.50 Junior / Concession 
 
Ryedale £4.00 Adult 
  £2.40 Junior / Concession 
 
We offer a wide range of concessions and discounts to organisations and individuals to 
encourage them to take part in activity. 
 
 
8.0 SPORTS DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY/COMMUNITY EVENTS 
 
Sports Developments 
 
Throughout the year, the whole team within the contract, from swim teachers, activity 
leaders and sales; have all attended and supported school sports days. The team supported 
the delivery of events as well as engagement with the schools with the Bee Active mascot 
and free gifts for those who participated well and supported the wider active schools ethos. 
This was a widely supported project which allowed the specialism in sports to be handed out 
around the community schools with the ability to then sign post into the leisure centre 
settings afterwards. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 

11 | P a g e  
 

 
Activity Kid Club  
 
We have introduced a new after school club on a Wednesday where children can come and 
participate in a range of different sports and activities including climbing and arts and crafts. 
The cost of the activity is only £2 and is run alongside the group exercise classes. This allows 
parents who do not have childcare to come to the classes whilst knowing their children and 
in a fun and safe environment.  
 
Lions Gala 
 
We attended the Lady Lumley’s Lions Gala at Lady Lumley’s School to promote holiday 
activities, swimming lessons and swimming at the pool during the holidays. We set up a stall 
which had many children games such as giant Jenga, quoits and pop up badminton. We gave 
out prizes and had a drop box for swimming lessons to win 6 months’ worth of swimming 
lessons at the centre. Whilst the children played ,it gave us the chance to talk to parents 
about our products and services we could offer. 
 
Mickel Hill Summer Fair  
 
We attended a local retirement village (Mickel Hill) fair to promote the benefits of keeping 
active we also offered free health check looking at mobility and blood pressure. This was 
carried out by Martin Russell our fitness manager and exercise referral specialist. Martin 
carried out tests, such as sit to standing, blood pressure, BMI and many more. This also gave 
us the opportunity to push the GP referral scheme and Tier 2 Weight Management Scheme 
as well as the gym and swimming pool at the centre. Although they have a gym at the 
retirement village many of them then came down and join at the centre to use the 
swimming pool. 
 
 
Family Fun Day  
 
We were invited back again to hoist the Family Fun Day by the Lord Mayor which was very 
successful again. We coordinated running races and activities for children who attended. We 
had a sack races, sprints and obstacle races. This was a great community event to be a 
part of. In addition we promoted activity for families and provided information on our 
swimming lesson scheme.  
 
 
Tour De Yorkshire 
 
During the month of April we encouraged everyone to become active by a Tour de Yorkshire 
challenge. On the run up to the event we challenged the public to get active by trying to 
complete the tour’s mileage in 40 days through cycling. We encourage them to record their 
mileage through cycling either at our group cycling classes or in our gyms using the bikes or 
going for a bike ride outside. Alternatively, if customers did not enjoy cycling we encouraged 
walking or running to achieve the goal. Customers received a booklet which they used to 
monitor their progress and whoever completed the 40 miles were entered into a price draw 
to receive a free month membership. On the day of Tour de Yorkshire we set up a marquee 
in the middle of Pickering to challenge the public to King/ Queen of the Mountain. They had 
to climb the equivalent of Robin Hoods Bay, which the Tour de Yorkshire were completing. 

Page 19



 

12 | P a g e  
 

The fastest person to complete the climb won a free months membership. We had lots of 
people taking part in this and a member of the centre won the challenge. 
 
Sporting Champions 
 
Everyone Active’s Sporting Champions provides funding and support for talented athletes 
from across the UK. Launched in 2016 and supported by one of the country’s most 
recognised sporting talents, Colin Jackson CBE, has already helped many athletes on their 
journey to become a national and international sporting success. With access to over 140 of 
Everyone Active’s leisure centers across the country, athletes on the scheme are able to use 
the highest standard of facilities for their ongoing training. Becoming a sporting hero comes 
with a financial burden and, for many of our athletes, they will also be provided with funding 
support to help pay for training, equipment, travel and competition costs.  We have had 1 
talented individuals from Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre and 7 from Ryedale Swim & 
Fitness Centre,  who received a bronze sponsorship package. They join the scheme and 
receive a free 1 year membership. We had 1 talented individual to secure silver 
membership, they received £1000 and a free 1 years membership.   

 

Page 20



13 | P a g e

9.0 FUTURE PRIORITIES 

The coming year provides a host of new challenges and opportunities. With a settled team in 
place and a clear plan of action our key priority this year is to continue growing our 
customer bases and improving our offering. 

9.1 Swimming Clubs 

Whilst we acknowledge there is an ongoing dispute regarding the delivery of swimming 
lessons, between Everyone Active, Ryedale District Council and the swimming clubs, the day 
to day operations between the swimming clubs and Everyone Active on site, remains 
positive. 

9.2 Club Partnerships 

Forge better relations with all key partners, user groups and stakeholders to enable them to 
progress and continue to grow. It has been a huge year of change and the opportunity for 
such great change across the area with the plans to re-develop the Ryedale Sports Centre 
pitch. Our aim is to work further with the clubs to build stronger relationships locally by 
regular meetings, supporting them with funding, sponsorships as well as offering advice 
making sure our centres remain the heart of the community. 

9.3 Sports Development 

Our aim is to ensure we sustain our aim of being everyone first choice for activity by offering 
the widest range of affordable activities to enable everyone to be active. We aim to work 
closely with our colleagues at the council to produce a brand new Sports Development/ 
Community Engagement Plan with clear and meaningful objectives to achieve our targets 
locally in Ryedale District Council area. This will allows us to identify areas where we will be 
able to deliver our aim and ensure residents of Ryedale District can participate in a range of 
different activities to suit their needs.  

9.4 Ryedale Sport Centre Development 

We will continue to work with RDC and Lady Lumley School to improve facilities and the 
service we offer to residents.  RDC and Everyone Active have secured a new 3G pitch which 
hopefully will be completed by July 2018. Once this has been completed we plan to relaunch 
Ryedale Sport Centre to advise the new improvements and facilities to enable us to secure 
new bookings to ensure the pitch is busy again. This will work alongside the Sports 
Development Plan as well as Club Partnerships and attendance growth plans across the 
Ryedale District Council Area. 

Page 21



Location Area & Type Service Frequency Service Contract Company Contact Name Contact Details

Reception Automatic Doors
2 Auto front Doors

Annual Yes Kone Kone, Global House Street Place, Fox Lane Norton, Chertsey, Surrey, 
KT16 9HW 08451 999 999

Whole Building Fire Alarm
Service and Maintain

6 Monthly Yes GMC Grahm Coulson Riccal Drive, York Road Business Park, Malton, North Yorkshire 
YO17 6YE 01653 697917

Whole Building
Intruder Alarm

Annual Yes GMC Grahm Coulson
Riccal Drive, York Road Business Park, Malton, North Yorkshire 

YO17 6YE 01653 697917

Whole Building Fire Extinguishers Annual Yes GMC Grahm Coulson Riccal Drive, York Road Business Park, Malton, North Yorkshire 
YO17 6YE 01653 697917

Pool Pool Alarm/Toilet Alarm
Location: Disabled Toilets, Pool Hall

Annual Yes GMC Grahm Coulson Riccal Drive, York Road Business Park, Malton, North Yorkshire 
YO17 6YE 01653 697917

Whole Building PAT Testing Annual Yes PTSG Lee Robinson 13-14 flemming court, castleford, west yorkshire, wf10 5hw. 
01977668771

Whole Building Fixed Wiring Annual Yes PTSG Lee Robinson 13-14 flemming court, castleford, west yorkshire, wf10 5hw. 
01977668772

Whole Building Emergency Lighting Annual Yes GMC Grahm Coulson Riccal Drive, York Road Business Park, Malton, North Yorkshire 
YO17 6YE 01653 697917

Plant Room Air Handling Filters 6 Monthly Yes Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council Brian Stephenson Redcar & Cleveland House, Kirthleatham Street, Redcar, TS10 1RT 
07909 906 396

Whole Building Air Conitioning 3 visits per year Yes Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council Brian Stephenson Redcar & Cleveland House, Kirthleatham Street, Redcar, TS10 1RT 
07909 906 396

Pool Plant Pool Plant System 6 Monthly Yes Sterling Hydrotech Darren Park Rd, Holmewood, Holmewood Chesterfield, Derbyshire S42 
5UY 01246 857000

Plant Room Boiler Plant Annual Yes Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council Brian Stephenson Redcar & Cleveland House, Kirthleatham Street, Redcar, TS10 1RT 
07909 906 396

Whole Building Water Hygiene Monitoring Weekly - Annual Yes Kingfisher info@kingfisher-es.co.uk 

Derwent Swim & Fitness Centre

P
age 22



Location Area & Type Service 
Frequency

Service 
Contract

Company Contact Name Contact Details

Reception Automatic Doors
2 Auto front Doors

Annual Yes Kone Jade Terry Kone, Global House Street Place, Fox Lane Norton, Chertsey, 
Surrey, KT16 9HW 08451 999 999

Whole Building Fire Alarm
Service and Maintain

6 Monthly Yes GMC Grahm Coulson Riccal Drive, York Road Business Park, Malton, North Yorkshire 
YO17 6YE 01653 697917

Whole Building Intruder Alarm Annual Yes GMC Grahm Coulson Riccal Drive, York Road Business Park, Malton, North Yorkshire 
YO17 6YE 01653 697917

Whole Building Fire Extinguishers Annual Yes ACE 12 triumph way, woburn road industrial estate, kempston, bedford, 
mk42 7qb

Pool
Pool Alarm/Toilet Alarm
Location: Disabled Toilets, Pool Hall Annual Yes GMC Grahm Coulson

Riccal Drive, York Road Business Park, Malton, North Yorkshire 
YO17 6YE 01653 697917

Whole Building PAT Testing Annual Yes PTSG Lee Robinson
13-14 flemming court, castleford, west yorkshire, wf10 5hw.

01977668771

Whole Building Fixed Wiring Annual Yes PTSG Lee Robinson 13-14 flemming court, castleford, west yorkshire, wf10 5hw.
01977668772

Whole Building Emergency Lighting Annual Yes GMC Grahm Coulson Riccal Drive, York Road Business Park, Malton, North Yorkshire 
YO17 6YE 01653 697917

Plant Room Air Handling Filters 6 Monthly Yes Redcar & 
Cleveland Borough 

Brian Stephenson Redcar & Cleveland House, Kirthleatham Street, Redcar, TS10 1RT 
07909 906 396

Whole Building Air Conitioning 3 visits per year Yes Aerocool unit 301,merlin park industrial estate, Burscough, Lancashire. 
017047897520

Pool Plant Pool Plant System 6 Monthly Yes Sterling Hydrotech Darren Park Rd, Holmewood, Holmewood Chesterfield, Derbyshire S42 
5UY 01246 857000

Plant Room Boiler Plant Annual Yes Redcar & 
Cleveland Borough 

Brian Stephenson Redcar & Cleveland House, Kirthleatham Street, Redcar, TS10 1RT 
07909 906 396

Whole Building Water Hygiene Monitoring Weekly - Annual Yes Kingfisher info@kingfisher-es.co.uk 
Whole Building gas and electric work GasElect Chris Martin 1723862724

Whole Building & 
Garden

maint and gardening Pod Ian Stabler 7795457083

Pool Side Pool Cover Annual Forge
Pool Side pool hoist yes Allianz

Ryedale Swim & Fitness Centre

P
age 23



Appendix 2 

ATTENDANCE DATA

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total
Total Attendance 17482 18969 18782 18093 19551 17247 18216 17747 12230 17587 17436 19002 212342
Derwent Swim & Fitness 6520 7414 7733 7356 7638 7093 7192 7203 4846 6531 6823 7343 83692
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 8494 9369 9185 8800 9696 8220 8868 8476 6242 8607 8453 9369 103779
Ryedale Sports Centre 2468 2186 1864 1937 2217 1934 2156 2068 1142 2449 2160 2290 24871
Monitored 1651 1827 1692 1680 1926 1513 1564 1307 956 1602 1508 1444 18670
Derwent Swim & Fitness 501 678 520 579 650 523 559 471 331 646 570 585 6613
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 1106 1079 1124 1052 1240 950 969 806 606 901 903 818 11554
Ryedale Sports Centre 44 70 48 49 36 40 36 30 19 55 35 41 503
Casual Attendance 7509 8263 8298 8049 8639 6894 7325 6937 4893 8290 7560 8132 90789
Derwent Swim & Fitness 2749 3111 3383 3025 3163 2673 2691 2598 1754 3018 2924 2866 33955
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 4247 4797 4549 4568 5107 3753 4095 3869 2877 4795 4266 4764 51687
Ryedale Sports Centre 513 355 366 456 369 468 539 470 262 477 370 502 5147
Class/Course & Gym Attendance 8256 8842 8785 8304 8692 8831 9277 9503 6381 7628 8350 9426 102275
Derwent Swim & Fitness 3270 3625 3830 3732 3790 3897 3942 4134 2761 2863 3329 3892 43065
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 3141 3493 3512 3180 3230 3517 3769 3801 2759 2848 3284 3787 40321
Ryedale Sports Centre 1845 1724 1443 1392 1672 1417 1566 1568 861 1917 1737 1747 18889
Miscellaneous 66 37 7 60 294 9 50 0 0 67 18 0 608
Derwent Swim & Fitness 0 0 0 20 35 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 59
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 0 0 0 0 119 0 35 0 0 63 0 0 217
Ryedale Sports Centre 66 37 7 40 140 9 15 0 0 0 18 0 332

P
age 24



Contract Site
Total Site 

Attendance
Total 

Accidents
Natural 
Causes

Sporting 
Injury

Other type 
of Injury

No of 
Customer 
Accidents

No of SLIPS       (Non-
Sporting) NB; DO NOT 

INCLUDE TRIPS

No of 
Contractor 
Accidents

No of 
Colleague 
Accidents

No of colleague days 
absense as a result of 

H&S issue (Stress, 
Accident etc.)

No of Customer 
Accidents RIDDOR 

reportable

No of Colleague 
Accidents 
RIDDOR 

reportable

Brief overview of Riddor 
Reportable Accidents.       (Please 

copy and paste the wording 
entered on the online Riddor 

form)

Brief Overview of Trends 
Noticed and Action put in 

Place to Prevent 
Reoccurance

Monthly Accident 
Rate per 10,000 

Visits

Ryedale Sports Centre 24,871 25 2 18 5 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 2.3000
Ryedale Swim and Fitness 103,779 32 8 8 14 30 3 2 0 0 0 n/a 9.6000
Derwent Swim and Fitness 85,322 29 8 4 16 28 1 1 0 0 0 n/a 1.9925

Contract Site
Total Site 

Attendance
Total 

Accidents
Natural 
Causes

Sporting 
Injury

Other type 
of Injury

No of 
Customer 
Accidents

No of SLIPS       (Non-
Sporting) NB; DO NOT 

INCLUDE TRIPS

No Of 
Accidents 
involving 

Flumes

No of 
Contractor 
Accidents

No of Colleague 
Accidents

No of colleague 
days absense as a 

result of H&S issue 
(Stress, Accident 

etc.)

No of Customer 
Accidents 
RIDDOR 

reportable

No of Colleague Accidents 
RIDDOR reportable

Brief overview of Riddor 
Reportable Accidents.   

(Please copy and paste the 
wording entered on the 

online Riddor form)

Brief Overview of 
Trends Noticed and 
Action put in Place 

to Prevent 
Reoccurance

Monthly 
Accident Rate 

per 10,000 
Visits

Ryedale Sports Centre 2468 2 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a no trend 8.1037
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 8494 3 1 0 2 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A no trends identified 3.5319
Derwent 6520 4 0 0 4 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 N/A No Trends Identified 4.6012

Ryedale Sports Centre 2186 5 1 2 2 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a no trends 22.8728
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 9369 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A No trends identified 0.0000
Derwent 7414 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a No Trends Identified 1.3488

Ryedale Sports Centre 1864 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a no trend 5.3648
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 9185 5 0 2 3 4 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 N/A 2 on the inflatable no trend as different types of incidents4.3549
Derwent 7733 2 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a No Trends Identified 2.5863

Ryedale Sports Centre 1937 4 0 1 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a no trend 15.4879
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 8800 4 0 2 2 3 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 N/A Colleague stood up from chair, ankle gave way, slip ip walking round poolside & lost footing into pool.3.4091
Derwent 7356 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a no trends 1.3594

Ryedale Sports Centre 2217 8 0 8 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a No Trends Identified 36.0848
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 9696 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A Both Different 2.0627
Derwent 7356 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a No Trends Identified 3.9277

Ryedale Sports Centre 1934 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A No Trends Identified 5.1706
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 8220 2 0 1 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A No Trends - 1 accident, child fell, hit face on floor (Area checks ok) / 1 child hit with football, opend old scab2.4331
Derwent 7638 3 0 0 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a No Trends Identified

Ryedale Sports Centre 2156 2 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 9.2764
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 8868 2 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/a N/A 2.2553
Derwent 7192 2 0 1 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a No Trends Identified 2.7809

Ryedale Sports Centre 2068 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0000
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 8476 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a No Trend 1.1798
Derwent 7203 3 1 0 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a No Trends Identified 4.1649

Ryedale Sports Centre 1142 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A No Trends Identified 0.0000
Ryedale Swim & Fitness 6242 2 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A No Trends 3.2041
Derwent 4846 6 3 1 2 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 n/a No Trends Identified 0.0000

Ryedale Swim and Fitness 2449 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A no trends identified 4.0833
Ryedale Sports Centre 8607 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a No Trends identified 1.1618
Derwent Swim and Fitness 6531 4 2 0 2 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a No Trends Identified 1.5312

Ryedale Swim and Fitness 2160 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A No trends identified 4.6296
Ryedale Sports Centre 8453 3 1 0 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/a No trends identified 3.5490
Derwent Swim and Fitness 8453 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a No Trends Identified 0.0000

Ryedale Swim and Fitness 2290 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A No Trends Identified 0.0000
Ryedale Sports Centre 9369 6 3 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A No Trends Identified 1.0673
Derwent Swim and Fitness 7343 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a No Trends Identified 1.3618

Ryedale Contract

Dec-17

Ryedale Contract

Nov-17

All three sites are achieving the company KPI for accidents per 10,000 visits of under 5.0.

Ryedale Contract

Ryedale Contract

Ryedale Contract

z

Feb-17

Jan-17

Ryedale Contract

Ryedale Contract

Oct-17

Everyone Active Yearly Accident Analysis 

Ryedale Contract

Ryedale Contract

Ryedale Contract

Ryedale Contract

Everyone Active Monthly Accident Analysis 

Ryedale Contract

Apr-17

May-17

Jun-17

Sep-17

Aug-17

Jul-17

Ryedale Contract

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ryedale District 
Council Active 
Community Plan 
2018 - 2023 
To be reviewed annually  

Ryedale District Council 

P
age 27



2 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section Page Content  Page Number 

   

Section 1 Introduction: SLM & Ryedale District Council  Joint Vision & 
Mission 

3 

   

Section 2 National Influencers & Strategy 4 

Section 3 Local Influencers & Strategy 6 

   

Section 4 Local Research and Physical Activity Profiling 8 

   

Section 5 Physical Activity Delivery Framework 11 

   

 Areas of Focus 11 

 Outcome Indicators 12 

   

 Management, Infrastructure, & Resourcing 13 

 Children, young people and adult programmes 14 

 Club & Workforce Development 16 

 Partnership in Raising the Profile of Activity 17 

 Equality & Access Provision 18 

   

Section 6 Measurement & Review Methodology 20 

   

Section 7 Appendices 21 

P
age 28



3 

 

 
 
Section 1: Introduction 
 
SLM Mission Statement: 
 
To promote activity, health & wellbeing within Ryedale District Council in line with the Everyone Active mission statement 
 
‘To create the best value experience that makes members feel better being active for 30 minutes 5 days a week – at least 2 
activities supported within our centres’. 
 
 
Ryedale District Council Mission Statement 
 
Ryedale District Council have several key strategies which work collaboratively in delivery of activity outcomes. Two strategic 
documents that underpin the work of the council are;  
 

1. The Ryedale District Council Business Plan 2017 – 2022 Vision: “The vision for Ryedale District Council is to continue 
doing what matters for Ryedale.” 

 
2. Ryedale District Council Leisure Strategy 2013 - 2023 Vision: “To improve the quality of sport and active recreation 

opportunities for people in the area.” 
 
This Active Community Plan will continue to build on strong partnerships in the Ryedale district which align Everyone Active and 
Ryedale district Council strategic priorities set within localised strategies such as; The Business Plan, Leisure Strategy, and County 
Health and Wellbeing Strategies. 
 
This Active Community Plan has been produced in line with research on the localised need for physical activity ensuring all 
partners work together to deliver the expectations. The integration of the Public Health and Primary Care sector is hugely important 
to build upon previous and current work that has been undertaken, and provide support and resources to compliment future 
development of delivering community based outcomes.  
 
Greater collaboration and use of resources will be fundamental to the success of this plan. All organisations involved in the 
development of this document have an important role to play in achieving the outcomes that are needed for the improved health 
and wellbeing of the District and will be very much a part of the success of the improved wellbeing of its communities. 

P
age 29



4 

 

 
Section 2: The Bigger Picture 
 
National Influencers 
 
There are several key policies and national campaigns that influence the development of the Ryedale District Active Community 
Plan. Below outlines those strategies, the visions, and the key outcomes derived from the action; 
 
 

Strategy Document Who Vision / Mission / Principle Priorities / Outcomes / Themes 

 
Sporting Futures 

 
Department of 
Culture, Media, & 
Sport 

 
“Develop a more ‘Active Nation’” 

 

• Physical wellbeing  

• Mental wellbeing  

• Individual development  

• Social & community development  

• Economic development 
 

 
Towards an Active 
Nation  

 
Sport England 

 
“We want everyone in England regardless of age, 
background or level of ability to feel able to engage in 
sport and physical activity. Some will be young, fit and 
talented, but most will not. We need a sport sector that 
welcomes everyone – meets their needs, treats them as 
individuals and value them as customers.” 
 

 

• Tackling inactivity 

• Children and young people 

• Volunteering 

• Mass markets 

• Sustaining the core market 

• Working locally 

• Facilities 

 
Physical Activity 
Standard Evaluation 
Framework 

 
National Health 
Service 

 
“The SEF for physical activity aims to describe and 
explain the information that should be collected in any 
evaluation of an intervention that aims to increase 
participation in physical activity.  
It is aimed at interventions that work at individual or 
group level, not at population level.” 

 

• How to identify appropriate physical activity outcomes for evaluating 
different types of intervention. 

• How to define suitable measures for different types of physical 
activity outcome. 

• How to approach the challenges of assessing and measuring 
physical activity and energy  

• Expenditure 
 

 
Health Matters; 
getting every adult 
active every day 

 
Public Health 
England 

 
“Increasing physical activity has the potential to improve 
the physical and mental health and wellbeing of 
individuals, families, communities and the nation as a 
whole. Public Health England (PHE) wants to see more 
people being physically active.” 

 

• Active Society  

• Moving professionals 

• Active environments 

• Moving at scale 

P
age 30



5 

 

 

 
Start active, stay 
active 

 
Department of 
Health 

 
“Bringing all of the aspects of the report together  
creates a number of key features on the influence of 
regular physical activity:  

• A life course approach  

• A stronger recognition of the role of vigorous 
intensity activity  

• The flexibility to combine moderate and vigorous 
intensity activity  

• An emphasis upon daily activity  

• New guidelines on sedentary behaviour” 
 

 
Chief Medical Officer Guidelines; 
 

• Under 5 Active 3 hours a day 

• Young people 1 hour a day 

• Adults 30 minutes 5 times a week 

• Older adults 30 minutes 5 times a week 

 
Change 4 Life 
Campaign 

 
NHS Choices 

 
“To inspire a broad coalition of people, including the 
NHS, local authorities, businesses, charities, schools, 
families, community leaders” 

 
To play a part in improving the nation's health and well-being by 
encouraging everyone to eat well, move more and live longer 
implementing national campaigns and initiatives such as;  

• Food4Life 

• Walk4Life 

• Play4Life 
 

 
Everyone Active 
Sports Development 
Strategy 2014 - 2018 

 
Sports & Leisure 
Management 

 
“To be the community’s premium sports and activity 
provider for both adults and children for all abilities, 
genders, and ethnicity”  

 

• Sports and Activity Programming 

• Coaching and Colleague Development & Skills 

• Volunteering  

• Community Health, Inclusion, and Behaviour Change 

• Facility Development & Supporting Excellence 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 31



6 

 

Section 3: Local Influencers & Strategy 
 
There are several key policies and strategies that influence the development of the Ryedale District Physical Activity, Health and 
Community Plan. Below outlines those strategies, the visions, and the key outcomes derived from the action at a local level; 
 
 

Strategy Document Who Vision / Mission Relevant Priorities / Outcomes / Themes 

 
The Ryedale District 
Council Business 
Plan 2017 – 2022 
 

 
Ryedale District 
Council 

 
The vision for Ryedale District Council is to continue doing what 
matters for Ryedale...framed around five values: Passion, 
Respect, Openness, Unity and Decisive.  

• Capitalising on our culture, leisure and tourism opportunities 

• Designing all of our services with the customer at the heart 
of everything we do 

• Helping our partners to keep our communities safe and 
healthy 

• Utilising assets in supporting the delivery of priorities 

 
Ryedale District 
Council Leisure 
Strategy 2013 - 
2023 
 
 
 

 
Ryedale District 
Council 

 
Our Vision is for everyone in Ryedale to enjoy an active, 
adventurous, and healthy lifestyle as an integral part of 
everyday life, encouraging More People, to become More 
Active, More Often. 

• More people aspiring to take part in sport and active 
recreation  

• More people actually taking part in sport and active 
recreation  

• More people becoming involved as volunteers in sport and 
active recreation  

• Increased participation amongst people already taking part 
in sport and active recreation 

• Increased satisfaction with facilities and opportunities for 
sport and active recreation in the Ryedale area  

• Increased usage across all Ryedale owned leisure facilities 

 
Humber Coast & 
Vale Sustainability 
and Transformation 
Plan 
 
 
 

 
Humber Coast 
and Vale 
Partnership Board 

 
Our vision for 2021 is a system that: 

• Supports everyone to manage their own care better 

• Reduces dependence on hospitals 

• Uses our resources more efficiently 

 

• Give people advice and resources to look after themselves. 

• Implement prevention activities that we know work well 
across all localities – such as those that tackle obesity, 
alcohol misuse and falls. 

 
Ambition for Health 
 
 
 
 

 
Statutory agency 
partnership, 
council 

 
Healthy lifestyles – An ambition to help people lead healthy 
lifestyles, supporting them to take control of their own 
health to prevent illness 
 
 
 
 

 

• Prevention, self-care and helping people of all ages to lead 
healthy and active lifestyles – with a particular emphasis on 
encouraging a smoke free generation 

P
age 32



7 

 

 
 
Scarborough & 
Ryedale Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group Strategy 
 

  
 
 
To improve the health and wellbeing of our communities 

 
 
Our population is: 

• Physically and mentally healthy 

• Take responsibility for staying healthy and active 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 33



8 

 

 
2.3: Local Demographics 
 
Health Profile 2017  
 
Health in summary 
The health of people in Ryedale is varied compared with the England average. 
About 12% (1,000) of children live in low income families. Life expectancy for both 
men and women is similar to the England average. 
 
 
Health inequalities 
Life expectancy is not significantly different for people in the most deprived areas of 
Ryedale than in the least deprived areas. 
 
 
Child health 
In Year 6, 15.6% (70) of children are classified as obese, better than the average for 
England. The rate of alcohol specific hospital stays among those under 18 is 27*.  
This represents 3 stays per year. Levels of smoking at time of delivery are worse than the England average.  Levels of teenage 
pregnancy are better than the England average. 
 
 
Adult health 
The rate of alcohol-related harm hospital stays is 541*, better than the average for England. This represents 310 stays per year. 
The rate of self-harm hospital stays is 121*, better than the average for England. This represents 59 stays per year. Estimated 
levels of adult physical activity are better than the England average.  The rate of people killed and seriously injured on roads is 
worse than average. Rates of sexually transmitted infections and TB are better than average. Rates of violent crime, long term 
unemployment and early deaths from cardiovascular diseases are better than average. 
 
Local priorities 
Priorities in Ryedale include starting well (improving school readiness, reducing childhood obesity, reducing injuries), and living well 
(reducing alcohol and substance misuse, reducing obesity, and reducing smoking), ageing well (reducing excess winter deaths, 
loneliness and isolation) and End of life care.  
 

P
age 34



9 

 

 
Physical activity and Sporting Participation for Ryedale 
 
 
An analysis of the data collected through the active lives survey reveals that participation in physical activity in Ryedale is slightly 
better than national average levels, with 23.4% inactive, 10.9% insufficiently active and 65.7% active (Table 1)..  79.9% of 
respondents also reported being active at least twice in 28 days (Data retrieved via the Active Lives on line analysis tool).  
 

 
                                                                         Table 1.                                                                                                                Table 2. 
 
 

 
In relation to actual participation in sporting activities, there is currently a relatively even split of residents taking part and not taking 
part in sporting activities: 49.7% against 50.3% (Table 2) 
 
  

P
age 35



10 

 

The chart below outlines the frequency of participation in sporting activities; highlighting that 39.0% take part at least once a week, 
17.7% three (or more) times a week and some, but less than three times a week (Table 3). 
 
 

Table 3. 
 
 
Whilst the participation levels are slightly above national averages, which is positive; 23.4% are inactive and 10.9% are 
insufficiently active, meaning there are some local challenges to address in relation to physical activity and sport.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 36



11 

 

 
 
Section 3 – Active Community Plan - Framework for Actions  
 

The Active Community Plan actions in section two are grouped into 6 areas outlined below. These areas are based on the evaluation 

of key Local, County and National strategies.  

 

By delivering the actions outlined in the below categories this will lead to the positive outcomes that are overriding all of the elements 

below which are healthier lifestyles and reduced obesity.  

 

• Management, Infrastructure, & Resourcing 

• Children, young people and adult programmes 

• Health Interventions 

• Club & Workforce Development  

• Partnership in Raising the Profile of Activity Partnership Working in the Community 

• Equality and Access Provision 

 

 

The framework is further influenced by the demographic and health research information in section 4   
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 37



12 

 

 
 
Key Outcome Indicators 
 

Local Authority Outcomes 

Outcome Key Outcome Description 

R1 More people aspiring to take part in sport and active recreation 

R2 More people actually taking part in sport and active recreation 

R3 More people becoming involved as volunteers in sport and active recreation 

R4 Increased participation amongst people already taking part in sport and active recreation 

R5 Increased satisfaction with facilities and opportunities for sport and active recreation in the Ryedale area 

R6 Increased usage across all Ryedale owned leisure facilities 

 
 
 
Sport England Framework  

Outcome Key Outcome Description 

S1 Physical Wellbeing 

S2 Mental Wellbeing 

S3 Individual Development 

S4 Social & Community Development 

S5 Economic Development 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 38



13 

 

 
 

Ryedale District Active Community Plan - Framework for Action  

 

Management Infrastructure, and Resourcing 
 

What (Activity Need / Gap / 

Development) 

When 

(Timescale) 

Where (Location) Who (Target Group & 

Partners) 
How (Outputs) Outcomes 

Review Resourcing, Recruit, 

and Induct / Training 

 

 

Annual 

review of 

workforce 

skill levels 

and variety 

 

Recruitment 

drive 6 

monthly 

 

Additional 

training as and 

when required 

on when 

funding is 

available  

 

  

Access to other 

Everyone active centres 

locally in the north east 

where training is held 

including Scarborough, 

Middlesbrough, Redcar 

& Cleveland as well as 

Ryedale itself where 

training is possible  

 

Other Partner Training 

Locations  

• Existing workforce  

• New colleagues at point of 

recruitment 

• Potential partners with 

tangible outputs on usage 

and viability i.e. Rye special 

families and swim clubs. 

• Volunteers  

• Regular members from 

existing base who wish to 

become employed or as 

mentors  

 

 

1. Conduct coaching and coordinator 

gap analysis  

2. Complete training and corporate 

induction 

3. Provide PRD’s and KPI’s 

4. Recruit appropriate colleagues  

5. Sports Leader Tutor Training 

6. Activity Apprenticeships / 

Traineeships CPD’s and Online 

Training 

7. Safeguarding Modular  

8. RQF L1 / L2 Sports Leadership 

Qualifications 

 

 

 

All colleagues fully inducted, roles and 

responsibilities agreed, outcomes of the service 

agreed.  

 

Induction packages for colleagues  ongoing as and 

when recruited this is now online as well as in 

centre  

 

Gap Analysis Spreadsheet visible and accessible to 

senior management 

 

All Management & Activity Management have a 

PRD in file reviewed within the last 6 months 

 

All colleagues under taken safeguarding training 

online through corporate induction modular 6 

 

All Activity Camp Leaders are L1 Sports Leader or 

UKCC L1 or 2 Qualified 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Installing deliver infrastructure 

and understand / utilisation of 

partner resources 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing  

Ryedale Leisure 

Facilities 

 

Community Partners 

and Sport Club Hubs 

 

 

Internal colleagues  

 

Ryedale District Council 

 

North Yorkshire Sports 

Partnership 

 

Local Sports Clubs 

 

Analyse each partner’s outcomes and consider 

EA potential contribution with support of site 

Activity Coordinators. . 

 

Assess how everyone active can support the 

delivery of those outcomes by using the 

facilities, activities, and resources we have 

available.  

 

Agreed resources available to deliver aspects of the 

integrated physical activity and health aspiration.  

 

Proposal of a working plan utilising current 

services to meet shared partner goals/priorities.  

 

Commitment Statements / SLA’s on how clubs and 

Everyone Active will work together on increasing 

participation. 

 

 

P
age 39



14 

 

Work with established NGB contacts to analyse 

the current provision and implement an 

improvement plan for the activities across the 

sites 

 

 

Club Development Networks 

and Deployment 

6 monthly 

once data base 

is created  

Locally in centre and at 

suitable locations 

locally within Ryedale  

All clubs/partners and groups 

who use the facilities and also a 

wider network for all other local 

clubs and groups who do not use 

the centres  

The Contract Manager and Site General 

Managers will meet with all clubs associated 

with the leisure and community facilities on a 

six monthly basis to review club development 

plans and service level agreements with the 

leisure facilities.  

 

Agreed frameworks for coaching opportunity, 

and also identify programme pathways for 

customers from entry level to competitive sport. 

 

Agree and implement six monthly review meetings 

with key clubs that support the participation 

outcomes.  

 

Club SLA’s in place with agreement on 

responsibilities for delivering service and 

participation outcomes 

 

Dates / calendar for club meetings or forums 

 

Standard agenda drafted for meetings  

 
 
 

Children, young people, and adult programmes 
 

What (Activity Need / Gap / 

Development) 

When 

(Timescale) 

Where (Location) Who (Target Group & 

Partners) 
How (Outputs) Outcomes (throughput) 

Early Years Physical Activity 

Development  

Sept 18 – Dec 

18 

In centre and if possible 

in community facilities 

groups and schools  

0-5 years and parents  

 

Central Ryedale children's centre 

 

Pickering Community Infant and 

Nursery School 

 

Potter Hill Playgroup 

 

Ryedale District Council 

 

Everyone Active will work in partnership with 

local schools, early year’s providers and local 

voluntary & community groups to identify 

appropriate opportunities to provide physical 

activity sessions to under 5’s.  

 

Sessions will take place at both community 

facilities were feasible and the local leisure 

centres. 

 

Engage local providers to 

establish appropriate plan 

for under 5 PA sessions.  

 

Explore and secure 

funding/resources to 

support programme 

delivery.  

 

Deliver 1 x Under 5 

session either in centre or 

within local community 

 

 

S1, S2, S3, S4 

 

R1,R2, 

R3,R4,R5,R6 

 

Children’s Sport and Physical 

Activity Programmes 

 

October 18 – 

February 19 

Primary and Secondary 

Education 

Establishments   

 

Thornton Dale C Of E Primary 

School 

 

Pickering Community Junior 

School 

 

Ryedale School 

 

 

Everyone Active will work with its NGB, 

delivery partners and local associations to 

implement high end activities and quality 

assurance. We will also work with governing 

body and training providers to adequately train 

current work workforce. Additional activities 

that will be included from the current provision 

are;  

 

Classes operating at 80% 

occupancy with colleague 

cost v income ratio at 

maximum 55% 

 

14 children enrolled onto 

each of the sports 

 

 

S1, S2, S3, S4 

R1, 

R2,R3,R4,R5,R6 

   
 

 

P
age 40



15 

 

St Joseph's R C Primary School 

 

Ryedale & Whitby School Sport 

Partnership 

 

North Yorkshire Sports 

Partnership 

• Roller Skating 

• Holiday Activity Camps  

• Birthday Parties 

• Inclusive Programmes 

• General Physical activity sessions 

 

Everyone Active will work with specified 

secondary schools, academies to explore 

opportunities to implement activities and 

programmes at the leisure and school facilities 

working with volunteers and club coaching 

networks to deliver activities. 

• Fitness Classes/Gym Sessions 

• Group Cycling 

• Tennis Variants 

• Multi-Sports sessions 

• Badminton Variants 

 

programmes operating 

each week 

 

Holiday Camp daily KPI 

of 90% occupancy 

 

6 Birthday Parties held 

each across the contract 

 

School Survey conducted 

with parents, kids, and 

teachers at selected 

schools every 6 months – 

results to formulate 

decisions and actions to 

implement 

 

Adults Activities 16+ years 

 

August – 

January 2019 

Ryedale Sports Centre 

 

Ryedale Swimming 

Pool 

 

Derwent Swimming 

Pool 

 

Sport Club Locations 

and Recreation Grounds 

where volunteers 

deliver 

Adults 16 – 25 yrs  

Women 16+ 

BME 

25 – 55 yrs 

 

North Yorkshire Sports 

Partnership 

 

Local Sports Clubs 

 

Understand club activities and provision which 

would take place within centre and community 

programme, including accessible activity 

opportunities.  

 

Develop and deploy resources to promote and 

educate local residents on the range of benefits 

in relation to physical activity and raise 

awareness of these opportunities available 

across the district. Other activities that may be 

included within the Adult Activities 

Programme are;  

 

• No Strings Badminton  

• Back to Netball  

• Dodgeball 

• Frisbee Golf 

• Health Walk Groups 

• Couch 2 5k/Running Groups 

• Group Exercise Classes  

• Fitness Workshops and Small Group 

Training  

• Personal Training  

 

 

 

All internal activities 

listed on the EA Ryedale 

websites under ‘discover 

activities’ 

 

Create a ‘Whats on guide’ 

which includes activities 

taking place at the centres 

and at community 

locations 

Internal activities 80% 

viability with 55% coach 

cost to income ratio 

 

70% of adult enquires 

successfully referred into 

club environments of 

choice. 

 

 

 

R1, R2, R4, R6 

 

 

 

S1, S2, S3, S4, S5 

 

   

P
age 41



16 

 

Active Seniors Programme 
August – 

March 2019 

Ryedale Sports Centre 

 

Ryedale Swimming 

Pool 

 

Derwent Swimming 

Pool 

 

Sport Club Locations 

and Recreation Grounds 

where volunteers 

deliver 

 

Pickering Memorial 

Hall 

 

  

Older people 55+ 

 

Ryedale Walking Group 

 

Ryedale Friendship Group 

 

Ryedale Forum for older people 

 

North Yorkshire Sports 

Partnership 

EA will continue to deliver senior activities but 

will re-brand and promote the wider activities 

within an ‘Active Seniors programme’.  This 

will include additional activities more 

appealing to the over 50’s age group based on 

extensive feedback from our over 50’s 

database. This may include lighter exercise 

classes, swim clinics and gym workshops, tea 

dancing and line dancing. 

 

Everyone Active will work in partnership with 

key groups and agencies to identify 

opportunities and funding to deliver activities in 

local communities. We will work with clubs 

and the voluntary sector to set up senior 

activities that can be sustained within 

community settings.  

Stronger programme with 

additional activities.  

 

New ‘Active Seniors’ 

branding to attract the 

Over 50’s market 

 

Activities to be operating 

at 70% class viability with 

minimum of 10 

participants per class. 

 

 

 

 

R1, R2, R4, R6 

 

 

S1, S2, S3, S4 

 

   

  

 

 

 
Club & Workforce Development 
 

What (Activity Need / Gap / 

Development) 

When 

(Timescale) 

Where (Location) Who (Target Group & Partners 

/ Resourcing) 
How (Outputs) Outcomes 

Club Development 
Sept 18 – Dec 

18 

Ryedale Sports Centre 

 

Ryedale Swimming 

Pool 

 

Derwent Swimming 

Pool 

 

Sport Club Locations 

and Recreation Grounds 

Local Sports Clubs currently 

delivering from the Everyone 

Active Centres 

 

Community Clubs that require 

support and new clubs to the 

centre 

 

North Yorkshire Sports 

Partnership 

 

 

Everyone Active value the clubs that are both 

associated with the leisure facilities and the 

local community. Duty Managers and Site 

Activity Coordinators will receive training and 

resources to best support clubs and 

development. This will include the following;  

 

• Review club time and space within 

facilities  

• Service Level Agreement between 

Everyone Active and Club Responsibilities  

• Supporting, Writing, and Developing 

individual club development plans  

• Working with talented Athletes 

 

All clubs associated with 

each of the centres have a 

signed SLA agreement  

 

Each club has a draft one 

page Club development 

plan with priorities 

 

Talented athletes on EA 

Sporting Champions 

Programme or as agreed 

by EA and Ryedale 

District Council will be 

supported by free 

membership 

 

 

 

 

R1, R2, R3, R4, 

R6 

 

 

S1, S2, S4, S5 

Club Recognition 
Sept 18 – Dec 

18 

Ryedale Sports Centre 

 

Ryedale Swimming 

Pool 

 

Ryedale Sports Club Directory 

 

 

Everyone Active recognise the importance of 

creating consistency in sport club delivery on 

leisure and community facilities. It will support 

 

60% of Clubs has 

undertaken a self-

assessment against the 

 

 

R1, R2, R3, R4, 

R6 

P
age 42



17 

 

 

Derwent Swimming 

Pool 

 

Sport Club Locations 

and Recreation Grounds 

Relevant NGBs and 

representatives 

 

Sport England Regional 

Representatives  

 

North Yorkshire Sports 

Partnership 

clubs to develop infrastructure and ability to 

develop talent at grass roots level. It will also 

create opportunities for entry level initiatives 

for target groups.  As part of the Regional 

Activities Manager Role will be to support 

Centre Management working with local clubs 

on the following;  

 

• Assistance with Club Mark  

• Club Development Plans and Pathways 

• Financial support through the ‘Everyone 

Active Sporting Champions’ Programme 

 

current Club Mark 

Criteria in year one – EA 

to retain this self-

assessment for reference 

 

Identify individuals to be 

put forward for the 

Everyone Active Sporting 

Champions Programme in 

Ryedale  

 

EA to develop a 1 page 

club development strategy 

 

 

S3, S4, S5  

 

 

 

Working in Partnership to raise the profile of Physical Activity 
 

What (Activity Need / Gap / 

Development) 

When 

(Timescale) 

Where (Location) Who (Target Group & Partners  

/ Resourcing) 
How (Outputs) Outcomes 

Youth Initiatives across 

Ryedale   

April 19 – 

Aug 19 

Ryedale Sports Centre 

 

Ryedale Swimming 

Pool 

 

Derwent Swimming 

Pool 

 

Sport Club Locations 

and Recreation Grounds 

 

Lady Lumley School 

 

Primary & Secondary 

Education 

5 – 11 years  

12 – 15 years 

 

Street Games  

 

North Yorkshire Sports 

Partnership 

 

Ryedale and Whitby School 

Sports Partnership 

The Leisure Contract Manager and Regional 

Activities Manager will work closely with 

community partners to support and promote 

existing activities across Ryedale as well as 

exploring potential funding opportunities to 

deliver new initiatives within the Leisure 

Facilities; 

 

• Enrol new students onto the Aqua Passport 

/ Sport Passport which provides parents 

access to education on skills, programmes, 

and pathways to children’s development 

• Open sessions and events to promote new 

activities and launches 

 

 

500 participants taking 

part in free programmed 

activities across the 

Ryedale District council 

Facilities over the 3 years 

 

10 schools delivering the 

Fitter Schools Challenge 

by the end of year one  

 

Deliver free taster 

sessions on national play 

day at Ryedale Sports 

Centre  

 

 

 

 

 

R1, R2, R3, R4, 

R6 

 

 

S1 – S5 

 

   

Adult Initiatives in the Ryedale  July 18 -  

Ryedale Sports Centre 

 

Ryedale Swimming 

Pool 

 

Derwent Swimming 

Pool 

 

North Yorkshire Sports 

Partnership 

 

North Yorkshire Public Health – 

Health and Social Care 

 

NHS Scarborough and Ryedale 

CCG 

 

Everyone Active will work with the business 

sector, primary care partners, and sports clubs 

to find ways to champion physical activity 

across the district by promoting the following; 

 

• Active Seniors Programme 

• Workplace Health  

Offering of 3 specific 

Over 50’s activities across 

the Ryedale district – 100 

– 120 participants per 

week  

 

 

 

R1, R2, R3, R4, 

R6 

 

 

S1 – S5 

 

P
age 43



18 

 

Sport Club Locations 

and Recreation Grounds 

 

 

Age UK Scarborough & District 

 

• Provide Opportunities on the Everyone 

Active Sporting Champions Programme 

linking into the talent coaching 

programme with  Health Campaigns 

across the year such as stop smoking 

• Keep active 

• Healthy living 

 

10 business’s involved in 

Workplace Badminton 

Scheme   

 

 

Partner Engagement & Working 

Together 
June 2018 

Ryedale Sports Centre 

 

Ryedale Swimming 

Pool 

 

Derwent Swimming 

Pool 

 

Community Groups 

 

ASA  

Badminton England  

Street Games 

Business Creative  

North Yorkshire Sports 

Partnership 

 

North Yorkshire Public Health – 

Health and Social Care 

 

NHS Scarborough and Ryedale 

CCG 

 

Age UK Scarborough & District 

 

Ryedale & Whitby School Sport 

Partnership 

 

 

 

Everyone Active will work with the following 

key strategic partnerships. It will be important 

to engage in local partnerships at linking them 

to centre based activity and solutions. Below 

are a range of partners we will engage with; 

 

• Sport England  

• Living Sport 

• National Governing Bodies of Sport 

• Everyone Health  

• Scarborough & Whitby Public Health 

• Ryedale District Council 

• NHS/CCGs 

• Uniformed Services 

• Local Housing Associations 

• Primary, Secondary and Special Schools 

• Voluntary Organisations for children, 

young people and families 

 

 

Formalised commitment 

statement / SLA which 

Everyone Active will 

agree its responsibilities 

to each partnership. 

 

Meeting / 

Communications plan – 

which may include phone 

conferences, 1:1 

meetings, forums, partner 

conferences 

 

 

 

 

R1, R2, R3, R4, 

R6 

 

 

S1 – S5 

 

 

Equality & Access Provision 
 

What (Activity Need / Gap / 

Development) 

When 

(Timescale) 

Where (Location) Who (Target Group & Partners 

/ Resourcing) 
How (Outputs) Outcomes 

Quality Assurance June 2018 -  

Ryedale Sports Centre 

 

Ryedale Swimming 

Pool 

 

Derwent Swimming 

Pool 

 

Right Directions  

 

Sport England Representatives 

 

Regional Activities Manager 

 

Contract Manager 

 

Everyone Active will enhance its quality 

assurance programme by fulfilling its 

requirements for national, regional and 

localised quality assurance frameworks. This 

will mean the centres undertaking the following 

QA assessments;  

 

• Quest  

 

Receive ‘Good’ score for 

completion of the Quest 

Junior Activities Module 

 

90% on internal activities 

Gold Standard 

Assessment 

 

 

R5 

 

S1 – S5 

P
age 44



19 

 

Duty Managers 

 

Site Activity Managers 

• Club Mark Accreditation  

• Gold Standard Assessment for Activities 

and other sport related modules 

 

 

Improving Access June 2018 -  

Ryedale Sports Centre 

 

Ryedale Swimming 

Pool 

 

Derwent Swimming 

Pool 

 

EA Customers and Members 

 

NGBs / Schools  

 

Contract Manager / General 

Managers 

 

Duty Managers 

 

Site Activity Managers 

Everyone Active will work with agencies, 

NGB’s, schools, and contractors to review 

access provision for all groups of people. This 

will be done by completing consultation and 

feedback of communities and hard to reach 

groups. This will be done by;  

 

• Physical Activity Access Survey  

• Attending meetings with clubs and council 

meetings  

• Visiting sites with improved outcomes 

from similar projects  

• Consulting with the English Federation of 

Disability Sport and its Inclusive Fitness 

Initiative (IFI) 

• Single Customer View Feedback System 

 

200 responses across the 

contract per 6 months on 

Physical Activity Access 

Survey  

 

Attend all relevant 

council meetings which 

presents an opportunity to 

discuss improving access 

to sites 

 

 

R5 

 

S1 – S5 

Customer Satisfaction June 2018 - 

On site and through 

external media possible 

external meetings and 

working groups  

EA Customers and Members 

 

Contract Manager / General 

Managers 

 

Duty Managers 

 

Site Activity Managers 

Everyone Active recognise the importance of 

acknowledging customer feedback and using it 

to contribute to the long term improvement of 

its facilities and activity programming. To 

ensure we continually receive this feedback we 

will set up the following interventions;  

 

• Single Customer View Feedback System 

• 6 monthly Club and Customer Forums  

• Focus Meetings for Vulnerable Groups 

and Charities  

• Manager Clinics  

• Surveys for Parties, Holiday Camps, After 

School Sports Clubs, Adult Activities, 

Health programmes and sport courses 

 

This as well as quality assurance will be 

considered and recorded for action as part of its 

centre service improvement plan 

 

Planned feedback and 

consultation schedule 

 

Respond to customer 

feedback within 48 hours 

– records kept as evidence 

to provide to the client 

 

 

School surveys with 

school head teachers each 

term across minimum of 6 

schools – records kept as 

evidence to provide to the 

client 

 

 

 

R5 

 

S1 – S5 

 

 

 

P
age 45



20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 6 – Measurement and Review  
 
Measurements of success will be varied and comprehensive.  Dependant on the action they relate to there will be 
many different forms including: 
 

• Numbers of courses / activities delivered – both activity and coaching 

• Participation rates for activities delivered including GP referrals, courses for coaching,  

• Participation of those programmes both Throughput and ‘Unique’ visits’ 

• Participation rates of clubs, schools and other organisations in dialogue, the formulation of action plans and the 
‘signed up’ commitment of these organisations in spirit and in practice 

• Retention of participants in activity programmes 

• Conversions from exercise referral into mainstream fitness/ activity 

• Number of successful funding applications and amount of money accessed 

• Number of events held and participation  

• User & non user feedback – both qualitative and quantitative 

• The achievement of coaching qualifications 

• Sustainability of programmes  
 

P
age 46



21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 7 – Appendices   
 

 

• Clubs Directory  

• Ryedale district council Plan 2017 

• Ambition for Health vision  

• Active lives adult survey  

• Ryedale district council sport and active lives strategy to 
2023 

• NHS Scarborough and Ryedale clinical commissioning 
group strategic plan to 2019  

• Start well, live well, age well HC&V sustainability &  
Transformation plan  

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 47



Appendix 1
Clubs Directory

P
age 48



Angling 
Malton and Norton Angling Club 
Mr Fox 
Tel: 01653 600338 

Angling 
Ryedale Junior Angling Club 
Mr Craft 
Tel: 01653 696785 

Athletics 
Pickering Athletics 
Ms Lawal 
Tel: 01751 472877 

Badminton 
Coneysthorpe Badminton Club 
Pauline Foxton 

Badminton 
Pickering Badminton Club 
Sheila Blenkinsop 
Tel: 01751 476678 

Badminton  
Slingby Badminton Club 
Mrs Clark 
Tel: 01653 628625 

Basketball 
Pickering Basketball Club 
Stuart Cleary 
Tel: 01751 472846 

Bowls 
Harome Bowling Club 
Mr Hewlett 
Tel: 01439 770026 

Bowls 
Helmsley Bowling Club 
Mr Whitham 
Tel: 01439 771817 

Bowls 
Hotton-Le-Hole Bowling Club 
William Campbell-Trotter 
Tel: 01751 417657 

Bowls 
Kirbymooreside Bowling Club 
Mrs Horne 
Tel: 01751 432618 

Bowls 
Kirbymooreside Short Mat Bowling Club 
Mr Hewlett 
Tel: 01439 770026 

Bowls 
Malton Outdoor Bowls Club 
Mr Smith 

Bowls 
Pickering Bowling Club 
Mr Lloyd 
Tel: 01751 472566 

Bowls 
Malton and District Short Mat Bowls Club 
Brian 
Tel: 01751 432688 

Bowls 
Ryedale Indoor Bowls Club 
Bowling Lane, Scarborough Road 
Norton 
Malton 
YO17 7EG 
Tel: 01653 600010 

Bowls 
Settrington Bowling Club 
Mr Croser 
Tel: 01653 692522 

Bowls 
Swinton Indoor Short Mat Bowls Club 
Matt Fenwick 
Tel: 01653 694640 

Bowls 
Thornton-Le-Dale Bowling Club 
Mr Knapton 
Tel: 01751 477495 

Bowls 
Welham Bowling Club 
Michael Pole 
Tel: 01653 699624 

Canoeing 
Malton and Norton Canoe club 
Mr S Scott 

Cricket 
Ebberston Cricket Club 
Mr Winspear 
Tel: 01723 507978 

Cricket 
Heslerton Cricket Club 
Mr Nutt 
Tel: 01723 859616 

Cricket 
Hoveringham Cricket Club 
Mr Mosey 
Tel: 01439 788300 

Cricket 
Kirbymooreside Cricket Club 
Andre & Debbie Bayes 
Tel: 01904 479823 

Cricket 
Malton and Old Malton Cricket Club 
Mrs Hudson 
Tel: 01653 692223 

Cricket Cricket  
Page 49

Tel:01751


Nawton Grange Cricket Club 
Mr Collier 
Tel: 01439 771212 

Pickering Cricket Club 
Mr Mansfield 
Tel: 01751 475442 

Cricket 
Sheriff Hutton  Bridge Cricket Club 
Barrie Speake 
Tel: 01904 760096 

Cricket 
Snainton Cricket Club 
Karen Maw 
Tel: 01723 859530 

Cricket 
Thornton-Le-Dale Cricket Club 
Mr Calvert 
Tel: 01751 472533 

Cricket 
Thixendale Cricket Club 
Ms England 
Tel:  

Cricket  
Westow Cricket Club 
Ms Price 
Tel: 01653 658338 

Croquet 
David Wilson 
Tel: 01653 692207 

Cycling 
Malton Wheeler Road Club 
Matther Enticknap 
Tel: 01653 694571 

Fencing 
Welburn Fencing Club 
Donald Walker 
Tel: 01653 648026 

Football 
Amotherby and Swinton Football Club 
Mr Audsley 
Tel: 01653 658208 

Football 
Brooklyn Junior Football Club 
Mr C Lloyd 
Tel: 01653 693682 

Football 
Heslerton Football Club 
Mr Driver 
Tel: 01653 693598 

Football 
Kirbymoorside Junior Football Club 
Mr Alexander 
Tel: 01751 431162 

Football 
Norton United Football Club 
Tel: 01653 693241 

Football 
Pickering Town Community Football Club 
Keith Usher 
Tel: 01944 711410 

Football 
Pickering Town Junior Community Football Club 
Gary Dawson 
Tel: 01751 432576  

Football 
Thornton-Le-Dale Football Club 
Mr Barnes 
Tel: 01751 475134 

Football 
Malton and Norton Football Club 
Mike Snowden 
Tel: 01653 699874 

Golf 
Ganton Golf Club 
Mr Ware 
Tel: 01944 710329 

Golf 
Kirbymoorside Golf Club 
Ms Rivis 
Tel: 01751 431525 

Golf 
Malton and Norton Golf Club 
Mrs Gurnell 
Tel: 01653 697912 

Golf 
Snainton Golf Centre Ltd 
Mr Hinchliffe 
Tel: 01753 859914 

Hockey 
Malton Ladies Hockey Team 
Mrs Julie Pease 
Tel: 07763 009885 

Hockey 
Pickering All Blacks 
Mrs Todd 
Tel: 07966 536289 

Hockey 
Pickering Junior Girls Hockey Club 
Mrs Taylor-Olsson 
Tel: 07738 227586 

Hockey 
Pickering Ladies Hockey Club 
Mrs Williams 
Tel: 01751 476741 

Martial Arts 
Ryedale Judo Club 
Mr Seller 
Tel: 01751 431744 

  
Page 50



Martial Arts 
Lee Family Arts Tai Chi 
Mr P Abbott 
Tel: 01759 305221 

Martial Arts 
Malton Karate Club 
Mr S Flint 
Tel: 07814 54013 

Martial Arts 
Ryedale Dragons School of Kung Fu 

Motoring 
Malton Motoring Club 
Mr Harper 
Tel: 01904 760050 

Motoring 
Pickering and District Motor Club 
Mr Brown 
Tel: 01904 622274 

Mountain Biking 
Purple Mountain Biking 
Tel: 01751 460011 

Netball 
Pickering Netball Club 
Mr Grady 
Tel: 01751 470041 

Orienteering 
Eborienteers Orienteering Club 
Mr Speake 
Tel: 01904 760096 

Outdoor Adventure 
Peat Rigg Outdoor Training Centre 
Mr Thorpe 
Tel: 01751 417112 

Outdoor Adventure 
Ryedale Forum for over 50’s 
Mr wray 
Tel: 01653 693635 

Petangue 
Westow Petangue Club 
Mr Ainley 
Tel: 01653 693107 

Rugby 
Malton and Norton R.U.F.C 
Mr Laidler 
Tel: 01751 472228 

Squash 
Malton Squash Club 
Mr Gillbank 
Tel: 01653 699388 

Squash 
Kirbymoorside Squash Club 
Mr Goodyear 
Tel: 01751 432217 

Squash 
Thornton-Le-Dale Squash Club 
Mr P Turner 
Tel: 01751 477129 

Scuba 
Ryedale Sub Aqua Club 
Mrs Grantham 
Tel: 07949 017434 

Swimming 
Derwent Valley Amateur Swimming Club 
Mr Mark Wheatley 
Tel: 01653 693572 

Swimming 
Ryedale Swimming Club 
 

Table Tennis 
Malton and Norton Table Tennis Coaching Club 
Mr Stansfield 
Tel: 01944 738714 

Table Tennis 
Ryedale Sports Club Table Tennis Club 
Mr Gascoyne 
Tel: 01751 474954 

Table Tennis 
Amotherby Table Tennis Club 
Mr Seed 
Tel: 01653 696704 

Table Tennis 
Helmsley Table Tennis Club 
Ms R Purseglove 
Tel: 01439 771095 

Table Tennis 
Hovingham Table Tennis Club 
Mr Ellis 
Tel: 01653 628699 

Table Tennis 
Ryedale Table Tennis League 
Mr Seed 
Tel: 01653 696704 

Tennis 
Ryedale Sports Club – Tennis Club 
Peter or Karen Hill 

Tennis 
Pickering Tennis Club 
Mr Grady 
Tel: 01751 470041 

Tennis 
Sheriff Hutton Tennis Club 
Mrs Johnson 
Tel: 01347 878626 

Tennis 
Kirbymoorside Tennis Club 
Mrs Clements 
Tel: 01751 431787 
Page 51



Tennis 
Malton Tennis Club 
Ms L Dwyer 
Tel: 01439 770881 

Walking 
Ryedale Walking Group 
Mr Catterall 
Tel: 01751 476380 

 

Page 52



Appendix 2
Ryedale District Council Plan 2017

P
age 53



Vision: 

Values:  

Priorities: 

The vision for Ryedale District Council is to continue doing what matters for Ryedale... 

Openness:  
We are open and 

honest in our 
relationships and in 
our communications 

Unity:  
We will work as one 

organisation 

Decisive:  
We are willing to 

make brave 
decisions, to take on 
big challenges and 
see them through 

Passion:  
We are passionate 

about our 
communities and the 
services we deliver 

Customers & Communities 
• Designing all of our services with 

the customer at the heart of 
everything we do 

• Making the best use of resources 
to ensure maximum benefit for all 
customers and communities across 
the district, particularly the most 
vulnerable 

• Helping our partners to keep our 
communities safe and healthy 

• Supporting Communities to identify 
their needs, plan and develop local 
solutions and resilience 
 
 

 

One Ryedale 
• Working together as One Ryedale,  

members and staff share the 
PROUD values and behaviours 

• Utilising assets in supporting the 
delivery of priorities 

• Developing business opportunities 
for the Council and optimise 
income 

•  Building capacity and influencing 
policy in partnership 

• Enabling services through the 
innovative use of IT 

• Delivering the Towards 2020 
programme and anticipating 
further savings required to 2022 

Sustainable Growth 
• Promoting a strong economy with 

thriving businesses and supporting 
infrastructure  for future 
generations 

• Capitalising on our culture, leisure 
and tourism opportunities  

• Managing the environment of 
Ryedale with partners  

• Enabling the provision of housing 
that meets existing and anticipates 
future need 

• Minimising homelessness, 
improving the standard and 
availability of rented 
accommodation and supporting 
people to live independently   
 

 

Respect:  
We value every 

individual, respecting 
people for who they 

are and for their 
unique knowledge, 

skills and experience 

Performance: Customers & Communities 
• Customer satisfaction 
• Timely delivery of services 
• Take up of services 

One Ryedale 
• Budget monitoring 
• Income generated 
• Salaries monitoring 

 

Sustainable Growth 
• Economic growth  
• Housing delivery 
• Homelessness prevention 

 

	

P
age 54



Appendix 3
Ambition for Health Vision

P
age 55



Our vision

Ambition
for Health
Transforming health and social care services 
in Scarborough, Ryedale, Bridlington and Filey 

www.ambitionforhealth.co.uk

P
age 56

Julie Sykes




           

Contents
1.0    Introduction: A shared ambition for health                                                3

2.0    Our ambition                                                                                             5

3.0   Why we need to change                                                                            7

        3.1 Changing health needs of our communities                                        7

        3.2 Poor health outcomes for people living in deprived areas                    9

        3.3 Workforce pressures                                                                            12

        3.4 Financial pressures                                                                               13

4.0   A change for the better: our top priorities                                                  14

5.0   Achieving our ambition                                                                              18

2

P
age 57



           

1.0 Introduction
The organisations responsible for health and social care in Scarborough, Ryedale, Bridlington, Filey and the surrounding area
have united to create a shared ambition for the health of local communities.

This is an important time for health and social care services. We want you to be aware of our plans, why they are needed; and
to know how all of us, as local residents, can keep ourselves healthy and independent and can help to influence the health
and social care services we use.

This document sets out our ambition and explains why things need to change. Whilst it will take time for us to achieve our
ambition, it is essential that we start taking action now. As you will read and may be aware, the NHS and social care, both
nationally and locally, are facing some big challenges. Not only is our population changing and needs more care and support,
we also have the added pressure of providing this care with less money and in a jobs market where fewer people are
choosing to work in health and social care.

The only way, and we believe the best way, we can respond to these challenges is by working together to review and change
the way we do things. By acting now we will ensure our communities have access to the best information and advice to keep
well, and can access health and social care support − now and long into the future. 

All partners – across the local NHS and Council organisations listed above – have committed to supporting the Ambition for
Health Programme and to promote better health and the future sustainability of health and social care services in our
communities.

3

P
age 58



4

P
age 59



           

2.0 Our ambition 
Our ambition covers three main aspects of health and social care:

Healthy lifestyles – An ambition to help people lead healthy lifestyles, supporting them to take control of their own
health to prevent illness  

Care at home – An ambition to improve the care provided at home and in the community (sometimes called ‘out of
hospital care’) so that health and social care services work more closely together with the aim of preventing people
needing treatment in hospital 

Sustainable services – An ambition to ensure that our hospitals and other major services are of a high quality, are
financially sustainable and that we all have access to the right care, in the right place, at the right time.

These ambitions are informed by what local people tell us; and what local statistics show. They also respond to national and
local strategies, including the NHS Five Year Forward View and the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies of North Yorkshire
and the East Riding of Yorkshire.

3

1

2

5

P
age 60



6

P
age 61



           

3.0 Why we need to change
There are four main reasons why we must take action now:

Changing health
needs of
communities
creating more
demand for health
and care services 

Poor health
outcomes for
people living in
deprived areas

Workforce pressures
from an inability to
recruit and retain
staff

Financial pressures
from a reduction in
funding for health
and care services

3.1 Changing health needs of our communities 
Beyond the famous coastline and the beauty of the North York Moors National Park, our area has a significant and diverse
population. It has a mix of deprived and affluent, urban and rural. The main urban centre of Scarborough is located
approximately 40 miles away from the nearest city. It experiences significant seasonal fluctuations in population − the impact
of which can be immense on health and care services. 

Scarborough Hospital is a cornerstone of local health services and much valued by local people. However, our local health
and social care systems experience financial and workforce pressures which are increased by current national financial and
policy models. The small resident population of Scarborough and surrounding areas does not generate sufficient demand to
provide enough income to build sustainable services, which is why we need to modernise services and change the way they
are funded. It is anticipated that Bridlington Hospital would continue its role as an Elective Care Centre.

7

P
age 62



           

From a national perspective, England has an ageing population. By
2025, the number of people over 80 years old will have increased by
50% compared with 1995. We can expect the growth in our ageing
population to lead to an increase in conditions such as dementia and
an increase in unplanned hospital admissions. Much is made of the
increasing age of the population and the pressure this will place on
health and social care services. Whilst this pressure is real and cannot
be ignored, we will also seize the opportunity of a generation who are
staying healthy for longer into retirement, to drive community and
voluntary involvement. Many older people are the glue of our
communities, looking after younger generations and volunteering to
help others. 

We must also recognise that treating a person’s physical condition
only responds to part of their needs. We will establish equality
between physical and mental health and will strive to understand the
personal and social context that has led to a person needing support
from health or social care. By managing purely medical or care needs
as they appear at a moment in time, we miss an opportunity to
understand the root cause of those issues and therefore limit the
possibility of it happening again.   

We therefore need to create a model of care that places an emphasis
on prevention in the community, has less reliance on people having to
access care at hospital by providing services in alternative settings, and
maximises people’s potential to be independent through intermediate
care and re-enablement services.

EXAMPLE: A SNAPSHOT OF HEALTH IN OUR AREA 

• The gap in life expectancy between the least and 
  most deprived communities in North Yorkshire is 
  around 12.5 years for men and 5.6 years for women

• In North Yorkshire 52,790 people have common 
  mental health problems

• The leading cause of premature death (people 
  under 75 years of age) in Scarborough and Ryedale 
  is cancer, accounting for 38% of all deaths

• The number of people over 65 years of age is set to 
  increase from 12,300 to 15,800 in Ryedale and from 
  25,500 to 31,300 in Scarborough

• Public Health priorities in Scarborough include 
  reducing health inequalities in cardiovascular 
  disease, reducing the prevalence of smoking and 
  harm caused by alcohol.

8

P
age 63



EXAMPLE: THE IMPACT OF DEALING WITH INCREASING
DEMAND FOR CARE WITH LIMITED RESOURCES

• The winter of 2014/15 is a good example of how 
  high demand for health and social care services 
  combined with workforce pressures pushed the 
  health system to its limit.  

• Scarborough Hospital experienced significant 
  service pressures with a number of occasions where 
  all inpatient beds were occupied. Patients 
  experienced long waits for assessment and many 
  emergency admissions had to be diverted to other 
  hospitals. 

• This ‘winter pressure’ came after a sustained period 
  of time (approximately 18 months) where 
  Scarborough’s emergency department had been 
  unable to achieve the standard four-hour waiting 
  time. One of the consequences of high numbers of 
  emergency admissions was a high level of 
  cancellations for planned procedures (such as knee 
  and hip replacement surgery) as emergency and 
  planned patients ‘competed’ for a limited number of 
  beds.

• These types of situation can also have a knock-on 
  impact in the community, particularly for people 
  who need 24 hour care in a residential or nursing 
  home or who need help with personal care at home. 
  A number of care homes have closed in the area in 
  recent years and some that remain, alongside home 
  care services, can find it difficult to recruit and retain 
  staff.           

3.2 Poor health outcomes for people living in
deprived areas
Life expectancy for people living in our most deprived areas is reduced
by as much as 12 years compared with those living in the least
deprived areas. This shocking statistic is linked to people leading
unhealthy lifestyles, such as eating unhealthy food and being
overweight, smoking, and/or drinking too much alcohol. This can lead
to early deaths from conditions such as heart disease or stroke. We
need to continue to raise awareness of the risks of leading unhealthy
lifestyles and support people to change their behaviours. 

Unhealthy adults often start life as unhealthy children, so we need to
work closely together to support people to make good lifestyle
choices for themselves and their children in all avenues of life, be it
diet or smoking. 

We will adopt the Making Every Contact Count (MECC) approach
that encourages health and social care staff to have conversations
with people using our services based on behaviour change
methodologies (ranging from brief advice, to more advanced
behaviour change techniques), so that people are encouraged to
make healthier lifestyle choices. We will also work together to see
what we can do to address what are called the wider social
determinants (for example, the economy and employment, housing,
transport) that influence our health.

9

P
age 64



EXAMPLE: THE IMPACT OF LEADING AN UNHEALTHY
LIFESTYLE IN SCARBOROUGH 

• Levels of smoking are significantly worse than the 
  national average at 21.8% and accounted for 
  approximately 250 deaths in 2012. The smoking 
  rate for mothers at the time of delivery was 17.7 per 
  100,000 — well above the nation average of 12 per 
  100,000.

• The rate of alcohol related harm hospital stays was 
  649 per 100,000, which represents 721 stays per 
  year which is in line with the national average. In 
  2012 24.1% of people were classified as obese with 
  rates of early death from heart disease and stroke 
  trending above the England average at 92 deaths 
  per 100,000. Despite this, levels of physical activity in 
  adults are reported as above the England average.

           

We also recognise that health and social care cannot be separated
from the communities in which services operate, so we will work
closely across statutory, business and voluntary partners to explore
ways in which we can contribute to the wellbeing and sense of pride
and belonging of local communities. 

We also know that there are areas of Scarborough, Ryedale,
Bridlington and Filey which suffer from poor housing stock and have
high levels of private sector renting, with properties unsuitable for
adaptation should a person’s needs change.  Across rural areas, there
are also issues around housing such as fuel poverty and affordable
warmth, although these tend to stem from people living in isolated,
poorly insulated homes, which have become unsuitable as a person’s
age advances. Circumstances such as these increase the risk of people
suffering either a physical injury such as a fall, or of becoming lonely
and isolated with the subsequent deterioration of mental health and
wellbeing. We will work closely with communities, housing providers
and landlords to ensure that housing is suitable, safe and adaptable as
people age with a view to ensuring people are able to remain
independent and in their own homes for as long as possible.

10

P
age 65



11

P
age 66



EXAMPLE: THE IMPACT OF NOT HAVING ENOUGH SPECIALIST
CLINICAL STAFF

In June 2015, the local NHS had no choice but to make
changes to how patients received immediate care following
a stroke.

Typically, a stroke patient would receive their immediate
care (hyper acute) from a stroke consultant at Scarborough
Hospital, and then be moved to a different part of the
hospital or sent home for rehabilitation. Two stroke
consultants working at Scarborough Hospital retired earlier
this year and, despite numerous attempts over a long period
of time, efforts to recruit replacement consultants had only
limited success. 

In order to maintain safety, measures were introduced which
meant that any patient suffering a stroke in the Scarborough
area would first be taken to Scarborough Hospital for initial
assessment and thrombolysis (clot busting drugs) if
appropriate, before being transferred to York Hospital to
receive hyper acute consultant care (typically required for
around three days).

The need to introduce this change was solely because of an
inability to recruit the specialist staff required to provide a
safe service in Scarborough Hospital.

There is also an opportunity to invest in workplace health
and wellbeing for colleagues across the local health and
social care system. This will contribute to their delivery of the
best care possible to those they serve; and also help keep
employee absence rates low.

           

3.3 Workforce pressures
Recruitment and retention of both clinical and social care staff in our
area is a huge problem. Not having enough specialist health staff to
provide care can lead to services becoming unsafe, which then means
alternative solutions must be found, usually at short notice. In social
care a lack of social workers and occupational therapists can lead to
delays in assessments and hospital discharges, whilst a lack of care
workers can result in understaffing in care homes or the inability of
the sector to meet demand especially at peak times, which again
impacts on the health service. Where any part of the system is
understaffed, this situation can result in cancellations to planned
treatments or temporary arrangements being put in place, which
cause disruption for everyone involved. 

Workforce issues are not unique to our area; they are a national issue
which will take time to address. We need to provide services in
different ways which can be delivered by current levels of staff and
which attract new people into the health and social care workforce.
We will explore how to make the NHS and social care more attractive
as employers and care as a career of choice.

The seasonal nature of employment in the area (linked with tourism)
is not an issue that can be solved easily. We will look to develop ways
of working with the current labour market to create a sustainable and
predictable staffing base for all services.

12

P
age 67



           

3.4 Financial pressures
In 2012, York Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust took over Scarborough and Bridlington Hospitals. This change included
a significant amount of financial support provided by NHS England to help with the transfer of services. This financial support
ends in 2017. 

The way hospital services are currently provided is not sustainable without this funding.

The extent of the financial challenge should not be underestimated – by 2017 the budget for hospital care will be reduced by
at least £17million compared with today. The Local Authority picture is no less challenging, with Councils having to make
savings in social care of at least £6million locally by 2020.

We do not believe additional financial support will be made available to the NHS and other local health and social care services
in our area. Therefore, to meet the challenges presented by this financial reality,, we must seek new and alternative ways to
provide care which are just as effective in terms of health outcomes for local people. As an example, health and social care will
need to work closely together to avoid duplication and deliver joined-up care. 

It is worth remembering that even with spending reductions, the NHS and local government in our area invest over £200
million each year in health and social care services. In addition, significant numbers of people, who are not eligible for public
funding, fund their own social care. Investment hasn’t ceased during this period of financial pressure, and we will ensure that
future investments are also made wisely and managed well.

13

P
age 68



EXAMPLE: PREVENTION IS BETTER THAN CURE

North Yorkshire County Council and NHS Scarborough and
Ryedale Clinical Commissioning Group are funding a new
team of Living Well Co-ordinators, to work with people who
are on the cusp of needing care. This programme will focus
on making the most of the support that exists in local
communities and help individuals to maintain or re-gain
their confidence. Alongside this, the Stronger Communities
Programme is already supporting voluntary and community
organisations to develop and maintain community transport
schemes, improve youth services, maintain libraries and
provide support to older and disabled people. 

The County Council and Borough and District Councils are
also working together to build more extra care and
supported accommodation, so that more people can live
independently, with help available if it’s needed. The
efficient use of Disabled Facilities Grants will also aid those
in private-sector accommodation to make necessary home
adaptations. 

And there’s support too for making healthier lifestyle
choices. New Stop Smoking Services are being developed
and the Public Health service is funding Scarborough
Borough and Ryedale District Councils to pilot a weight
management programme for individuals aged 18 who are
obese. There’s also some targeted work to increase take-up
of NHS Health Checks amongst farming communities and in
the most deprived wards in Scarborough: Castle, Central,
Falsgrave Park, Northstead, Ramshill, and Stepney, as well
as with homeless people.

           

4.0 A change
for the better:
our top priorities 
The challenges detailed above are having a significant impact on our
ability to deliver the quality of care that local people and services
expect. For example, not having enough staff to provide care can
often result in lengthy waiting times and cancelled appointments, all
of which lead to a bad experience for people.  

Although the way services are provided in the future may look quite
different, they will continue to be provided to the best possible
standard and, where possible, to a better standard than they are now.
We will be active learners from good and poor practice.

14

P
age 69



15

P
age 70



EXAMPLE: DO PATIENTS REALLY NEED TO BE IN HOSPITAL?

In 2014 we undertook an audit of occupied beds on wards at
Scarborough Hospital, Bridlington and Malton Community Hospitals
and two residential/rehabilitation care homes. The aim of the audit
was to see how many of the patients occupying beds were
receiving the appropriate level of care for their needs, which ranges
from level one to level five:

• Level 1 — Intensive care
• Level 2 — Acute care
• Level 3 — Specialist rehabilitation
• Level 4 — Rehabilitation in own home or rehabilitation/care 
  home
• Level 5 — Fit for hospital discharge

The findings were very interesting. Out for the 371 patients included
in the audit, 127 were deemed to be receiving a level of care that
was unnecessary for their needs:

This was mainly patients receiving level 4 care (rehabilitation) or
level 5 care (fit for hospital discharge). 

In summary, this means that 34% of the patients included in the
audit were either receiving a level of care above what they needed
(level 4) or were still in hospital when they no longer need to be
(level 5). If patients reside in an inappropriate part of the system
relative to their needs, it wastes precious resources and does the
patient a disservice.           

In working towards achieving our ambitions, we will focus on ten major
priorities:

1      Prevention, self-care and helping people of all ages to lead healthy and 
       active lifestyles – with a particular emphasis on encouraging a smoke 
       free generation

2     Improving emotional health, through better mental health services and 
       helping people to live well with dementia

3     Providing services that are of the expected quality and safety, within 
       budget

4     Securing a sustainable future for Scarborough Hospital, in particular 
       maintaining core services including the care of the emergency patient, 
       obstetrics (pregnancy and childbirth) and paediatrics (services for 
       babies, children and young people). Bridlington Hospital would 
       continue as an Elective Care Centre.

5     When people do need to be admitted to hospital, ensuring they return 
       home as soon as they are fit and ready to do so 

6     Providing more services in the community wherever possible, including 
       better support for carers and more choices for people to live in their 
       own homes with support, leading to a consequent reduction in 
       unnecessary admissions to hospital and to 24 hour care

7     Supporting people to have more choice about where they die

8     Working together to align services, reduce duplication and ensure a 
       positive experience of health and social care for each individual

9     Listening to, and shifting power, to patients and the public, including 
       through better information and advice send the creation of shared 
       records 

10   Developing our workforce and recruit and retain the right people for 
       the right roles 

66%

34%

Unnecessary

Appropriate

16

P
age 71



17

P
age 72



5.0 Achieving
our ambition 
We are still very much at the start of our journey. However, we have
set ourselves a clear direction of travel. Over the coming months we
will begin to develop more detailed plans about the changes we need
to make. We are committed to involving you in this process. We are
still very much at the start of our journey. However, we have set
ourselves a clear direction of travel. Over the coming months we will
begin to develop more detailed plans about the changes we need to
make. We are committed to involving you in this process. 

Involving you through communications and
engagement

It is important we raise awareness amongst local people about how
we can work together to overcome the challenges presented in this
document, for example how all of us who live locally can lead a
healthier lifestyle or how the NHS and local government can use
resources better.

           

As we use your feedback to help define our proposals and
plans further, there will be additional opportunities to have
your say. For example, we are committed to consulting on
services that may look significantly different in the future,
and acting on guidance and feedback from local Health
Overview and Scrutiny Committees and independent bodies
such as HealthWatch. These Committees/bodies also
double-check that our plans and proposals meet our
statutory obligations.

If you have any comments on the contents of this
document, or would like to make suggestions for how you
think we can achieve our ambition for health, we’d like to
hear from you. Here’s how you can get in touch:

By email:   ambitionforhealth@nhs.net

By letter:

Your opportunity to get involved in shaping
our plans begins now. 

Ambition for Health
c/o NHS Scarborough & Ryedale CCG
Scarborough Town Hall — York House
St Nicholas Street
Scarborough
North Yorkshire
YO11 2HG 

18

P
age 73



19

P
age 74



           

Ambition
for Health
Transforming health and social care services 
in Scarborough, Ryedale, Bridlington and Filey 

P
age 75



Appendix 4
Active Lives Adult Survey

P
age 76



1

active lives
adult survey

November 16/17
report

Published March 2018

P
age 77



welcome contents

▪ Levels of activity

▪ Types of activity

▪ Volunteering

key information

This report presents data from the 

Active Lives Adult Survey for the 

period mid-November 2016 to mid-

November 2017. Data is presented 

for adults aged 16+ in England. 

release dates

This release: 22 March 2018 

Next release: 11 October 2018

Find out more
For further information on the data 

presented in this report, please visit the 

Active Lives section of our website. 

3

10

12

2

Welcome to the third Active Lives Adult Survey Report summarising activity levels 

in England from November 2016 to November 2017.

With only two full years of data it is too early to meaningfully talk about trends 

over time, but based on these results, it is fair to say that the picture is one of 

stability.

Alongside presenting the latest national picture of engagement in sport and 

physical activity, we have included references to where there have been 

statistically significant changes in the last year, which you will see indicated with 

arrows. Where there is no change, or it is within the margin of error and therefore 

too small to be confident there is a genuine difference, it is recorded as ‘no 

change’.

The intention of this report is to give the big picture in an easily digestible format. 

For those who want to explore the data further, there are links in this report to the 

data tables. If you would like to carry out your own analysis of the data, I would 

recommend you take a look at our Active Lives Analysis Tool, which can be found 

at activelives.sportengland.org. The tool will enable you to explore the data and 

focus on your own areas of interest.

Finally, the fourth Active Lives Adult Survey Report (May 2017 to 2018) will be 

released in October 2018, when two full years of volunteering data will enable us 

to draw comparisons and shed light on how levels of volunteering to support sport 

and physical activity are changing.

Lisa O’Keefe 

Insight Director

▪ Notes 18

▪ Local level data 16

▪ Definitions 17

▪ Wellbeing 14

P
age 78

https://www.sportengland.org/activelives/
https://activelives.sportengland.org/


3

levels
of activity

this chapter presents 
information on three 
levels of activity:

• inactive (less than 30 

minutes a week)

• fairly active
(30-149 minutes a week)

• active (at least 150 

minutes a week)

definition

Note: We count most sport and physical activity, but exclude gardening. 

However, Public Health England does include gardening in its local level 

physical activity data. You can view the PHE data here. This will be 

updated in early April to include the November 2016/17 data.

THE GRAPHICS BELOW SHOW THE ACTIVITIES WE INCLUDE – AND WHEN 
THEY COUNT (FOR ADULTS AGED 16+):

WHAT DO WE MEAN BY PHYSICAL ACTIVITY?

P
age 79

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/physical-activity
https://www.sportengland.org/media/13216/v-mass-markets-digital-content-editorial-team-active-lives-march-2018-tables-report_tables-1-4_levels-of-activity-new-2.xlsx


4

levels of activity

headlines
Our data shows that 6 in 10 adults (27.7m) are getting the health benefits from achieving 150+ minutes of activity a week.

12.5% 61.8%25.7%

25.7% of people (11.5M)
do less than 30 minutes 
a week

12.5% (5.6M) are fairly
active but don’t reach
150 minutes a week

61.8% (27.7m) do 150 minutes
or more a week

P
age 80

https://www.sportengland.org/media/13216/v-mass-markets-digital-content-editorial-team-active-lives-march-2018-tables-report_tables-1-4_levels-of-activity-new-2.xlsx


5

12-month comparison
Activity levels have not changed in the last 12 months.

levels of activity

how we measure change
Active Lives figures are based on the 

response of 200,000 adults, which we 

then scale up to provide an England-

wide picture. That means there will 

naturally be small fluctuations when we 

compare the figures we have now with 

12 months ago. 

In accordance with Government 

Statistical Service good practice 

guidance, we highlight changes within 

the report where we are confident that 

there are genuine differences. If the 

data is showing only small differences 

which are within the margin of error, 

they are noted as “no change”.

P
age 81

https://www.sportengland.org/media/13216/v-mass-markets-digital-content-editorial-team-active-lives-march-2018-tables-report_tables-1-4_levels-of-activity-new-2.xlsx


6

levels of activity

socio-economic groups
Our data shows there are significant disparities between different socio-economic groups. 

• People who are long term unemployed or have never worked (NS-SEC 8) are the most likely to be inactive (38%) and the least 

likely to be active (49%)

• People who are in managerial, administrative and professional occupations (NS-SEC 1-2) are the least likely to be inactive (17%)

and the most likely to be active (71%).

There have been no changes compared to 12 months ago for any of these groups.

Note: Full details of what the NS-SEC categories mean can be found on the definitions page.

P
age 82

https://www.sportengland.org/media/13216/v-mass-markets-digital-content-editorial-team-active-lives-march-2018-tables-report_tables-1-4_levels-of-activity-new-2.xlsx


7

levels of activity

gender
Activity levels have not changed 

compared to 12 months ago for either 

men or women, so we continue to 

observe the same gap between them. 

Men (64% or 14.0m) are more likely to 

be active than women (60% or 13.7m). 

P
age 83

https://www.sportengland.org/media/13216/v-mass-markets-digital-content-editorial-team-active-lives-march-2018-tables-report_tables-1-4_levels-of-activity-new-2.xlsx


8

levels of activity

disability
There have been no changes in activity 

levels among people with a disability 

compared to 12 months ago

Inactivity is more common for those with a 

disability (43%) than those without (21%). 

Furthermore, it increases sharply as the 

number of impairments an individual has 

increases – 51% of those with three or more 

impairments are inactive.

This is important because over half of all 

disabled people (52%) have three or more 

impairments, while 21% have two 

impairments and 26% have just one 

impairment (of 14 impairment types), source 

Life Opportunities Survey June 09/12.

P
age 84

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/life-opportunities-survey
https://www.sportengland.org/media/13216/v-mass-markets-digital-content-editorial-team-active-lives-march-2018-tables-report_tables-1-4_levels-of-activity-new-2.xlsx


9

levels of activity

age
Inactivity levels generally increase with age, but the sharpest increase comes between ages 75 and 84 (48%) and age 85+ (71%).

Whilst activity levels have fallen slightly among the two age groups covering 16-34 year olds, with fewer achieving 150+ minutes a 

week, 75% of young people reman active. 

In contrast, activity levels have increased slightly among the 55-64 and 65-74 age groups.

inactive (less than 30 minutes a week) active (150+ minutes a week)P
age 85

https://www.sportengland.org/media/13216/v-mass-markets-digital-content-editorial-team-active-lives-march-2018-tables-report_tables-1-4_levels-of-activity-new-2.xlsx


10

types 
of activity

this chapter presents 
data broken down by 
activity group and looks 
at those who have 
participated at least 
twice in the last 28 days. 

looking at participation at least twice in the last 28 

days provides:

• an entry level view of participation overall

• a useful measure of engagement in different sports 

and physical activities

• an understanding of the contribution of activities to 

achievement of 150+ minutes a week

participation – our definition

P
age 86

https://www.sportengland.org/media/13215/v-mass-markets-digital-content-editorial-team-active-lives-march-2018-tables-report_tables-5-9_twice-in-the-last-28-days.xlsx


11

Types of activity

adults achieving 150+ minutes of activity a week do so through a blend of activities 

see the notes page for more details.

Whist overall activity levels 

remain stable, we have seen 

some changes in the amount 

of people taking part in some 

of these activities.

Analysis of numbers engaging in activities at least twice in the last 28 days helps us understand the 

contribution of different activities.

P
age 87

https://www.sportengland.org/media/13215/v-mass-markets-digital-content-editorial-team-active-lives-march-2018-tables-report_tables-5-9_twice-in-the-last-28-days.xlsx


12

Creating a lifelong sporting habit

definitionvolunteering 
at least twice in the
last 12 months

A volunteer makes all the 

difference. And it benefits both 

the volunteer and the person 

receiving the support. Whether 

it’s serving refreshments, 

coaching a player or assisting 

people with disabilities to take 

part, we need people to give 

their time. 

THEY HAVE TAKEN PART IN A 
VOLUNTEERING ROLE TO 
SUPPORT SPORT/PHYSICAL 
ACTIVITY

WE COUNT A PERSON AS HAVING VOLUNTEERED IF:

A PERSON HAS VOLUNTEERED 
AT LEAST TWICE IN THE LAST 
12 MONTHS

(A full list of roles can be

found in our definitions at the

end of this report on page 17).

P
age 88

http://www.sportengland.org/media/13030/active-lives-nov-16-17_tables-10-13_volunteering.xlsx


13

Further breakdowns on the profile 

of volunteers can be found in the 

data tables linked to this report

volunteering

P
age 89

http://www.sportengland.org/media/13030/active-lives-nov-16-17_tables-10-13_volunteering.xlsx


14

Creating a lifelong sporting habit

definitionwellbeing, 
individual and 
community 
development

Data linked to the following 

metrics for different levels of 

engagement in sport and 

physical activity can be found in 

the data tables linked to this 

report:

• Mental wellbeing

• Individual development

• Social and community 

development

P
age 90

http://www.sportengland.org/media/13031/active-lives-nov-16-17_tables-14-19_wellbeing-individual-and-community-development.xlsx


15

wellbeing, individual and 
community development

some activity is good, more is better 

in terms of mental wellbeing

volunteering is positively associated 

with individual development

Further breakdowns across all six metrics linked to both activity levels 

and volunteering can be found in the data tables linked to this report

P
age 91

http://www.sportengland.org/media/13031/active-lives-nov-16-17_tables-14-19_wellbeing-individual-and-community-development.xlsx


16

Data for local areas, including, 

nine regions, 44 County Sports 

Partnerships, and 353 local 

authorities are available for the 

following measures:

• levels of activity

• participating at least 
twice in the last 28 days

• volunteering at least 
twice in the last 12 months

Details of change in the last 12 

months can be found in the tables.

Overall

local 
level data

activity across england

P
age 92

https://www.sportengland.org/media/13216/v-mass-markets-digital-content-editorial-team-active-lives-march-2018-tables-report_tables-1-4_levels-of-activity-new-2.xlsx
https://www.sportengland.org/media/13215/v-mass-markets-digital-content-editorial-team-active-lives-march-2018-tables-report_tables-5-9_twice-in-the-last-28-days.xlsx
http://www.sportengland.org/media/13030/active-lives-nov-16-17_tables-10-13_volunteering.xlsx


17

definitions moderate activity is defined as activity 

where you raise your heart rate.

vigorous activity is where you’re out of 

breath or are sweating (you may not be 

able to say more than a few words 

without pausing for breath).

NS-SEC groups are defined as:

• NS-SEC 1-2: Managerial, 

administrative and professional 

occupations (e.g. chief executive, 

doctor, actor, journalist)

• NS-SEC 3: Intermediate 

occupations (e.g. auxiliary nurse, 

secretary)

• NS-SEC 4: Self employed and small 

employers

• NS-SEC 5: Lower supervisory and 

technical occupations (e.g. plumber, 

gardener, train driver)

• NS-SEC 6-7: Semi-routine and 

routine occupations (e.g. shop 

assistant, bus driver)

• NS-SEC 8: Long term unemployed 

or never worked

• NS-SEC 9: Students and other.

limiting disability is defined as an 

individual reporting they have a 

physical or mental health condition or 

illness that has lasted or is expected to 

last 12 months or more, and that this 

has a substantial effect on their ability 

to do normal daily activities.

volunteering roles are defined as:

• Provided transport: To help people 

other than family members take part 

in sport 

• Coached or instructed: For an 

individual or team(s) in a sport or 

recreational physical activity (other 

than solely for family members)

• Refereed, umpired, or officiated: At a 

sports match, competition or event

• Administrative or committee role: For 

a sports organisation, activity or 

event (e.g. chairman, treasurer, 

social secretary, first aider, welfare 

officer)

• Stewarded or marshalled: At a 

sports activity or event

• Provided any other help: For a sport 

or recreational physical activity (e.g. 

helping with refreshments, sports kit 

or equipment).

Link to more information on
measures and demographics

P
age 93

http://www.sportengland.org/media/13018/active-lives-adult-survey-technical-notes-nov-16-17.pdf
https://www.sportengland.org/media/11494/20170126-technical-summary-year-1-report-final.pdf


18

notes

link to more information on
measures and demographics

the achieved sample was 198,911 (16+). 

data have been weighted to Office for National Statistics (ONS) population measures for 

geography and key demographics.

confidence intervals can be found in the linked tables. These indicate that if repeated 

samples were taken and confidence intervals computed for each sample, 95% of the 

intervals would contain the true value. Only significant differences are reported within 

the commentary. Where results are reported as being the same for two groups, any 

differences fall within the margin of error.

significance tests can be found in the linked tables. The tests indicate that if repeated 

samples were taken, 95% of the time we would get similar findings, i.e. we can be 

confident that the differences seen in our sampled respondents are reflective of the 

population. When sample sizes are smaller, confidence intervals are larger, meaning 

differences between estimates need to be greater to be considered statistically 

significant. 

population totals are estimated values and have been calculated using ONS mid-2016 

estimates. Confidence intervals also apply to these. More detail can be found here.

fitness Activities

During the first six months of surveying, a number of respondents were double counting 

a gym session and the individual activities that they did within the gym. We resolved this 

problem by re-wording the question, however, this means the first point at which we can 

report this data is May 16/17. We can however show 12 month change for fitness 

classes and interval sessions which were unaffected by this.

revisions to the Nov 15/16 data relating to levels of activity are presented as part of this 

release with full breakdowns available in the tables. For more details please see our 

website.

sport spectating
While not covered in this report, 

data tables showing the number of 

people attending live sports events 

form part of this release.

the active lives adult survey 

is a push-to-web survey
Carried out by Ipsos MORI, it 

involves postal mailouts inviting 

participants to complete the 

survey online. The survey can be 

completed on mobile or desktop 

devices. A paper questionnaire is 

also sent out to maximise 

response rates. More information 

on the survey can be found here.

P
age 94

http://www.sportengland.org/media/13018/active-lives-adult-survey-technical-notes-nov-16-17.pdf
https://www.sportengland.org/media/11494/20170126-technical-summary-year-1-report-final.pdf
http://www.sportengland.org/media/13018/active-lives-adult-survey-technical-notes-nov-16-17.pdf
https://www.sportengland.org/research/active-lives-survey/a-revision-to-active-lives-stats/
http://www.sportengland.org/media/13029/active-lives-nov-16-17_tables-20-22_sports-spectating.xlsx
http://www.sportengland.org/activelives


Appendix 5
Ryedale District Council Sport and 
Active Lives Strategy to 2023P

age 95



ANNEX A 

 

 

 

 

 

Ryedale District Council 

Sport and Active Lives Strategy  

2013 -2023 

 

 P Long  

Head of Environment, Streetscene, Facilities, ICT  

Page 96



2 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

Forward 

I am pleased to introduce and endorse this strategy ‘More People, More Active, More Often’. 

This document is the result of many months of research, local consultation and deliberation 

involving organisations, members and community group’s right across Ryedale. My thanks 

to all involved.  

The challenge at the heart of the strategies aspiration is the pressure facing the District 

Council through reduced Local Authority funding. As such where direct service provision 

remains it will need to demonstrate optimised value for money with facilities and products 

that reflect customers service and quality expectations. The actions put forward in this plan 

represent a considered response to these issues. 

Increasing the number of people who are active will have a significant impact on the health 

and well-being of the residents of our district. With the changes envisaged regarding our 

National Health Service this will become ever more pertinent regarding Local Authority 

responsibility. It is now beyond doubt that more activity will help both our physical health and 

our mental health, including reducing heart disease, diabetes, falls in the elderly, dementia, 

strokes and much else. There are also effects on social isolation which are especially 

important for older people. Increased activity has a part to play in reducing rising levels of 

obesity linked to unhealthy diet and an unhealthy and sedentary lifestyle. However the 

obesity pandemic has been a generation in the making; change will not happen overnight 

and will be a long term process.  

As such the importance of emphasising ‘active lives’ rather than ‘sports’ or ‘physical activity’ 

is important in several ways. We must avoid turning away people who in the past have not 

been active because they thought it was all about team games or because they had too 

much pressure on their time. Through an increasingly promotional and enabling role we 

must help people to do whatever activity they are able to do and to incorporate this into their 

everyday life. The benefits of ‘active lives’ is not just all about health, secondary benefits of 

such activities as cycling and walking can save on transport costs, reduce congestion and 

pollution. 

Active recreation is especially important for children and young people. This should include 

team sports and other competitive activity, and helping talented young people achieve the 

very best they can, it is important for them and for Ryedale, but it also means helping young 

people to develop active lifestyles which will be sustainable for the rest of their life and 

through example be passed on through future generations.  

We need a plan to make sure we are all pulling in the same direction, working towards the 

same goals to give the current and future generation of people in Ryedale the best possible 

opportunity to reap the benefits of being active. 

 

Cllr L Cowling 

Leader - Ryedale District Council  

Page 97



3 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

Introduction  
 

In producing this strategy Ryedale District Council (RDC) have not only worked with a host 

of partner organisations and many local residents, but also internally have drawn upon 

officers from across the Council whose work could potentially impact on the provision of 

sport and active living opportunities in Ryedale.  

This strategy sets the agenda to improve the quality of sport and active recreation 

opportunities for people in the area. Ryedale District Council will focus their efforts on 

facilitating and enabling people to have a more active life, the aim being to improve 

opportunities and increase participation.  

At the heart of the strategies aspiration is the pressure facing the District Council through 

reduced Local Authority funding. Where direct service provision remains it will need to 

demonstrate optimised value for money with facilities and products that reflect customers 

service and quality expectations. As such this is not an assets-focused strategy, but a 

strategy for developing and encouraging greater collaboration, partnership and more 

effective use of Ryedale’s limited resources. 

Within Ryedale, sport and active recreation is not focussed solely on participation within 

formal sports facilities. Ryedale is an area of outstanding natural beauty its natural assets 

provide a wealth of informal opportunities for local people and visitors to the area to take part 

in a variety of pursuits including rambling, walking, running, MBT duathlon, orienteering, 

climbing, canoeing, cycling etc. In particular Ryedale is recognised as a world class venue 

for mountain and road biking, hosting the British Mountain Bike Championship 2009 and UCI 

Mountain Bike World Cup at Dalby Forest and Pro Sprint eliminator (around the streets of 

Pickering) in 2010 and 2011, the Tour of Britain stage 2009, Ryedale Grand Prix & Ryedale 

Rumble 2009 and 2010 and the 2012 National Road Race Championships. 

 

This Sport and Active Lives Strategy (hereafter the ‘Strategy’) has been developed to 

provide a clear vision and framework for the development of sports activities, facilities and 

services within Ryedale to 2023. The intention is for it to be realistic and deliverable 

regarding the practicalities of reduced Local Government funding and founded on a clear 

identification and understanding of the needs of the community, and the role and 

responsibilities of RDC and stakeholders, the ultimate aim being to improve satisfaction 

regarding sporting infrastructure and get ‘More People, More Active, More Often’. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 98



4 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

Vision and Themes 

 

 

 

Aims: 

By 2023 we want to see more people in Ryedale enjoying the benefits associated with a 

more active lifestyle. This means: 

 More people aspiring to take part in sport and active recreation 

 More people actually taking part in sport and active recreation 

 More people becoming involved as volunteers in sport and active recreation 

 Increased participation amongst people already taking part in sport and active recreation 

 Increased satisfaction with facilities and opportunities for sport and active recreation in 

the Ryedale area 

 Increased usage across all Ryedale owned leisure facilities  

 

Objectives: 

We particularly want to see: 

 An increase year on year of participation in sport and active recreation in Ryedale 

(based on a baseline of the 2009/11 Active People Survey results)  

 Increased capacity within the local community to enable the above through support of 

 existing and creation of; new sports clubs, coaches and officials and improved facilities 

 Engagement of young people, adult males and hard to reach groups such as people 

with a disability, and older people to encourage and facilitate opportunities for them to 

remain healthy by being active. 

 To promote, maintain and develop quality indoor and outdoor leisure facilities and 

support the utilisation of village halls etc as small community sports facilities in the 

villages and small towns. 

 To support the development of better levels of public transport, safer roads and walking 

and cycling infrastructure, encouraging sustainable travel and improved transport to 

facilities in the principal settlements 

 

Overarching Themes  

 

During the consultation processes three complementary themes emerged that will help us to 

achieve this overall vision of increasing participation and the wider benefits this brings as set 

against the current challenges of the reduced public sector funding. These are: 

 Activating Change 

 Active More Often 

 Active Places and Spaces 

 

Key actions are summarised below. Further and more comprehensive detail is listed in the Action 

Plan on page 8.  

 

Our Vision is for everyone in Ryedale to enjoy an active, adventurous, and healthy 

lifestyle as an integral part of everyday life, encouraging  

More People, to become More Active, More Often. 

Page 99



5 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

Activating Change 
 

 

 

 

 

 

A clear and consistent message of the overall importance of sport and an active lifestyle is 

the intention of this strategy and its actions. Making sport and active recreation part of every 

day life is at the core of developing healthy lifestyles, however other elements such as 

healthy eating, sensible alcohol consumption and reduction in smoking make a big 

contribution. Regarding this aspect the intent is to support partners in the health sector to 

help raise awareness and promote the benefits of a holistic approach to health and wellbeing 

in the widest sense.  

Ryedale is fortunate in already having a wide range of good quality private and voluntary 

sector sport and active recreation providers. The strategy seeks to support these identifying 

and promoting local clubs, supporting coach/volunteer education and helping them target 

external funding streams in order to enhance quality and long term sustainability. 

Better communication regarding the range of activities provided should have positive 

impacts on people’s engagement, awareness and participation. In this the role of North 

Yorkshire Sport is seen as fundamental to ensure better communication capture and co-

ordination.  

Key Actions: 

 Through North Yorkshire Sport (NYS) maintain an up to date club and activity data base 

for Ryedale based activities on a dedicated section of NYS website for residents and 

visitors information. 

 Promotion of North Yorkshire Sport (NYS) website to encourage awareness of Ryedale 

clubs and activities. 

 With support from NYS review and reconfigure the role of Active Ryedale to facilitate co-

ordination and monitoring regarding the encouragement and development of volunteers 

and coaches local to Ryedale. 

 Through NYS offer guidance to clubs regarding funding programmes available to them. 

 Promote benefits of sport and physical activity through support of and co-ordination with 

NYS and PCT Health and Wellbeing campaigns. 

 Maintain the existing revenue funding for Active Ryedale and NYS to facilitate the 

above. 

 

 

 

 

 

To raise the profile of sport and active recreation throughout Ryedale and increase 

the capacity and awareness of opportunities to participate by working in partnership 

with the public, private and voluntary sectors. 

Page 100



6 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

Active More Often 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Taking account of Ryedale’s below average participation rates in sport and active recreation; 

in addition to promotion of existing opportunities, development of new ones should be 

encouraged and promoted. These need to be varied in offer regarding a wider or more 

targeted appeal for differing age groups and gender. Activities need to be convenient, being 

capable of fitting into busy life schedules in order to encourage people to accommodate 

becoming more active generally as a lifestyle choice.  

 

Following re-procurement of leisure delivery regarding Ryedale Council owned leisure 

facilities, the strategy will assist in encouraging new facility programmes and initiatives.  

Within this process the importance is recognised of setting challenging but realistic targets, 

monitoring progress and reviewing outcomes. 

 

Through working with partners – the strategy encourages and supports NYS initiatives and 

the development of rural activity centres utilising village halls, play grounds, voluntary sector 

facilities etc to make activities local as possible and accessible to a wider population 

catchments. Funding is to be considered, as applicable, through Community Investment 

Fund (CIF), Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and section106 monies.  

 

Finally the strategy will promote, support and encourage the development of open space 

type activities for those not wishing to participate in more formalised activity. 

 

Key Actions: 

 Support and promote NYS Sportivate programmes targeted at 20-25 range. 

 Procure and provide financial assistance for new leisure arrangement changing from 

grant to contract in September 2014. 

 Continue to provide and maintain financial assistance to ensure provision of a leisure 

service run through RDC facilities once new contract awarded. 

 Following a procurement process consider initiatives to increase participation through 

council owned facilities and introduction of performance monitoring measures. 

 Consider and cost – as part of procurement process of new leisure contract – 

introducing an ‘Action Van’ to rural areas, providing and co-ordinating targeted activities 

and exercise advice etc for the more elderly, utilising village halls, residential homes, 

open space etc. 

 Encourage healthy workplace initiatives within RDC. 

 Support and encourage the use of outdoor space and the development of 

outdoor/adventure play for adults and children including green gyms, trim trails etc. 

 Support the development of walk/cycle to school travel plans. 

 

Engaging and motivating people to be more active and develop healthy lifestyles from 

birth through to later life to enhance their quality of life, health and to support 

independent living. 

Page 101



7 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

Active Places & Spaces 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Quality of sports facilities is closely linked to participation and therefore it is vital in order to 

meet today’s higher customer expectations that steps are taken to ensure we have the best 

available facilities in the District. 

 

Existing Leisure facility infrastructure throughout Ryedale is generally good with the potential 

exception of swimming pool provision which at best could be described as about adequate. 

Ryedale DC currently runs two pools, Ryedale Pool and Derwent Pool and supports 

Helmsley Pool through provision of a small grant. For both Ryedale pools to be retained and 

maintained to a good quality further financial investment is required. This presents the 

District with a challenge regarding reduced Local Authority Funding.  

 

Maintenance and refurbishment of both Ryedale Pools over the next ten years is considered 

to be the most efficient and cost effective strategy, however over this period an options 

appraisal will need to consider the cost implications of continuing funding Derwent Pool – the 

older pool of the two - beyond a further 10-12 years. Options will need to consider further 

funding or future investment into a new facility. 

 
Finally the strategy supports improvement to road infrastructure, local transport 

arrangements and the development of and improvement to foot and cycle paths for 

transport, sport and recreational purposes. 

 

Key Actions: 

 Support maintenance funding for Ryedale Pool leisure facility to maintain quality of 
existing provision over the next 20 years. 

 Support maintenance funding for Derwent Pool leisure facility to enhance quality of 
existing provision over the next 10-12 years. 

 Support continuation of grant funding for Malton School and Helmsley Pool. 

 Consider options regarding closure of Derwent Pool from 2023 onwards and new build. 

 Consider investment into better signage for open spaces. 

 Consider lease arrangements at Northern Ryedale Leisure Centre as part of 
procurement process. 

 Support applications for improvement to village halls/voluntary clubs infrastructure, play 
areas through Section 106/CIL/CIF applications, as applicable, to enhance rural leisure 
service provision. 

 Support improvements to road infrastructure and extension of cycle networks to 
encourage sustainable travel options. 

 
 

 

Support and develop good quality indoor and outdoor leisure facilities and encourage 
the development of safer roads and sustainable travel infrastructure. 

Page 102



8 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

ACTION PLAN 

Activating Change 

ACTION HOW DELIVERED LEAD PARTNERS POTENTIAL FUNDING PRIORITY 
Update  and maintain a detailed  club 
and activity database for Ryedale 
based activities ensuring key 
information including contacts is up to 
date 

Undertaken by North Yorkshire Sport (NYS) by re-
negotiation of existing agreement. 
NYS to mailshot clubs regarding any new  initiatives 
etc.  

RDC North Yorkshire 
Sport 

Utilises existing  NYS £5K 
budget 

2013 

 Update sports web site Sign post from RDC site onto leisure service provider 
site and create new dedicated section of North 
Yorkshire Sport website create Ryedale club activity 
data base  by re-negotiation  of existing agreement 

RDC 
ICT 
 

North Yorkshire 
Sport 

Utilises existing  NYS £5K 
budget 

2013 

Link More People, More Active, More 
Often from RDC website to NYS site 
and from NYS site to other partners. 

ICT to ensure links RDC - 
ICT 

North Yorkshire 
Sport 

No implications 2013 

Promote new  NYS/Ryedale website 
and sporting opportunities and 
activities to public and walking and 
cycling routes eg AONB 

 Improved awareness of new website through internal 
and external promotion from RDC ie letters, e mail, 
notice boards, parish council mail shot etc 
 
Mail shot from NYS to all clubs on updated database 
and promote via annual club evening. 
Encourage promotion on site of local events, 
competitions, challenges, walking routes, cycling 
routes etc 

RDC/NYS North Yorkshire 
Sport 

No RDC budgetary 
implications 
 
Existing NYS £5K budget in 
place already 

2013 

Review and reconfigure  Active 
Ryedale into role of Strategic 
Executive – ensuring partners (NYS 
and Active Ryedale) work together to 
create  range of initiatives and run a 
consistent and comprehensive 
programme of generic  and specific 
education courses in the District 

Support from NYS to co-ordinate and act as chair 
 
Proposed key aims of the Active Ryedale network: 
To promote sport and active recreation in Ryedale  
-To ensure that quality sport development occurs 
through the development of volunteers and coaches. 
-To include advice and direction and support/ fund 
attainment of voluntary coaching qualifications 

NYS 
Active 
Ryedale 

North Yorkshire 
Sport 
Active Ryedale 

No RDC budgetary 
implications 
 
Existing £3K  Active Ryedale 
budget  

2013 

P
age 103



9 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

including coach education courses such as Emergency 
First Aid and Safeguarding & Protecting Children 
-To act as a representative body for Ryedale on 
regional sporting issues. 
-To share information and provide advice to sports 
organisations in Ryedale 
-Arrangement for board to be agreed but suggestions 
this should include : 
RDC champion  for sport  
Director NYS 
Rep from schools – Malton, Pickering, Norton, 
Nawton /Beadlam 
Reps from major sport clubs 
Rep from schools sports partnership. 
Rep from PCT 
 

Provision of annual club evening to 
include discussion ie the range of 
funded programmes available to them 
from North Yorkshire Sport, local and 
national context issues etc  including 
Safeguarding and workforce 
development. 

Support from NYS to host evening and provide leisure 
expertise through re-negotiation with North Yorkshire 
Sport utilising existing £5K budget 

NYS NYS 
Active Ryedale 

No RDC budgetary 
implications 
 
Utilises existing NYS £5K 
budget 

2013 

Promotion of health benefits of sport 
and physical activity 

Support campaigns by NYS and PCT 
Utilise RDC notice boards 
Publicise in all RDC  leisure facilities 

NYS 
 

CLL 
PCT 

Utilising existing £5K budget 2013 

Providing  support and guidance for 
local voluntary clubs regarding funded 
programmes available to them and 
help and advice with bid submissions 

To be facilitated by NYS through re-negotiation of 
existing agreement. Encouragement will be given to 
attain ‘Clubmark’ accreditation as appropriate 

NYS NYS 
Active Ryedale 

Utilises existing NYS £5K 
budget 

2013 

Provide Taster days sessions to 
introduce residents to new sports 

Could be facilitated by NYS and/or considered 
regarding procurement of Leisure Contract 

NYS NYS No existing budget 
Need to consider use of New 
homes bonus 

2013 

Support NYS programme of  
Sport makers to increase the number 
of people taking part in sport and 

Facilitated by NYS The Sport Makers programme uses 
the inspirational pull of London 2012 to recruit, train 
and deploy NEW volunteers to make sport happen 

NYS NYS NA 2013 

P
age 104



10 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

sport volunteering across the county 

Support and promote NYS on line 
coaching system 

NYS has an online coaching system that can support 
coaches by signposting them to courses, 
job/volunteer opportunities and information 
regarding bursary and funding.  This will help identify 
the need for courses based around local demand.  

NYS NYS NA 2013 

A detailed audit of the major clubs  in 
the Ryedale  

NYS could provide  audit to  cover capacity, standards, 
workforce etc 

NYS NYS No existing budget 
Need to consider use of New 
homes bonus 

2013 

Delivery of Tutored workshops to 
local clubs 

NYS could facilitate tutored workshops with relevant 
experts as required 

NYS NYS No existing budget 
Need to consider use of New 
homes bonus 

2013 

Work with PCT to help support  health 
initiatives  and promote health 
benefits of  physical activity 

Support/lobby for introduction of compulsory traffic 
light system for food labelling – red bad – green good. 
Promotion on NYS website with links from RDC 
Display leaflets in all leisure outlets and RDC facilities 
and promote current recommendations ie 
->>under fives –three hours a day 
->>5-18 year old – 60 minutes and up to several hrs a 
day of moderate to vigorous intense exercise. Three 
days a week should include vigorous intensity exercise 
that strengthen muscle and bone 
->>adults and older people 19+ 150 mins each week 
of moderate to vigorous exercise. Muscle 
strengthening twice a week eg heavy gardening, 
swimming, group sports such as volleyball, basketball 
etc. intensity and type of physical activity will change 
to reflect age. 
Extend the availability of walks and cycle routes 
through promotion at GP surgeries. 
Make the most of future opportunities to influence 
GP commissioning groups to offer exercise on 
prescription and patient referral schemes to sports 
centres. 
 

PCT NYS  
PCT 
CLL 

N/A Ongoing 

 

P
age 105



11 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

Active More Often 

ACTION HOW DELIVERED LEAD PARTNERS BUDGET PRIORITY 
Support and promote NYS sportivate 
programme.  

Sportivate delivered by NYS is a programme aimed at 
increasing participation amongst people aged 14-25. 
-Promotion by NYS and through RDC  leisure facilities 
and notice boards 
-In particular targeted at 20-25 age range 

NYS NYS 
Schools 

NA Ongoing 

 Action Van/trainer  to rural areas for  
elderly 

Consider as part of new leisure contract. Would 
require costing separately from tender and trial to 
evaluate success. 
Target older people  in rural areas, village hall 
activities, homes etc 

RDC New Leisure 
provider 

New homes bonus/contract 
subsidy 

2015 

Work with and continue  to support 
and fund council activities  through 
councils existing leisure provider 

Family friendly environment 
Varied activities 
Competitive pricing structure 
-consider subsidisation/concessions for talented 
sports people/ elite status 

CLL CLL Grant provide to CLL Ongoing 

Support sporting based charitable  
events on the basis that it encourages 
people who might normally not take 
part in sport to do so 

National and local charity organisations RDC  N/A Ongoing 

Support for competitive events for 
cycling, running etc on an elite , 
amateur, participation basis 

National and Local Organisations External 
bodies 

 N/A On going 

Change existing leisure arrangement 
from grant to contract and procure 
new leisure contract for Sept 2014 - 
inc consideration lease arrangement 
at Northern Ryedale Leisure Centre. 

-Engage consultants to undertake option appraisal, 
analysis of existing provision, consideration of service 
required, packaging of  tender, detail  specification, 
evaluation criteria  etc 
- Invite expressions of interest 
-Bidders day 
-Shortlist 
-Invitation to tender 
-Award new  tender 

RDC Consultant 
support. 
 
NYS  

Potential  £60K for the 
procurement process - to be 
determined and include: 
-Funding of consultants to 
support bid process 
-Fund additional support of 
NYSD as critical friend 
-Fund new leisure contract 
once awarded 

2013/14 

Consider initiatives to increase -As part of  a new contract initiate programmes that RDC Consultant Annual subsidy funding of 2014 

P
age 106



12 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

participation through Council owned 
facilities as part of new leisure 
Contract     

compliment current programmes, plans and practices 

of NYS: To consider: 
-Develop health referral schemes across the facilities 
-Support/develop multi activity sports clubs aimed at 
children with weight problems  
Review pricing policy to encourage return to exercise. 
Encourage sessions targeted at and specific to elderly 
ie swim and gym etc combined with a social aspect. 
-Development of taster sessions free or discounted 
give it a try sessions. 
-Greater flexibility of opening hrs and scheduling of 
activities. 
- Schedule activities for children at same time as 
parents or carers. 
- Reinstate early bird sessions. 
-consider targeted male activity to increase 
participation. 
-promotion of competitive events and challenges 
-Ensure continuous high quality facility management 
through Independent verification of overall 
performance through the national benchmarking 
service across all facilities. 
-Work with sports clubs that use the facilities to 
increase the quality and participation rates against an 
annual sports development plan.  
-Ensure an appropriate and comprehensive range of 
activities to be made available to the community to 
ensure an ethos of ‘Sport for All’ encompassing the 
young through to later life. 
-Monitor Performance,  measures to include: 
>>>Increase the number of new participants by % per 
annum against the baseline of users across all facilities 
>>>Increase individual participation rates by % per 
annum against the baseline of existing users who are 
participating in activity at least 3 times 30 minutes per 
week across all facilities  

support. 
 
NYS  

contract to be determined  

P
age 107



13 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

>>>Increase the usage across all facilities by % against 
the baseline in the first year of operation, and 2% per 
annum thereafter. 
>>>Achieve overall customer satisfaction rating of 85% 
in the first year of operation and thereafter each year 
a % increase and thereafter maintained. 

Encourage workplace activity within 
RDC – Staff Health and Well Being 
Group 

Initiatives to be linked to RDC health and wellbeing 
agenda eg reduced sitting /increased standing, use of 
lifts etc, shower facilities promotion of lunchtime 
exercise at RDH , RDC leisure facilities or through local 
providers such as Malton school, CLL, local gyms, 
walking routes from work etc. 
Promote lunchtime activity packs for the benefit of 
staff as supplied to local businesses. 

RDC Malton school 
CLL 

N/A 2013 

Encourage bids from Parish councils 
and playing field associations to fund 
outdoor green gym equipment for use 
by adults and children 

Promote though Parish liaison group RDC Parish councils 
Playing Field 
associations 

New homes bonus 
Section 106 monies 
CIL 

2013 

Encourage development of outdoor 
boot camp type training for adults and 
children 

Consider as initiative in new  leisure contract 
Utilise RDC and – promote adventure play and 
encourage less risk adverse attitude. 

RDC  Consider and cost as part of 
contract 

2015 

Set up activities  link from RDC and 
NYS website to Tourism Association 
North Yorkshire to promote adventure 
type activities  for residents and 
encourage use of Ryedale’s natural 
resources as an active playground ie 
walking, cycling, rock climbing, 
canoeing, horse riding etc 

ICT to set up links and promote to residents RDC Tourism 
Association 
North Yorkshire  

NA 2013 

Ensure clubs are aware and promote 
events on Tourism association North 
Yorkshire ‘what’s on in Ryedale ‘ 
events calendar 

Promote at club evening and mail shot through sports 
clubs data base. 

RDC Tourism 
Association 
North Yorkshire  

NA 2013 

Support schools regarding travel 
plans, walking to school, adventure 
play etc 

Through NYS NYS  N/A 2013 

P
age 108



14 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

 

 

 

 

Active Places & Spaces 

ACTION HOW DELIVERED LEAD PARTNERS BUDGET PRIORITY 
Maintain and Invest in Ryedale pool 
over next 10-20 years to maintain 
quality of existing service provision  

Facilities  Management 
Investment on the basis of supporting existing 
swimming pool facility  

RDC  205K capital Investment 2013-2023 

Maintain and Invest in Derwent pool 
over next 10-12 years to improve 
quality of service provision 

Facilities  Management RDC  470K capital Investment 2013-2023 

Consider provision of new leisure 
facility replacing Derwent pool  from 
2023 onwards 

Facilities  Management 
options  include: 
-Investment on existing site – limited site potential 
-Closure and new build in or close to geographical 
location of existing ie Norton/Malton + maintain 
existing Pickering site. 
-Closure and one pool only @ Pickering- reduced 
capacity.  
-One pool option , larger facility and  pool capacity at 
one site ie expand Pickering or close and build new. 
Reduced capacity and geographical reach. 

RDC  CIL 
RDC capital programme 

2023 

Investment into better signing for 
open spaces  

Better signing for RDC open spaces eg, Orchard 
Fields, Castle Gardens etc 

RDC  New homes bonus 2013 

Support Village halls  , play area s etc  
undertaking improvement s to their 
facilities 

Through reference to the LDF utilising; 
-Community Investment Fund 
-Community Investment Levy 

RDC Village hall 
associations etc 

New Homes Bonus 
Section 106 monies 
CIL, CIF as appropriate 

Ongoing 

Support Voluntary clubs , play area 
providers  undertaking improvement 

Through reference to the LDF utilising; 
-Community Investment Fund 

RDC Voluntary Clubs New Homes Bonus 
Section 106 monies 

Ongoing 

P
age 109



15 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

s to their facilities  -Community Investment Levy CIL, CIF as appropriate 

Continue  to maintain and invest in 
RDC owned facilities 

Facilities  Management RDC  Maintain existing Budget 
provision 

Ongoing 

Consider lease arrangements at 
Northern Ryedale Leisure Centre 

Consider as part of procurement process RDC NYCC 
Lady Lumley’s 
School 

Potential  £60K for the 
procurement process - to be 
determined and include: 
-Funding of consultants to 
support bid process 
-Fund additional support of 
NYSD as critical friend 
-Fund new leisure contract 
once awarded 

2013/14 

Continue to support Helmsley pool 
and Malton School gym 

Grants delivery mechanism RDC  Maintain Existing Budget 
provision 

Ongoing 

Brambling Fields improvement of the 
A64 Junction to help reduce traffic 
around butchers corner, eliminate 
current Air Quality Management Area 
and encourage walking and cycling 
between Malton and Norton 

Delivered in partnership by RDC , NYCC and Highways 
Agency 

Highways 
Agency 

RDC 
NYCC 

Funded  Completed 

Extend the cycle network in Ryedale, 
within  and linking market towns , 
tourist attractions and public 
transport 

Delivered in partnership with NYCC NB North 
Yorkshire Local Transport Plan 3- reference Tour de 
France legacy project 
 

NYCC NYCC To be determined NYCC 2023 

Improve access over County bridge 
/facilitate a footbridge/cycle bridge to 
Orchard fields 

Delivered in partnership with NYCC NB North 
Yorkshire Local Transport Plan 3 
 

NYCC NYCC To be determined N YCC 2023 

Promotion of a road awareness 
campaign to slow down traffic and 
consider safety of cyclists and reduce 
young driver accident/fatality. 

Delivered in partnership with NYCC NB North 
Yorkshire Local Transport Plan 3- reference Tour de 
France legacy project 
 
 

NYCC NYCC To be determined NYCC On going 

Support development of Pickering to 
Malton cycle path – encouraging links 
to Dalby forest, Newbridge Woods etc 
and Helmsley to KMS cycle path. 

Delivered in partnership with NYCC NB North 
Yorkshire Local Transport Plan and Sustrans 
 

NYCC NYCC To be determined NYCC On-going 

P
age 110



16 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

Develop a policy of developer 
contributions to meet shortfalls in 
leisure provision through sect 106 
monies and CIL 

Development of CIL strategy RDC  N/A On-going 

 

  

P
age 111



17 
 

Ryedale Sport and Active Lives Strategy 2013-2023 
More People, More Active, More Often 

 

 

Page 112



Appendix 6
NHS Scarborough and Ryedale 
Clinical Commissioning Group 
Strategic Plan to 2019

P
age 113



 

 

Page 1 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan_June 2014, version 9 doc 

 

 

 

NHS SCARBOROUGH AND RYEDALE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN 
   2014/15-2018/19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 114



 

 

Page 2 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

Section Content Page 

 Foreword 4 

1. Introduction 6 

2  NHS Scarborough and Ryedale Clinical Commissioning Group 9 

3. Strategic Context 9 

4. Strategic Commissioning Aims 23 

5. Sustainability 24 

6. Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) 37 

7. The Provider Landscape 43 

8. A Strong Community System 53 

9. Improving Health and Reducing Inequality 59 

10. Delivery & Performance Management 70 

11. Access 72 

12. Quality and Performance Management 73 

13. Innovation 80 

14. Value for Money 83 

15. Organisational structure and delivery 84 

16. Governance 88 

17. Stakeholder engagement 89 

18. Financial Plan 91 

Table of contents 

P
age 115



 

 

Page 3 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

19. Equality and Diversity 100 

20 Risks 100 

21 Timetable to success 101 

22 Improving Quality and Outcomes – how we measure success 102 

23 Summary 103 

 References 104 

 

Diagrams 

 

1    The health and social care model for 2019 8 

2a    Urgent Care in 2014 17 

2b    Urgent Care 2015 onwards 18 

3    The Community Hub/NCT model 58 

   

 

Appendices 

 
1. Scarborough and Ryedale CCG Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  

2. GP Practice Sizes  

3 ONS population forecasts  

4. Plan on a Page 2014-16  

5. Plan on a Page 2014-19  

6. The 6 C’s  

 

P
age 116



 

 

Page 4 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

Welcome to NHS Scarborough and Ryedale’s strategy document. 

 
This document describes our strategic aims for the next five years and sets out the evidence on which they are based.  It builds on 
the plan that we developed in 2012/13 with a clearer focus on community and mental health services.  Our long term intention is to 
fundamentally change the way health and social care services are delivered for the population of Scarborough and Ryedale by: 
 

 Developing integrated services around a community hub model of care to enable patients to be cared for as close to home 
as possible; 

 Using innovative solutions to link primary, secondary and community services to encourage patient centred services; 

 Developing integrated urgent and emergency care services to ensure patients access the right treatment at the right time; 

 Ensuring mental health provision is increased to provide early support and diagnosis for adults and children 

 Reducing the need for patients to attend and/or be admitted to secondary care by providing suitable alternative services in 
primary or community settings 

 
The Health and Social Care Act of 2012 that introduced Clinical Commissioning Groups has at its heart a desire to increase the 
involvement of both clinicians and the public in the design of the healthcare system.  This intention is strengthened in the planning 
guidance issued by the Department of Health for 2014-19.  NHS Scarborough and Ryedale has been keen, from the outset, to 
engage in a meaningful way with the public and patients. Our Patient Representative Group is up and running and patients are 
beginning the journey of true involvement and consultation such as with the Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) and 
Me Booklet consultation and the urgent and emergency care re-design engagement. 
 
We should however be under no illusion that change will be easy; the historic financial challenges faced by our predecessor 
commissioning organisation will continue to be ever present. In order to operate effectively in this climate it is inevitable that we will 
need to make some difficult decisions, some of which may not sit comfortably with some people.  However, we are committed to 
making sure that you, in whatever relationship you have with our CCG, have the opportunity to have your say over any changes we 
may propose. 
 

Forward 

P
age 117



 

 

Page 5 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

Whilst the NHS Scarborough and Ryedale Governing Body will have overall responsibility for the healthcare of our communities, 
the challenges we face can only be achieved by this local team working in partnership with providers and stakeholders to ensure 
we deliver quality services for our local communities. 
 
Although it is a time of unprecedented change for the NHS, I truly believe that bringing the responsibility for the commissioning of 
health services to a more local level and empowering clinicians to make decisions about local services for our populations can only 
be a positive move for patient care. 
In five years’ time the model of care will be less focused on hospital care and more focused on supporting patients to live healthy, 
active lives in the community supported by responsive services tailored to meet individual needs. 
 
By 2018/19 we envisage a joint organisation providing health and social care, thus removing the existing barriers which historically 
have prevented effective and efficient working together, to provide patient centred care with seamless pathways and support when 
and where it is needed. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 118



 

 

Page 6 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
 
 
 
This document sets out the 5 year strategy and operational plan for NHS Scarborough and Ryedale Clinical Commissioning Group 
(SRCCG). It provides a statement of intent for the CCG to engage with its patients, public, and stakeholders: a statement on the 
direction, vision and major aims of the CCG. However, SRCCG recognises its success is critically dependent on the support, 
engagement and commitment of its stakeholders and the CCG vision has to be aligned with these stakeholders. 
 
The plan integrates the major strategic principles of the CCG; its major commissioning targets; the organisational structures and 
development required to implement the plan; and a financial framework providing the CCG with a sustainable resource envelope 
from which to deliver high-quality patient care and improved patient outcomes. 
 
The current integrated plan is the result of dialogue between the CCG, patient representative groups and our member practices 
and a wide range of other stakeholders. This has included focus groups with stakeholders such as Healthwatch, voluntary sector 
organisations, and the relevant Local Authorities. The CCG intends to continue with more widespread engagement and 
consultation, so that decisions that affect you, as patients and partners, are made with you. 
 
The planning footprint used for this plan is SRCCG and our main secondary care provider, York Foundation Trust.  The CCG 
believes the unit of planning is appropriate, however we recognise that there will be the need to extend the planning footprint for 
some aspects of our five year strategy, i.e. acute provider re-organisation, centres of excellence for services such as stroke care 
and emergency care.  There may also be opportunities to jointly procure services with our neighbouring CCGs. 
 
The CCG has made a deliberate decision to align itself more closely with East Riding CCG with regards to managing the contract 
with York Foundation Trust in 2014/15 – with the aim of focusing more attention on the Scarborough and Bridlington hospital sites. 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Introduction 

P
age 119



 

 

Page 7 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

Our Values 
 
After debate within the CCG and with its stakeholders the CCG confirms its core values, summarising how it wants to 
conduct its activities: 
 

 To commission high quality services 
 

 To engage patients, carers and other organisations in our planning and decision process 
 

 To ensure value for money 
 

 To be open and honest in our transactions, and accountable to our communities 
 

 To respect our staff and promote a learning environment 
 

 To improve health outcomes 
 
 
Our Vision: 
 
The overarching vision for the CCG is: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 120



 

 

Page 8 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

                                                                         The health and social care model for 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Diagram 1 

Our population is: 

Independent and live at home as long as possible 

Physically and mentally healthy 

Take responsibility for staying healthy and active 

Are informed about services and able to make 

choices about their health and social needs 

Able to access the appropriate services for their 

needs as close to home as possible 

Only attend hospital when appropriate 

Engaged in plans about their health and social care 

 
 

 

Providers: 

Work together to improve 

health and social care 

Share information in a timely 

and safe manner 

Drive forward efficiencies 

and innovation 

Have sustainable service and 

staffing models 

Re-configure to ensure 

appropriate expertise and 

capacity 

Commissioners: 

Are patient/client focused 

Have the leadership and 

capacity to commission 

sustainable healthcare 

Are outcomes-driven 

Ensure value for money 

Encourage new Providers 

into the marketplace to 

drive up quality 

Ensure quality is at the 

heart of everything we do 

Listen to our population 

Workforce: 

Has the appropriate skill mix to meet needs 
Is of an appropriate capacity to meet demand and expectations 

Works together in multi-professional teams to support patients and carers stay independent 
Overcomes organisational and professional boundaries to deliver seamless patient care 

Uses technology and innovation to improve outcomes 

Delivers 24/7 care when and where needed 

P
age 121



 

 

Page 9 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
 
 

SRCCG is comprised of 16 practices across the areas of Scarborough and Ryedale, with a registered population of 
approximately 118,000 

 
The CCG has a relatively elderly population with 21.9% of its population aged over 65 (see Appendix 1 for Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment summary). Over 50% of the CCG population lives in the most deprived population quintile of North Yorkshire. The 
demographic profile of the CCG provides it with the combined challenge of an elderly population with high health resource usage; 
and significant areas of deprivation with associated poor health outcomes. As such this is a challenge unlike any other in North 
Yorkshire or York. 

 
The 16 practices have a range of patient list sizes (see Appendix 2) and support approximately 100 GPs working in the CCG 
area. The commissioning budget of the CCG is over £150 million.  
 
 
 
 

The election of the Coalition government in 2010 was followed by the announcement of radical changes to the NHS, summarised 
in the 2010 Health White Paper (Department of Health 2010). 
 
“The NHS changes will emerge in the context of an ‘age of austerity’.” Commissioning will need to continue to respond to the 
challenge set by the former NHS Chief Executive Officer  and deliver annual efficiency gains of 4%, totalling £20 billion over a 
five year period (House of Commons 2011).  
 
In addition to the dynamic national context and the historic issues, the CCG has faced significant financial challenges from 
inception.  The acquisition of Scarborough and North East Yorkshire Healthcare Trust by York Teaching Hospitals Foundation 
Trust (YFT) in 2012 provides a potential longer term solution to some of the challenges faced by a remotely positioned small 
district general hospital, however, YFT is faced with similar financial restraints as the CCG and will be working to provide 

2. NHS Scarborough and Ryedale Clinical Commissioning Group 

 

3. Strategic context 

 

P
age 122



 

 

Page 10 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

increasing levels of cost improvement in the York and Scarborough health economy.  Consequently, the health economy faces a 
double challenge of limited funding for commissioning and the need to reduce costs within our main Provider. 
 
The CCG faces a complex series of challenges, including not only responding to the economic environment, but at the same 
time actively promoting health improvement to bring the health and wellbeing of its communities closer to those of the majority of 
North Yorkshire. 
 
In addition to significant areas of deprivation, the CCG locality also includes a relatively elderly population. This provides significant 
challenges to the provision of health and social care. In addition to the need to plan for services to support those who are able to 
live in their own homes, the locality has a significant population living in care homes.  Furthermore, the locality is considered to 
have relatively low levels of alternative provision to care homes, such as extra-care housing, and this accentuates the challenges 
faced by a CCG wanting to support older people’s independent living. 
 
The closer working of health and social care over the next few years will bring its own challenges; different cultures, different 
management methodologies, the complexity of health services free at the point of delivery working alongside social care which is 
means tested will not be easy obstacles to overcome, although overcome them we must. 
 
A Call to Action (NHS England 2013), is a recognition by the NHS Trust Development Authority (TDA), Monitor, Public Health England, 
National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE), the Health and Social Care Information Centre, the Local Government 
Association, the NHS Commissioning Assembly, Health Education England, the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and NHS 
England that organisations can no longer stand alone and sets out a commitment to working collectively to improve services across 
a range of sectors. 
 
“For years, pundits and practitioners alike have argued that prevention is better than cure.  Clearly patients would prefer to avoid 
getting ill in the first place (primary prevention) or, if they do get ill, ensure that it is diagnosed at an early stage and that 
arrangements to manage the condition effectively are put in place as soon as possible to allow them to continue living autonomous 
and active lives (secondary prevention)” [NHS England 2013] 
 
SRCCG is aware of the high prevalence of chronic disease such Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD), Ischaemic heart 
disease, Cancer and Mental health in our population and is also aware of the connection between risk factors such as smoking, 

P
age 123



 

 

Page 11 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

alcohol, physical activity, diet and socio economic factor and these diseases.  For these reasons our strategy focuses on the key 
priority disease areas of Cancer, Cardiovascular, Mental health and Elderly Care.  Many of our projects over the next five years will 
not only be aimed at improving pathways of care for patients suffering from these diseases but also on preventative care (often in 
partnership with the Local Authority and Public Health England) such as reducing the prevalence of smoking and alcohol related 
conditions. 
 
This joint ownership of the challenges faced by health and social care not only highlights the threat to financial stability and 
sustainability of services but a true desire to overcome these problems and a national vision that will deliver change locally led by 
clinical commissioning groups, Health and Wellbeing Boards, other partner organisations and patients and the public.  
 
The CCG will adhere to the NHS mandate (which sets outs the Government’s priorities for health and clear objectives and 
measurements for 2014-15) and will embrace the ethos of improving health and well-being.  We will commission services that 
ensure our patients rights’ under the NHS Constitution are met and performance against key standards is as or above expected 
levels. We will follow the planning guidance “Everyone Counts: Planning for Patients 2014/15-2018/19 and ensure our local 
priorities reflect the national priorities to deliver the NHS vision of High Quality Care for all, now and for future generations. 
 
We are fully committed to the improvement in the quality of services including those that we commission, and those that we may 
not commission directly but which are provided to our resident population, for example, primary care services and care provided in 
care homes.  We will build on the definition of quality as established in the 2008 Next Stage Review document also commonly 
referred to as the Darzi review (Darzi,2008) which includes care that is safe, clinically effective, and takes into account patient 
experience, a definition that was later enshrined in legislation (Department of Health, 2010). 
 
We recognise that while Clinical Commissioning Groups are young organisations,  we have been given a challenging mandate from 
the Government who has made clear that CCGs are central to their ambition to deliver high quality and patient centred outcomes 
for their populations, within the available allocated resources. The CCG has a statutory duty to commission and ensure high quality 
care for the local population including the scrutiny of all providers and also to assure the Governing Body that the continuous 
improvement in quality of care is being achieved.  
 
We cannot do this in isolation.  We will develop a quality assurance strategy that  will set out our objectives and how we plan to 
meet them.  We will be clear about who we will be working with, and we will set out how we will respond to the day to day 

P
age 124



 

 

Page 12 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

challenges as well as planning for the future.  We want quality to be a tangible part commissioning health care, and where this is 
not the case, we want to learn and improve as an organisation in our own right, as well as supporting learning in  the organisations 
from whom we commission care. 
 
The breakdown in the quality of care for people with learning disabilities at Winterbourne View and other recent high profile cases, 
remind us all of the role in safeguarding the care of vulnerable people, both for adults and children including children looked after by 
the state or in care. The most recent planning guidance from NHS England also reinforces the need to ensure ‘parity of esteem’ for 
those with mental health and learning disability needs.  This applies equally to the monitoring and assurance of services we 
commission directly from specialist providers of learning disability and mental health services, as well as to providers of more 
generic medical and surgical services, and also to care in the independent and private sector including the care home and 
domiciliary care market. 
 
We recognise that safeguarding is integral to all aspects of patient safety linked to reducing harm and promoting well being, and we 
also recognise our statutory role as an employer as well as a commissioner of services.   
 
The overall vision of the CCG is to improve the health and wellbeing of our communities: In order to achieve this within limited 
resources, the current configuration of health and social care needs to change and we need to plan sustainable, high quality 
services for our population.  In the future fewer people will need to attend secondary care and more patients will be cared for either 
in their own homes or in primary/community settings.   
 
Urgent Care /Out Of Hours(OOH) will change in line with our proposed service development to integrate urgent care into a single 
service offered from a Hub and spoke arrangement across Scarborough and Ryedale.  Inevitably, this development will change the 
emergency care service in our local hospital and we will work with YFT to ensure the emergency department is appropriate for the 
needs of the population. 
 
Elective/Acute hospital care in Scarborough will be separated between the Scarborough Hospital site and the Bridlington Hospital 
site, with Bridlington developing as the elective care facility. 
 
Discussions are on-going with primary care colleagues and the Area Team to determine the future configuration and possible 
Federation of practices.   

P
age 125



 

 

Page 13 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
The CCG will work with Secondary Care Providers and Providers of tertiary/specialist services to rationalise acute and specialist 
care, recognising that all services cannot continue to be provided safely and efficiently in DGH settings and fewer centres of 
excellence will be developed. 
 
Community Services will be managed around a community hub providing physical and mental health support, social and voluntary 
support and links to primary care neighbourhood care teams (NCT) to support patients to stay at home and avoid hospital 
admissions. 
 
The local and national vision will be underpinned by six characteristics of high quality and sustainable service change as set out in 
the Everyone Counts guidance: 
 
3.1  New approach to ensure citizens are fully included in all aspects of service change:  
 
The CCG has adopted a Communication and Engagement Strategy and Equality and Diversity Plan which sets out how we have 
and will continue to communicate and engage with our population.  These provide a framework on the activities we believe will help 
us to understand what the people of Scarborough and Ryedale say are important when it comes to healthcare in our community. 
 
Throughout 2013-14 all our engagement activities focused on refining our 2014-2019 commissioning strategy and events held to-
date have provided valuable feedback from stakeholders both on the overall plan but also on specific service developments.  The 
overall plan is summarised by a “Plan on a Page” and further detail is available on our website in interactive form. 

3.2. Wider primary care – provided at scale 

We are embracing our role of re-designing primary care in Scarborough and Ryedale. We will need to increase access for patients, 
reduce variation and ensure quality of services provided.  Recognising the demand already placed on primary care and the difficulty 
in recruiting, coupled with impending retirements among our practices, the new model may have fewer practices through 
reconfiguration, although services they deliver will continue to be of the high standard that patients in Scarborough and Ryedale 
currently enjoy. 

P
age 126



 

 

Page 14 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

Discussions are on-going with our member practices, NHS England and the Local Medical Committee (LMC) about the future 
configuration of primary care and a sustainable model to ensure adequate access and a range of services are delivered in primary 
care to reduce attendances at secondary care.  This may result in practices forming federations or groups of practices working 
together to support one another and enable them to provide the additional capacity required to meet demand.  

A list of possible services that can transfer from secondary care to primary care has been developed and we are currently working 
through this list with practices to develop these ideas into service provision.  Through a programme of development, we will ensure 
that practice nurses and Health Care Assistants (HCAs) are utilised to their maximum potential to support GPs. 

Resources will be made available in our financial plan to support the £5 per head investment and the 70% investment* from the 
application of marginal rate rule will support achievement of the non-elective QIPP.  
 
As part of the 14/15 planning process, CCGs must be able to demonstrate how they intend to use the 70% “saving” to reduce 
emergency admissions.  The local Urgent Care Working Group (of which the CCG is a member) is responsible for signing off these 
intentions. 
* The marginal rate rule was introduced in 2010/11 in response to concerns about growth in the volume of patients being admitted to hospital as emergencies. 
The rule sets a baseline value for income from emergency admissions for each provider. For emergency admissions above this baseline, the provider 
receives 30% of the normal price. The rule is intended to give acute providers an incentive to collaborate with other parties in the local health economy to 
manage demand for avoidable emergency admissions and treat patients in the most appropriate setting. 

 
3.3. A modern model of integrated care 

The community hub model will provide medical, mental health, social, therapy and nursing integrated care aimed at keeping 
patients in their own homes and minimising the need for acute admission to secondary care.  Expertise will be focused in a 
community hub(s) and be able to outreach to patients when required.  As well as the physical and mental needs of patients, 
involving our voluntary sector colleagues we will try and provide social and lifestyle support to reduce loneliness and isolation in the 
form of group activities. 

Patients with long term conditions will be managed by a Neighbourhood Care Team which incorporates all the skills required to 
sustain patients at home and prevent unnecessary crisis intervention.  These teams will have strong links to the community hubs. 

P
age 127



 

 

Page 15 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

We know that we have a lot of care homes including homes with nursing in our CCG.  The care that our patients receive in these 
establishments is important to us and we will be working closely with our partners in the local authority and in primary care to 
develop plans for how we can support the improvement of quality on an ongoing basis in these settings. 

3.4. Access to the highest quality urgent and emergency care 

The CCG has developed a vision for urgent and emergency care and is currently engaging with stakeholders to transform this 
vision into a viable, sustainable model for integrated care with the aim of procuring this service in Spring 2015. 

The service will be designed with the needs of patients at the heart, where patients receive, timely, accurate diagnosis and 
treatment without having to access multiple other services before receiving the care they need.   

The model will reduce the current pressure on Accident and Emergency services in secondary care and simplify the structure of 
urgent care to reduce confusion amongst patients. (see diagrams 2a and 2b) 

Our vision is for a single service providing urgent and OOHs care for patients who need to be seen quickly but who do not require 
emergency A&E care. 

Our current OOHs and walk in centres are valued highly by our patients and we will ensure that this high quality patient experience 
is maintained and indeed improved in the new service and that patients in Scarborough and Ryedale have equal access to urgent 
care. 

The CCG is committed to ensuring a high quality of service whether or not this service is delivered in or outside a hospital setting. 

3.5. A step change in the productivity of elective care 

The CCG is working with our main provider to understand demand for elective care and agree how and where capacity will be 
sourced in the most efficient way possible.  Bridlington Hospital will develop as an elective centre. 

The introduction of Expert Consulting will allow GPs to seek advice from secondary care clinicians without the patient always 
requiring a face to face consultation.   

P
age 128



 

 

Page 16 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

Our drive to reduce follow up attendances will continue, developing shared care pathways and avoid unnecessary visits to 
secondary care.   

Efficiencies gained in out-patients will release valuable consultant time to help increase productivity in elective care. 

We will optimise patients in primary care before referral to secondary care by introducing referral protocols and templates, 
facilitating access to Map of Medicine in primary care and to ensure that patients are only referred to secondary care once all 
appropriate investigations and interventions have taken place. Expert Consulting will support this approach. 

3.6. Specialised services concentrated in centres of excellence 

The CCG recognises there may be a need to centralise specialised services in order to ensure that patients receive the best 
possible quality clinical care.  We will work with the clinical networks and tertiary care providers to secure services in line with 
national guidance: 

 Pro-active engagement with networks to secure local pathways and interface with specialist services; 

 Work with national commissioners to support clinical and business case for proposed changes; 

 Analyse the impact on changes upon our local population and potential risk to local services; 

 Work alongside specialist commissioners to develop and support a jointly agreed programme of work to deliver the 
economies of scale; 

 Engage our communities in consultation processes to ensure full understanding of the need to change and the resulting 
impact. 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 129



 

 

Page 17 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

Urgent Care – In 2014  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A&E 

Scarborough 

GP  

(in and OOHs) 

Walk in centre 

Scarborough 

Minor Injury Unit  

(Malton) 

Patients Self present Patients Ring 111 Patients Ring 999 

Diagram 2a 

P
age 130



 

 

Page 18 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
2015 onwards 
                                                    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Urgent Care Service 

24/7 

Scarborough and 

Malton 

GP 

 (open extended hours) 

Community Hub 

  (in-hours) 7 days 

Scarborough / Malton 

Patients Self present Patients Ring 111 Patients Ring 999 

Supported  

by 

Neighbourhood 

Care Teams 

Diagram 2b 

Diagnostics 

Emergency Department 

P
age 131



 

 

Page 19 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

3.7 Improving Quality and Outcomes 

Based on public health evidence and local clinical knowledge about our local health problems, the CCG has established four 
health priority areas – cardiovascular, cancer, mental health and elderly care.  We will focus efforts on these areas to improve 
the outcome ambitions identified in Everyone Counts: 
 
3.7.1 Securing additional years of life 

 

Much work has already been carried out to reduce premature mortality and we will continue and expand upon this.  For 
example, working in collaboration with Public Health England and York Foundation Trust we are proactively aiming to reduce 
the numbers of pregnant women smoking at the time of delivery; we are exploring ways of providing smoking cessation advice 
to patients before undergoing elective surgery and supporting a no smoking in hospital campaign. 
 
In 2013 Scarborough Hospital was awarded provisional accreditation for its Stroke Service and we will continue to work towards 
improving this status and the service for stroke patients. 
 
Our cancer work will focus on early referral and detection of lung and breast cancer, working closely with the cancer network. 
and will include capacity planning across the whole pathway. 
 
We will continue and expand work commenced in care homes and improve rehabilitation support for patients who are 
discharged from hospital settings. 
 
3.7.2. Improving the health related quality of life of people with one or more LTCs, including mental health: 
 

 Introduce Liaison psychiatry model in A&E, adult and elderly care wards to support patients with mental health needs. 

 Increase numbers of people accessing talking therapies 

 Increase dementia diagnosis through dementia collaborative, pathway development 

 Continue and enhance NCTs to monitor patients with LTC in primary care 

 Continue alcohol work: Current project was developed in partnership with Scarborough Hospital, North Yorkshire Police, 
North Yorkshire County Council and the CCG. A full time alcohol worker has been placed in the A&E department with a remit 

P
age 132



 

 

Page 20 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

to identify and intervene with those patients with alcohol related presentations.  The object is to provide immediate and follow 
up support with a view to reducing future A&E presentations and crisis interventions. 

 Continue to work with the voluntary sector to support patients where appropriate 

 Work with Yorkshire Ambulance Trust (YAS) and other emergency agencies to provide street support in the Scarborough 
town centre, particularly for patients with alcohol, drug and mental health issues. 

 

3.7.3. Reduce amount of time people spend in avoidable hospital through better integrated care outside hospital: 
 

 Roll out Neighbourhood Care Teams across the whole of Scarborough and Ryedale 

 Integrated urgent and emergency care facility with prompt elderly assessment and diagnosis ambulatory care pathways 

 Develop community hub, particularly aimed at supporting the frail elderly population 

 Develop fast response team(s) model of support for improving quality of care in nursing and residential homes 

 Continue work to decrease unplanned hospitalization for asthma, diabetes and epilepsy 
- community epilepsy nurse for children 
- diabetes pathways in primary care 

 
3.7.4. Increasing proportion of older people living independently at home following discharge 
 

 Increase rehabilitation for stroke patients 

 Increase rehabilitation for all patients being discharged from hospital (over the age of 75) 

 Day care project to provide social and holistic support  

 Increase domiciliary care support to allow people to stay at home 
 
3.7.5. Increase number of people having a positive experience of hospital care: 
 

 Ensuring our Providers achieve the NHS constitutional standards 

 Reducing Health-Care Acquired Infections (HCAI) 

 Reducing Never Events 

 Supporting the reporting of serious incidents and ensuring learning is shared 

P
age 133



 

 

Page 21 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 Reducing cancelled Out Patient appointments and cancelled elective procedures 

 Ensuring our patients are fully informed of “next steps” in their treatment 

 Continue roll out of Compassion in Practice (Care, Compassion, Competence, Communication, Courage and Commitment) 
the 6 C’s. 

 Reducing falls in secondary and primary care 

 Encouraging providers to maximise the care of deteriorating patients 
 
3.7.6. Increase number of people with mental and physical health conditions having a positive experience of care outside 
hospital, in general practice and community settings. 
 

 Develop integrated urgent and emergency care to include OOHs and in hours general practice. 

 Increase access in primary care 

 Develop community hub and NCT model 

 Develop a more integrated approach to enable District Nursing service to work more closely with general practice  

 Improve support to patients requiring mental health care by introducing a “street triage” mental health worker to work 
alongside the police in Scarborough Town Centre 

 Improve support to patients in A&E requiring mental health support by using voluntary sector MIND workers in A&E 
 
3.7.7. Make significant progress towards eliminating avoidable deaths in our hospitals caused by problems in care: 
 

 Improve reporting of medication errors 

 Reduce HCAIs 

 Robust mechanisms for investigating quality issues 

 Triangulation of soft and hard intelligence 

 Ensure adherence to quality standards  

 Work in partnership with YFT 
 
 
 

P
age 134



 

 

Page 22 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
 
Based on national and local drivers the CCG has established three key strategic commissioning aims: 

 

 Commissioning sustainable, high-quality services within the available resources (people, money, buildings) 

 Delivered by a stronger community system, integrating care across the whole care economy. 

 Securing improvement in priority areas of health need and reducing health inequalities.

P
age 135



 

 

Page 23 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

 

4. Strategic Commissioning Aims 

P
age 136



 

 

Page 24 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
 
 
Sustainability will provide assurance and security to the CCG’s population that its services are safe, consistent, and not vulnerable 
to threat. The health economy has experienced threats from an inability to secure the appropriate clinical staff; from constant 
financial pressure; and from varying restraints in physical capacity. 
 

This principle that underpins our strategy reinforces that commissioning should seek to establish consistently high-quality, 
safe services, within a financially and clinically sustainable framework. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

5. Sustainability 

 

P
age 137



 

 

Page 25 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

5.1. Service Re-design 
 
In order to build a sustainable health economy, we recognise that some of the current configuration of services will need to change.  
A priority for 2014-15 will be to procure an integrated urgent and emergency care service.  The first stage of this is to share our 
ideas and seek comments from a wide audience through an engagement strategy which commenced in January 2014. ‘Right care, 
first time: Developing a new, integrated model for urgent care services in Scarborough and Ryedale. 
 

This period of engagement will enable the CCG to incorporate views and ideas into a detailed specification that will be used to 
tender for the new service during 2014, with the expectation that the new service will be ready to accept patients in April 2015.  
  
Urgent care is for a sudden illnesses or injuries that need treating quickly, but are not considered to be a 999 emergency.  
 

The current urgent care services that form part of the CCG review are: 

 

 Castle Health walk-in centre in Scarborough (provided by Echo) 

 Malton Community Hospital Minor Injuries Unit (provided by York Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust) 

 GP out-of-hours service (provided by Prime-care) 

 Minor ailments that are treated within A&E departments at York Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and Scarborough 
Hospital. 

 
The CCG believes there is an opportunity to improve patient experience and create better value for money by integrating these 
services into a single contract.  
 
There are number of national and local drivers to create a more integrated urgent care system that will not only benefit patients, but 
that is also better value for money.  
 
Nationally, there is a desire to: 
 

P
age 138



 

 

Page 26 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 Develop a more integrated urgent care system that ensures patients are treated in the most appropriate setting for their 
needs; 

 Simplify the structure of urgent care services to reduce confusion amongst patients and ensure they access the right service, 
first time; 

 Reduce pressure on accident and emergency departments by treating patients with minor symptoms either in primary care 
or in the community; 

 Improve patient experience of urgent care services such as reducing waiting times and the need for patients to be redirected 
to other services; 

 Respond to the demands for health services from an ageing population. 
 

At a local level, we know that: 
 

 Pressure on A&E departments continues to increase and that up to 50 per cent of presentations are for minor symptoms that  
could have been treated elsewhere; 

 There is confusion amongst some patients about what services are available and which service they should access for 
different health needs (for example a survey into the use of Malton MIU showed that many people did not understand what 
types of symptoms it was there to treat and thought  that it could be used as an alternative to seeing their own GP);  

 Based on a CCG survey about the current GP out of hours service, the most important aspects of accessing out of hours 
care were reported as: 

o The ability to see a clinician face-to-face 
o To be seen and treated in the same place 
o The service being located near other health services such as a pharmacy 
o Whilst a home visit is preferable to most (although people recognise this isn’t always possible), the second preferred 

way to access treatment out of hours is a walk-in facility 

 People rate the quality of the existing GP out-of-hours service as good or very good, so this level of patient experience 
needs to be maintained in any new system that is introduced. However, we know that patient experience of A&E is not as 
positive and this response is often a result of long waiting times; 

 That MIU service in Malton is highly valued by local residents and they would expect to see minor injury provision maintained 
in the area. 

P
age 139



 

 

Page 27 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
Through our conversations so far, we have been able to create an outline of a model for urgent care that we believe will result in a 
better service for patients and that is more cost effective for the NHS. It is important to stress that this model will evolve based on 
feedback obtained during the engagement period.  
 

With our proposed model, we would: 

 Integrate the current urgent care services into two urgent care centres – one in Scarborough and one in Ryedale – that will 
operate on a 24/7 basis; 

 The urgent care centre in Ryedale will provide a slightly smaller range of services than the centre in Scarborough; however, 
access to services will be better than at present (bearing in mind that MIU in Malton is only open during the daytime). 

 These two centres will provide the same or improved level of services that are currently provided by urgent care services at 
Castle Health Centre, Malton MIU, A&E departments at York and Scarborough and also the GP out-of-hours service.  

 
These integrated urgent care centres will aim to treat patients in one place and avoid them having to access additional services. 
 
Currently the CCG is not able to specify a preferred location for the urgent care centres as this would potentially limit the number of 
providers who could tender for the service.  
 
We are however committed to ensuring appropriate access to services across both Scarborough and Ryedale for all groups in our 
community.  
 
Developing a more integrated urgent care system will mean: 
 

 A simple process for patients to access the right urgent care service, first time  

 A more cost effective, joined-up service that aims to treat patients in one place and avoid them having to access additional 
services  - a ‘one-stop-shop’ for all urgent care needs  

 24 hour access to a range of urgent care services, not just between certain times  

 Shorter waiting times than if you were to attend A&E 

 Shorter waiting times for patients with emergency care needs at A&E 

P
age 140



 

 

Page 28 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 Reduced pressure on A&E departments from less patients attending with minor injuries and illnesses – meaning that A&E 
doctors can dedicate their time to treating patients with more serious health needs 
 

Alongside this major project, the CCG will continue to redesign and rationalise services in priority clinical specialities such as 
rheumatology, ophthalmology, chronic pain, cardiology and diabetes with a focus on providing more support for patients in primary 
and community care. 
 
YFT is also planning to re-design acute services in Scarborough Hospital.  Inevitably this is a consequence of the merging of two 
hospitals, but it is also necessary to deliver the 7 day a week services as prescribed in “Everyone Counts:  Our contract with YFT 
will include an action plan to deliver clinical standards  that all patients should expect to receive seven days a week when accessing 
urgent and emergency care.  This process in YFT will be led by the Scarborough Acute Board Development and Delivery Group 
which has delegated authority to assess current plans and develop new plans unpinned by the following principles: 
 

 A commitment to develop the safest, highest quality, efficient acute services possible for Scarborough Hospital 

 Organisational and professional boundaries will not impede delivery of the vision 

 Nothing should be assumed about the validity of current practice or proposed changes to practice 

 Personal views are respected but must not prevent decisions being made about service configuration, which it is in the best 
interests of patients 

 
York Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust took over the running of the Scarborough and Bridlington Hospitals in 2012. YFT 
received additional financial support over a 5 year period to support them in taking over the hospital and addressing underlying 
issues with the estate and services on the east coast. That financial support ceases in March 2017, and the CCG in partnership 
with the Trust needs to have defined a service model for Scarborough and Bridlington Hospitals that is affordable for the CCG 
under national tariff, yet retains appropriate services in the local area. This will require consideration of those services which are 
retained locally within the current tariff structure, those where the CCG may pay a supplement to retain services locally, and also 
services which are not sustainable locally.  

 

P
age 141



 

 

Page 29 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

We will consult with our population on the options available to the CCG, and what service priorities should be considered as part of 
making these decisions. 

It is essential that the CCG and Acute Provider work together to deliver changes within an open and honest environment.  The 
end goal is for our local hospital to be financially and clinically stable for the future.   
 
5.2 Direct Commissioning  

The CCG is not responsible for commissioning all health care services: many services including primary care, dental and eye care 
are commissioned by the national NHS England and the NHS England Area Team.  Relationships and clearer understanding of 
responsibilities between these two bodies is still developing, however the CCG already works closing with the Area Team on many 
aspects and will continue to do so.  Sections 5.3 to 5.11 are compiled by our local Area Team and provide an overview of services, 
contracting mechanisms and aspirations for the future: 

5.3 Access including the promotion of self-care 

The Area Team will support CCGs to delivery primary care services across seven days a week by using a range of options 
appropriate to geographical and population need.  A full and integrated range of services will be available requiring joined-up 
working across primary and secondary care.  The transfer of care to out of hospital providers will impact on GP practices already 
struggling to meet demand for appointments and a radical shift is needed towards closer working relationships between practices 
and other healthcare providers.  Practices are already moving towards closer working across a wider footprint through federations 
and sharing of resources will be necessary to meet this challenge.   

Often patients are unable to see a doctor on the day they wish unless it is “urgent” and are left waiting for several days or over a 
weekend.  Some end up at A & E and a range of options is needed to avoid this.  There is a need to move away from GPs seeing 
all patients to free up their time for other more complex cases.   A clinician-led triage service acting as the first point of contact for 
patients across a number of practices would reduce GP appointments and ensure patients are transferred to the appropriate 
service in health or social care.  For minor ailments, patients could be directed to alternative healthcare providers, in particular 
pharmacies, to speed up access to healthcare and avoid an unnecessary doctor’s appointment.  Practices can work in rotation to 
offer extended hours to cover evenings and weekends. 

P
age 142



 

 

Page 30 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

Access need not be face-to-face and web-based GP consultations and virtual clinics may be appropriate in some geographical 
areas to provide easier access to healthcare.  This can only be done where safe and clinically appropriate, and will not be 
appropriate in all areas as there will be groups of patients who are unable, or unwilling to use this technology.  It also depends on IT 
connectivity, especially in very remote areas.  

Services need to be more mobile in order to target “hard-to-reach” groups and identify health risks, for example by visiting factories, 
agricultural shows and rural market days. Deeply rural areas need to be identified and assessed in terms of service need. 

Access in care homes has traditionally been provided by visits from a patient’s “own” GP.  Bearing in mind patient choice, this could 
be streamlined by a GP-led team with a skill-mix of both health and social care taking responsibility for a group of care homes.   

Community pharmacy is a key frontline health service that provides healthcare and advice as an effective alternative to a GP 
practices.   By supporting the Health Living Pharmacy initiative this will enable community pharmacy staff to promote healthy living, 
provide well-being advice and services and support people to self-care and manage long-term conditions. The Pharmacy Call to 
Action will stimulate debate in local communities to find out the best way to develop an integral service, and the Local Professional 
Network will provide the clinical interface and expertise to support this. 

Services which have historically been undertaken at GP practices (e.g. flu vaccinations, minor ailment schemes, monitoring of long-
term conditions) could be carried out by pharmacies and create capacity to allow GPs to deal with more complex cases.  

Access to dental care is maintained by ensuring the provision of high quality dental services through existing dental contracts and 
the out-of-hours service. The Dental Call to Action will stimulate ideas about the NHS dental service in order to improve oral health 
and increase access to the NHS dental services. 

All contractor groups can promote self-care as part of their daily contact with patients and members of the public.   The pharmacy 
framework already includes essential services that can be used more effectively to provide access to healthcare including 
promotion of self-care.  As pharmacies are generally open longer hours, up to 100 hours per week including Sundays which will 
improve access for patients.   

P
age 143



 

 

Page 31 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

Support for self-care, in particular for long-term conditions, can also be provided by voluntary and not for profit organisations 
working with CCGs.   

5.4 Continuity of care 

In order to change the way primary care currently operates, skill mix will be essential to ensure that a variety of staff can provide 
primary care services for patients.  

Workforce is central to continuity of care although this presents significant challenges due to the large percentage of GPs who are 
due to retire. These issues are discussed in the workforce section.  

Funding will need to be made available for training nurses and other staff groups who will need to provide a greater array of primary 
care services in order to release GPs to concentrate on the more complex patient groups. However, GPs will need to be retained at 
the centre of care planning for patients. GPs will become the “care navigators” for their patient base. 

General Practice will need to work in a collaborative manner to ensure sustainability. This will include health and social care 
providers such as community services, social services and local authorities. Pharmacies can also enhance the work that GPs 
undertake with a greater focus on self-care and minor ailments but also in carrying out more effective medicines uses reviews. 

CCGs will need to consider providing services across a larger geographical footprint. A number of CCGs are forming federations 
which will allow the commissioning of services relevant for their population. Possibilities include “specialist practices” providing a 
service for a number of practices. These organisations can begin to develop training and education programmes to ensure that the 
appropriate workforce is in place.  

CCGs will need to think about innovative ways of working in order to harness real change while also thinking about continuity of 
care. This may mean that two tier systems may operate; the old model stays in place while the new model of primary care is tested.  

CCGs will need to ensure that there are excellent communication channels in place to engage with General Practices to ensure 
that they are able to support delivery of their strategic objectives.  

 

P
age 144



 

 

Page 32 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

5.5 Contracting 

There are currently three main types of core GP contracts: General Medical Services (GMS), Personal Medical Services (PMS), 
and Alternative Provider Medical Services (APMS). The GMS contract is agreed nationally and essential services provided under 
this contract are set out in legislation. PMS is a locally negotiated contract and allows greater flexibility to respond to local needs. 
The APMS contract allows commissioners of primary care medical services to contract with a wide range of providers including 
those in the independent sector. It can be used to encourage innovative tailored services responsive to local needs. Like PMS the 
contract is more flexible than GMS. For GP contracts additional services are commissioned through enhanced services (formerly 
Directed Enhanced Services (DES) contracts) and Community-Based Services (formerly Local Enhanced Services (LES) 
Contracts). NHS England Commissions Enhanced Services Contracts, from April 2013 CCGs have delegated responsibility for 
managing community based services. Local Authorities are responsible for commissioning public health services such as screening 
and immunisation from April 2014. GPs are currently operating in a complex contracting and payment system. 

 
5.6 Integrated Care Pathways 

In order to deliver the new model of patient care integrated care pathways are essential. This model requires collaborative working 
across primary and secondary care, health and social care and voluntary services.  

Work that can be undertaken in primary care should be commissioned in primary care. This will require a seed change as services 
will need to be shifted from Secondary Care. CCGs and NHS England will need to facilitate these discussions with the relevant 
providers in order to break down barriers and truly reform the current care model. 

CCGs will need to have the courage to test new innovative ways of working whilst ensuring continuity of care for patients. The Area 
Team can assist with this change in methodology by looking at the contract mechanisms that can support this change.  

There will also be an emphasis on self-care. Pharmacies can support this work through various enhanced services such as Minor 
Ailments and Medicines Use Reviews. Protocols such as this allow patients to be more independent and more involved with their 
healthcare which provides enhanced quality of life.  

A communication campaign will be central to the above in order to inform patients of the new model and signpost them to the 
correct service provider.  

P
age 145



 

 

Page 33 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

Information Technology is also vital to support these changes. In order to establish integrated pathways service providers will need 
access to a contemporaneous patient record to ensure that they have a full patient history when providing care.  

All sectors need to see this change as a positive paradigm shift which will mean the right people will be treating patients in the 
correct setting for their needs. There will be huge opportunities for both primary and secondary care to set up intermediate services 
for the benefit of patients in this shared leadership role. This change can be facilitated by the locality hub method which is being 
adopted by many CCGs and federated GP practices. This is no easy task as it will require a complete service redesign. However, 
this is what is required in order to create a quality driven sustainable NHS for the 21st century and beyond.  

5.7 Workforce – ensuring resilience, developing planning and training 

Ensuring a resilient, capable and reliable primary care workforce is vital to ensuring health services can be delivered effectively and 
efficiently across North Yorkshire and Humber. The national changes to Primary Care services identified by NHS England in the 
Call to Action publications can only be met locally if individuals and teams undertaking the services are trained, motivated and 
committed to providing excellent patient care. Providers must also be successful in effectively recruiting and retaining highly skilled 
and dedicated healthcare professionals.  

The NHS England North Yorkshire and Humber Area Team (AT) will play an important role in facilitating change, instigating 
discussions and supporting CCGs and primary care providers to train, recruit and retain a skilled and flexible workforce that can 
service the health needs of the local population. Challenging CCGs to take a proactive approach in shaping the primary care 
workforce can be included in the assurance framework so the Area Team can be confident these issues are being addressed. 

The AT will need to work collaboratively and communicate with a range of health and social care groups and stakeholders including 
but not limited to CCGs, primary care providers, Local Healthcare Committees, the NHS Leadership Academy and NHS England 
including other Area Teams and the Academic Health Science Networks to help shape development of the primary care workforce 
and access their resources where possible. 

One of the key partners that the Area Team and CCGs must utilise is Health Education England (HEE).  HEE provide training 
programmes nationally but operate at a local level. Through HEE methods for recruiting, retaining, training and developing staff can 
be accessed supporting the need to motivate and empower staff and create a successful skill mix within practices. Such resources 
include apprenticeships, e-learning packages, practice placements, skill development programmes, the Advanced Nurse 

P
age 146



 

 

Page 34 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

Practitioner scheme and the Advanced Training Practice Strategy. HEE North Yorkshire and Humber is also responsible for post-
graduate training in medicine and dentistry across the region; they will be able to create training programmes more suited to local 
service needs which could improve the workforce skill mix and attract staff to the area.        

The Local Professional Networks for dental, eye health and pharmaceutical services set up to promote a strategic, clinically 
informed approach to the planning, commissioning and delivery of services can be used to identify local training and development 
needs as well specifying the range of skills providers should be looking to recruit.  

5.8 Medical 

Across the North Yorkshire and Humber region approximately 50% of GP’s are in a position where they could retire tomorrow. The 
AT must engage with CCG’s to ensure they are producing and implementing effective plans to attract additional and where possible 
younger GPs into the area. This can be achieved by reviewing the career paths and development opportunities of current and 
prospective practitioners specifically identifying local resources and institutions such as Hull and York Medical School as potential 
places of recruitment. CCGs must identify what working conditions could entice GPs into the area and see how they could be 
provided.  

To improve access for patients and reduce appointment time’s practices will be tasked with introducing a range of access pathways 
and solutions for patients. CCG’s must identify how the new ways of working could be used as an incentive for GPs. As some of 
these solutions would be IT based such as telephone, Skype, internet virtual surgeries and tele-health greater flexibility could be 
offered to GPs when provided these services for example working from home might appeal to doctors and help recruitment and 
retention. A shift to seven day working could also appeal to younger workers with families who would have the option to work 
evenings and weekends. 

The removal of treatment in acute settings leading to a large increase in out-of-hospital care will impact on GP Practices. This 
means practices will be required to undertake a range of services in addition to the core services they already provide. Whilst this 
will be a challenge, CCGs and practices should see it as an opportunity to offer their GPs a more varied range of work and create 
specialised roles either within their own practice or across an alliance of practices. As this new way of working may not be 
constrained by the traditional contracting methods it will encourage innovation and forward thinking which will ultimately assist in 
the retention of staff by offering an interesting and stimulating working environment. The formation of Federations would allow for 
more specialisms across the patch. 

P
age 147



 

 

Page 35 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

The shift of work form secondary to primary care will also provide opportunities for staff, specifically nurses to be re-skilled. CCGs 
must identify what services nurses can provide and ensure they are trained accordingly. Similarly to GPs there is an ageing nursing 
workforce so the recruitment and retention of younger nurses must be considered.  

CCGs must ensure that staff appraisals, peer reviews and Continuing Professional Development programmes are be used by 
practices to encourage innovation and identify opportunities within individuals to further develop their role resulting in greater job 
satisfaction.  

5.9 Dental 

For secondary care, the main inpatient dental admissions are for the treatment of dental caries (tooth decay). To reduce 
admissions to hospital for dental treatment support must be offered to providers to develop effective oral health campaigns.  Oral 
health prevention can be managed through a workforce with a varied skill mix; therefore dental practices should be encouraged to 
employ dental therapists, dental hygienists, dental technicians and dental nurses as well as dental practitioners. 

Dental providers can be encouraged and supported to become training practices offering places for Vocational Dental Practitioners 
in the region; this would attract dentists into the area. The design of the training courses could be discussed with HEE so that 
dentists are better placed to deal with more complex cases allowing for other staff within the practice to deal with more 
straightforward treatments such as fluoride varnish application.  

A process to be put in place through the Local Dental Network to agree to Patient Group Directive’s where appropriate, potentially 
allowing dental practices to better maximise the skill mix across their practice staff. This could be important when the new dental 
contract is introduced with more of a focus on improving oral health.    

 

5.10 Pharmacy 

To ensure GP Practices can cope with the increase in out of hospital care pharmacies will be required to play an important role in 
ensuring they provide services more traditionally provided by GP Practices, the NHS Call to Action identified a need for pharmacies 
to play a stronger role in the management of long term conditions.  Pharmacists will need to be trained in order for these services to 

P
age 148



 

 

Page 36 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

be delivered at a high quality; as not all patients visiting a pharmacy will need to be seen by the pharmacist a greater staff skill mix 
will be required to effectively deal with the additional workload. For example dispensers could be identified to take on further 
responsibilities such as the promotion of health lifestyles.  

Supporting the Health Living Pharmacy (HLP) initiative would allow further services to be commissioned best suited to the needs of 
the local population. As part of the initiative a Healthy Living Champion must be appointed to support the important health and 
wellbeing role of the HLP. This would be suitable for a Medicines Counter Assistant further supporting the skill mix of the pharmacy 
team as well as empowering and motivating individuals. 

Pharmacies will be encouraged to provide advanced and locally commissioned services so that GP admissions can be reduced. 
CCGs must identify the services they want to commission so that pharmacies can ensure their staff are fully trained and accredited 
to provide these services. 

5.11 Eye Health 

The Local Eye Health Network was piloted in the Humber region and has been running since 2012. It has been successful in 
developing training programmes, expanding the skills of optometrists, improving local services and streamlining referrals resulting 
in fewer GP admissions.  

Ophthalmic Practices will be encouraged to provide locally commissioned services so that GP admissions can be reduced. CCGs 
must identify the services they want to commission so that practices can ensure their staff are fully trained and accredited to 
provide these services. 

 
 

 
 
 

6.Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) 

P
age 149



 

 

Page 37 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

The QIPP programme is a large scale programme of work developed by the Department of Health to drive forward quality 
improvements in NHS care, at the same time making considerable efficiency savings.  The premise being that improved 
efficiency will lead to improved quality of care.  
 
All clinical commissioning groups must develop QIPP plans as part of their routine business planning.  SRCCG has developed a 
five year plan, building on plans which began in 2012/13. The detailed phasing of the plan has been developed, reflected in the 
contract plan for 2014/15 and 2015/16 and will inform future contract negotiations with service providers. 
 
6.1 SRCCG QIPP Programme 

The CCG faces a significant challenge in its QIPP programme for the period of the strategic plan. In the first two years the CCG 
currently forecasts a requirement to achieve a 4% efficiency gain, reducing to 3% in years three to five. This is consistent with the 
national expectations surrounding QIPP and reflects the impact of demographic and technological changes that increases demand. 
Although the CCG QIPP forecast is not out of line with other health communities it represents a scale of financial efficiency not 
previously achieved. However, the QIPP plan enables the CCG not only to plan for savings, but also to plan for investment in 
support of service redesign. Thus, financial efficiency will be achieved through targeted actions to improve utilisation, reduce waste, 
and improve patient outcomes. 

The QIPP programme focuses on a number of different areas of health spend:  

6.1.1 Planned Care  

 The CCG will continue its development of an Expert Consulting system as a means to reduce unnecessary attendances at 
secondary care.  

 Where difficulty in meeting demand has already been highlighted, for example rheumatology and ophthalmology we will 
explore new and innovative solutions in primary care 

6.1.2 Demand management 

P
age 150



 

 

Page 38 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 The CCG will co-ordinate work with its GP practices to develop greater capacity in primary care to effectively manage some 
patients without onwards referral into secondary care, for assessment or diagnosis. The CCG is considering introducing a 
form of virtual fundholding, to encourage the strengthening of service provision in primary care.  

 We will work with YFT and Primary care to ensure that patients’ diagnostic phase is optimised before referral for specialist 
opinion. 

 We will facilitate training in musculo-skeletal (MSK)conditions for all of our GPs 

6.1.3 Emergency Care  

 The CCG’s strategic objective of strengthening community services will reduce the overall demand for emergency inpatient 
admission.  

 The targeted investment linked to the Better Care Fund [ref 8] will improve efficiency through: reducing inpatient admissions; 
shifting elderly care admissions from long to short stay; and reducing the total number of emergency excess bed days.  

6.1.4 Urgent Care 

 The CCG’s major urgent care procurement for a new Urgent Care service will see a new service established in April 2015. 
The reduction in duplication across a number of separate services and service providers will release significant efficiencies 
from 2014 onwards.  

     6.1.5 Prescribing 

 The CCG and its member practices have a strong track record in delivering prescribing efficiencies. The prescribing 
efficiency plan is well developed and is forecast to achieve a 4% efficiency of the total primary care prescribing budget.  

 

 

P
age 151



 

 

Page 39 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

6.1.6. Community and Partnerships 

The CCG spends a large proportion of its commissioning resource on areas such as Continuing Healthcare (CHC), often in care 
packages involving a number of partner agencies. As 2013-14 saw reduced spend in elements of CHC, the current QIPP plan 
includes actions to reduce cost, in areas such as creating greater local capacity to avoid unnecessary and expensive out of area 
placements. 

The schedules contained within the financial plan provide a detailed description of the elements of the QIPP plan, the efficiency 
gains forecast, and the phased target achievement across the timescales of the plan.  

The QIPP plan lays the basis for the achievement of recurrent in-year financial balance (so-called ‘run-rate balance’). The Financial 
Plan includes the summary of the 5 year QIPP plan.  

 

The CCG believes the QIPP plan provides a credible plan to provide financial sustainability for Scarborough and Ryedale whilst 
driving through improved quality in clinical services. 

 
6.2 Our approach to Medicines Management  

Medicines expenditure in SRCCG was £19,057,866 in 2012-13. The national average number of prescription items dispensed per 

head of population is rising. (18.7 items in 2012). Prescribing accounts for the second largest area of spend in the NHS (second to 

staffing costs) and is considered to be the most frequent health care intervention.  

Optimal use of medicines represents a significant opportunity to improve health outcomes but when used sub-optimally or 

inappropriately their use can impact on patient safety and wellbeing and furthermore may cause harm leading to hospital 

admissions: there is evidence that approximately 7% of hospital admissions are due to adverse drug reactions. It is considered that 

up to 50% of patients do not take their prescribed medicines as intended. Inappropriate use of antimicrobials can lead to 

development of healthcare associated infections such as Clostridium difficile and MRSA. 

 

P
age 152



 

 

Page 40 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

6.2.1 Key objectives of the medicines management strategy 

The CCG is committed to ensuring that medicines are used safely, effectively and efficiently and will do this broadly by focusing on 

safety and quality, and financial and budgetary control. In more detail this strategy will cover:  

 Engaging with key stakeholders – patients, the public and healthcare professionals in optimising use of medicines for 

individuals 

 Establishing a culture of safety and quality with respect to medicines use including governance frameworks to underpin safe 

systems for medicines use from procurement through to administration 

 Ensuring budgetary efficiency and management of financial risk associated with medicines and prescribing by effective 

decision making for medicines commissioning; utilisation of benchmarking tools and appropriate performance management. 

The CCG will aim to remain in the lower range of cost per ASTRO-Pu (Age/Sex/Temporary Resident/Originated Prescribing 

Unit) across the region. 

 Ensuring compliance with NICE guidance and effective application of horizon scanning processes to safely manage the 

entry of new drugs. 

 Development of systems and processes to enable patients to get optimal use from their medicines to ensure that the full 

benefit of care pathways can be realised. 

 Making optimal use of IT tools to underpin the safe and efficient processes for prescribing and dispensing medicines and to 

enable ready selection of formulary choices of medicines. 

 Ensuring that there is appropriate specialist pharmaceutical support to prescribers in the safe use of medicines, ranging from 

education to practical help and advice. 

 Effective communication to ensure consistency in approach and consistent application of best practice. 

 Development of innovative ways of managing medicines from review of procurement systems to imaginative ways of 

delivering medicines management support to patients and prescribers  

 Ensure that all processes relating to medicines use and associated transactions are transparent and facilitate integrated care 

across all care settings. 

P
age 153



 

 

Page 41 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 Prevention - preventing ill health and preventing premature death – ensuring the optimal use of prophylactic medicines for 

e.g. stroke, coronary heart disease and diabetes. 

 Enhancing the quality of life for patients with long term conditions – enabling patients to get the best from their medicines: 

supporting patients to understand the benefits of effective medicines compliance and where to get support regarding their 

medicines use. Also to identify patients who might be at risk of medicines interactions or adverse effects. 

 Enabling and supporting self-care and aiding recovering from ill health and injury through appropriate medicines use and 

signposting. 

 Supporting the population in ageing well through effective use of medicines with regular review to reflect changes in patients’ 

needs and physiological states.  

 Promotion of self-care for patients from ill health prevention to minor illness and chronic disease. 

 Support for medicines management systems and processes in all care settings including care homes and domiciliary care.  

 Unplanned admissions – developing mechanisms to identify patients who may be at risk of harm from complex medicines 

regimes or whose condition may be poorly managed due to suboptimal medicines compliance  e.g. COPD. 

 Contribute to the achievement of wellbeing of the population by reducing medicines related adverse events and optimising 

the use of medicines to achieve the best possible outcomes within the context of achieving value for money. 

 

Medicines optimisation services should be developed based on the core features as described above. In practical terms, this will 

include: 

 Clinical engagement in local medicines commissioning decisions processes to ensure value for money. Further engagement 

with secondary care to ensure medicines commissioning and procurement processes are aligned and support the achievement 

of best value. 

 A strategy for reducing medicines waste. 

 Safe management of controlled drugs. 

 Effective communication and engagement with all prescribers about all aspects of medicines management underpinned by a 

comprehensive web based information system. 

P
age 154



 

 

Page 42 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 Efficient GP practice based plans and IT systems to manage medicines effectively by: 

o Effective use of medicines formularies supported by sophisticated IT solutions 

o Effective use of medicines information tools and personnel to manage medicines safety alerts and to enable 

responsiveness in changes to medicines pathways  

o Safe and effective use of antimicrobials underpinned by best practice guidance to minimise harm to patients 

o Effective communication between stakeholders to achieve seamless and safe care across all interfaces including 

admission and discharge.  

o Closer collaborative working with secondary care to enable patients at risk of harm from their medicines to be safely 

transferred back into domiciliary care. Schemes to support medicines reconciliation post discharge using pharmacists 

and technicians to work as integral part of the practice team 

 Utilising every opportunity for patient contact with all healthcare professionals to deliver medicines optimisation– promote 

shared goals and collaboration amongst all healthcare professionals. 

 Enabling medicines use to be optimised across all care settings including care homes, domiciliary settings and in the 

consultation room – developing schemes to identify the best use of available skills to make targeted interventions for medicines 

optimisation. 

 Further development of systems to enable medicines optimisation outcomes to be quantified and translated into demonstrating 

tangible benefits to patients. 
 

P
age 155



 

 

Page 43 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

7.The Provider Landscape within which we must facilitate change 

 

In order to preserve the fundamental values of the NHS, the NHS must change.   If services stay as they are, continuing demand 
and an aging population combined with difficulty in securing staff and skills will make “the NHS become financial unsustainable and 
quality and safety will decline”. The current configuration of providers of healthcare will change over the next five years. In some 
instances, change will need to be radical.  In order to facilitate care closer to home, we will need to strengthen primary and 
community care.  We have an excellent voluntary sector in Scarborough and Ryedale and we will maximise the use of these bodies 
to support patients and carers. We will need to enhance technology and implement innovative solutions.  Our populations will need 
to take responsibility for changing lifestyles and work with agencies to prevent illness and improve public health. 

 
Initial discussions are planned with our Council of Clinical Representatives in July 2014 regarding the future of secondary care 

services.  This debate will help to form the basis of further discussions with our main providers. 

 

The current vision for services in Scarborough Hospital continues to reflect the concept of the ‘Health Village’. This sees a relatively 
focused District General Hospital providing a range of acute services that are those with sufficient volume of activity for quality and 
performance to be consistent with delivering good patient outcomes.  

Some of the more specialised services may be delivered either in specialist centres (as is currently the case with certain types of 
heart attack treatment) or through clinical networks. The CCG is engaging with YFT in developing such networks in areas such as 
stroke care, and this may be extended to other specialised services, utilising networks involving clinicians from York and Hull.  

Where care can be delivered closer to a patients’ own home, it is anticipated the role of acute hospital care will be to facilitate 
assessment and diagnosis, but with a greater emphasis on outpatient and domiciliary care and less on management through 
inpatient admission.  

The acute hospital itself will continue to provide a core range of services, including Emergency Care, Maternity, Paediatrics, 
Diagnostic interventions, and a range of elective treatments. Elective care will primarily be minor and intermediate surgery, but 
where larger volume and high quality care can be provided, for example elective Orthopaedics, this may continue through the acute 
hospital system in the locality. It is anticipated more complex major surgery may be primarily delivered in larger specialist centres 

P
age 156



 

 

Page 44 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

(as is already the case in most instances).  

The described community hub services will ‘wrap around’ the acute hospital: the hubs themselves wrapped around by the primary 
care led Neighbourhood Care Teams. As part of the service planning through the Better Care Fund, the CCG plans for a greater 
focus on self-care, and maximising the use of the already mentioned strong local voluntary sector.  

The vision of tightly commissioned acute service, supported through clinical networks, wrapped by a series of community and 
primary care services is illustrated in diagram 3.  

 

 

P
age 157



 

 

Page 45 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

Diagram  3 

P
age 158



 

 

Page 46 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

York Teaching Hospital NHS Trust is our main secondary care provider of services for our population with flows into Hull and East 
Yorkshire NHS Trust (HEY) for general services in the southern and eastern parts of the patch and for certain tertiary services 
across the whole area.  

 
7.1 York Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

York Teaching Hospital provides a comprehensive range of acute hospital, specialist healthcare services and community services 
for approximately 530,000 people living in and around York, North Yorkshire, North East Yorkshire and Ryedale.  The trust employs 
approximately 8,000 staff working across the hospitals and community, with an annual turnover of over £400m.   

York Hospital 

 

The largest hospital site run by YTH.  This is a 700 bed hospital, offering a range of inpatient and outpatient services.  It has an Accident 

and Emergency department and provides acute medical and surgical services, including trauma, intensive care and cardiothoracic 

services to the population and visitors to York and North Yorkshire. 

Scarborough Hospital Scarborough Hospital is the Trust’s second largest hospital. It has an Accident and Emergency department and provides acute medical 

and surgical services, including trauma and intensive care services to the population and visitors to the North East Yorkshire Coast. 

Bridlington Hospital Bridlington Hospital is a district hospital which provides surgical, rehabilitation, and outpatients services to the local Bridlington 
community.  The hospital is being developed into an elective surgery centre to allow the separation of elective and acute care in 
Scarborough 

Malton Community Hospital 

 

Malton Hospital is an inpatient and outpatient unit providing hospital care to patients over the age of 18. The hospital provides inpatient 

rehabilitation, palliative care and outpatients services to the local Ryedale community in association with local GPs. The hospital also has 

a nurse-led minor injuries unit. 

 

7.2 Hull & East Yorkshire NHS Trust (HEY) 

HEY provides a comprehensive range of acute hospital, specialist and major trauma services for approximately 1.25 million people 
living in the Hull, Yorkshire, East Riding and Northern Lincolnshire area.  The trust provides networked services with other providers 
in the area, including; major trauma, major vascular, neurosciences, cardiology, oral surgery urology, cancer services, and a range 
of screening services.  The only major services not provided locally are transplant surgery, major burns and some specialist 

P
age 159



 

 

Page 47 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

paediatric and highly specialised cancer services. HEY employs approximately 8,664 staff working across the hospitals and 
community, with an annual turnover of £495m. HEY do not yet have Foundation Trust status. 

Hull Royal Infirmary Hull Royal Infirmary is based in the centre of Hull. With 709 beds, it is the emergency centre for the Trust. The A & E 

department sees 120,000 people each year, and is currently being upgraded. 

The site also consists of a dedicated Renal Dialysis unit, the Eye Hospital, and the Women’s and Children’s Hospital. The 

Clinical Skills facility is also based here. 

Castle Hill Hospital Castle Hill Hospital is based in the rural East Riding. It provides predominantly elective care, with 610 beds. This site includes 

the award-winning Queen's Centre for Oncology and Haematology, the Centre for Cardiology and Cardiothoracic Surgery 

(bringing diagnostic and treatment facilities in one state-of-the-art building on the site), and the Centenary Building (Breast 

Surgery and ENT).  

 
7.3 Key Principles 

 
There are some principles common to all CCGs across the North Yorkshire and Humber patch which underpin the way services will 
be commissioned from Providers over the next 5 years: 

 Quality and safety must be the highest priority 

 There will be an increasing requirement for focus on prevention and self-care / independent living rather than reliance on 
hospital based care  

 A small number of hospital services will be commissioned from centralised locations if necessary to improve outcomes 

 There is a need to reduce inappropriate admissions to inpatient beds in hospitals and care homes through better management 
of care in the community 

 Organisational barriers need to be broken down where needs are complex and patient care crosses numerous boundaries to 
improve co-ordination and reduce fragmentation of care 

 Providers will be expected to work within the financial constraints of each health community 
 
 
 

P
age 160



 

 

Page 48 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

7.4 Core enabling themes 

In order to deliver this challenging agenda there are some specific enabling work that will need to be undertaken.   

7 day working and 24/7 access to key services and information is required both in hospital services and primary care/community 
services (meeting the national standards) 

 The workforce needs to be supported to work, and to have their training and professional development, in different ways to 
support the integration agenda 

 IT infrastructure and access to health and social care records must be seamless and timely, and cross organisational barriers, 
using technology to ensure better outcomes and efficiencies.  This needs to include partner organisations such as Local 
Authorities, to ensure that we overcome the challenges with sharing and transferring information. 

 Single Point Access, and/or Single Point of Contact to support appropriate care navigation where individuals and their 
families/carers are directed to the most appropriate service at the most appropriate time 

 Providers will need to work with health and social care commissioners (including Local Authorities) to change the way that acute 
services are provided to reduce face to face interventions and promote community based care  

 Community services and Primary Care will be strengthened, for example; primary health care teams, community nursing, 
community based diabetic care, or management of long term conditions to ensure that hospital services are used appropriately. 

 Communication channels between care homes and the wider health and social care community need to be strengthened and 
improved 

 There is a need to increase access to hospice care for all patient groups (e.g. COPD and heart failure patients and other end of 
life care, not just cancer patients) and to ensure this is available in a timely manner, in order to reduce admission to hospitals 
(particularly out of hours) 

 Transport and infrastructure will be a key concern for patients if current service locations are changed, and commissioners will 
work with transport companies to use resources as effectively as possible 

 A range of different technologies will be harnessed to enable and promote self-care and home-care provision of services where 
safe and clinically appropriate 

 Outcome based measurement of care services rather than process metrics to ensure that organisations focus on quality of care 
outcomes rather than timings and volumes. 

 

P
age 161



 

 

Page 49 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

7.5 Future direction of travel for commissioning of acute hospital services  

Based on a mix of national recommendations and local needs assessments:     

7.5.1 The national picture 

National thinking around hospital based care has been influenced through high profile reviews such as the Keogh review of Mid-
Staffordshire Hospital, and a selection of other hospitals around the country.  Recommendations from these reviews have 
underpinned commissioners thinking locally.  In his review of hospital services Sir Bruce Keogh recommended serious or life 
threatening care needs to be delivered in centres of excellence, with the best expertise and facilities to maximise chances of 
survival and recovery.  As such, national recommendations are moving towards commissioning serious and life-threatening 
emergency care services from centralised locations.  A lot of this has already happened in our area with major trauma, procedures 
relating to some heart attacks and vascular surgery already commissioned and delivered through clinical networks. 

It is anticipated that a large number of very specialised providers will be commissioned to provide a few procedures at exceptional 
levels of quality and value. Hospitals will be expected to utilise generalist-led, multi-disciplinary teams to provide continuous care 
around each patient, so the patient doesn’t need to move around wards.  This could include in-reach/outreach services where one 
team covers the whole episode, for example; defining a care group/need and having one organisation lead or follow the whole 
pathway. 

Most health consultations and diagnosis will be commissioned from local primary centres and the home, as specialists consult 
virtually from a small number of large specialist hospitals, and a greater understanding of genetic risks and how to combine 
personalised medicine with services will enable management of risks and disease prevention. 

7.5.2 The local picture 

This national thinking has informed past and on-going discussions between the CCG and hospitals within our local area. This has 
focussed on how services could be delivered jointly in the future in a sustainable way.  Patients already travel within the NYH area 
and further afield for certain specialist integrated services, and benefit from high quality care through the commissioning of services 
from clinical networks between hospitals.  YTH, HEY and North Lincolnshire and Goole have shared with commissioners that they 
feel the scale of the quality, workforce and financial challenges will not be achieved if they work in isolation, and as national thinking 

P
age 162



 

 

Page 50 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

moves more towards centralisation of specialist services, for quality and safety purposes, and it is anticipated that this principle will 
be applied to a small number of  services where appropriate in the NYH area, subject to consultation processes. 

Commissioners are clear that centralisation of health care services will not save money (as the same number of patients will need 
to be treated).  In some cases it may even cost more to move services into one location, as there could be some building/relocation 
costs.  Centralisation considerations are to improve quality and safety. 

Whole-system changes to existing health and social care services will be required if commissioning intentions and national 
recommendations are to be implemented.  This may include changes to organisational constructs, or reconfiguration of 
organisational boundaries.  

The work led by the Chief Executives of NLaG, HEY and YTH is looking at the vision of health care services by 2030 and is based 
on the following assumptions: 

 There will be fewer tax payers 

 Not every health and care service will be free 

 There will be a skill deficit 

 HEY acute building site will have to be replaced 

 There will be reduced operating costs 

 People will travel for excellence 

 There will need to be increased provision for the elderly 

 There will need to be increased end of life provision 

 The workforce will be older 

 Employee contracts will look different 
 

Commissioners have set out their expected service requirements, and it is up to providers to respond to those requests.  It is 
expected that provider responses will involve a range of different options for delivery of services, including reconfiguration, 
collaboration, alliances and clinical networked approaches. The local acute hospital trusts are working proactively to establish 
closer clinical networks and support joint integrated working in preparation for any changes to organisational constructs that may be 

P
age 163



 

 

Page 51 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

required. Commissioners will not define the approach, but will expect to sign off on any changes to healthcare delivery for their 
populations.   
 
Undoubtedly this will involve whole-scale change, and different ways of commissioning, providing and receiving care.  Health and 
Social Care Commissioners and providers will have to work together to deliver the scale of change that will be required.   

 

7.5.3 “Specialist Services concentrated in centres of excellence” 

 

Specialist services are not commissioned by the CCG; these services are the responsibility of NHS England.  However, as a 
minority of our patients will at some time in their lives need to access specialist services it is important that the CCG is involved 
where changes to pathways or service delivery is being considered.  Predominantly our patients currently access specialist services 
from hospitals in York, Hull, Leeds, and South Tees.  There is a national drive to develop centres of excellence across the country 
which may lead to changes in our current services and result in fewer hospitals providing certain services. With these changes in 
mind, 

 

 We are committed to working with Strategic Clinical Networks and specialist commissioners to secure and couple local 
commissioning responsibilities with those of national commissioning responsibilities; 

 

 We will proactively engage with Operational Development Networks (e.g.Vascular, Major Trauma, Cancer) regarding 
securing local pathways which interface with specialist services. 

 

 Where changes to pathways and service delivery are being considered we will work in collaboration to support the 
development of new pathways and business case for proposed changes. 

 

 We will proactively contribute to the evidence base and input into local consultation processes. 
 

P
age 164



 

 

Page 52 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 We will ensure that there are effective links to specialist commissioners so that local GPs and other professionals are 
informed and able to support their patients accordingly 

 

As mentioned in section 2, all Provider Trusts find themselves in similarly challenging financial situations as the CCG.  Trusts are 
expected to deliver efficiencies whilst maintaining and improving quality of care and as such all have Cost Improvement Plans (CIP) 
in place. 

 
The CCG has an on-going and established process for assuring itself around the: 

(i.) robustness of Providers’ Quality Impact Assessment (QIA) processes which are in place  
(ii.) quality impact of Providers’ Cost Improvement Plans 

 
This includes the forward reporting of new emerging CIPs through the Contract Management Board as well as on-going QIA 
reporting for CIPs already in implementation. This is in line with all the appropriate national guidance and is embedded in the 
contracting and provider performance & compliance framework.  There is regular reporting to and discussion with the CCGs’ clinical 
leads through the appropriate Quality and Performance Committee, and in turn to Governing Body. The CCG assurance processes 
are co-ordinated by the Executive Nurse with support from contracting, planning & assurance and workforce teams as required. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 165



 

 

Page 53 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

 

If there is one area where the commissioning strategy intends the health and social care system to look radically different it is in the 
development of a much stronger, integrated community system. Thus, the redesigned system will provide: 

 

 Capacity – through a transfer of resource into primary and community   services, closer to patients. 

 Efficiency – through streamlined pathways and less use of hospital resources by supporting patients in their own 
residences 

 Effectiveness – through integrating services within healthcare (across primary, community, and secondary care 
boundaries) and through integrating across health and social care 

 Responsiveness – through partnership working with a range of agencies, in particular the local voluntary sector. 

 Workforce – a flexible streamlined workforce, reducing service duplication, with a transfer of resource from hospital 
based to community based services. 

 
The work-streams in 2014/15 and 2015/16 are: 

 

 Extending Neighbourhood Care Teams (NCTs) – bringing together community nurses, therapists, and social care 
staff, clustered around General Practice. 

 Development of Community Hubs in Malton and Scarborough which will provide outreach to NCTs and 
rapid assessment and care planning for frail, elderly patients who all too often are admitted to secondary 
care beds because there is no other alternative service available. 

 Developing a model to support patients in care homes 

 A pilot scheme to consider a more integrated  approach to district  and  practice nursing within a 
neighbourhood care team 

 Roll out of the Neighbourhood Care Team (NCT) project across the locality 

 A pilot, changing community hospitals from ‘small hospitals’ into non-hospital ‘community hubs’ including a 
frailty model of early assessment, diagnosis and support. 

8. A Strong Community System 

 

P
age 166



 

 

Page 54 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 Implementing specialist liaison mental health services into urgent care and acute hospital inpatient care. 
 
In addition to national indicators, the CCG has decided to aim to achieve a local priority indicator “reduction in falls in the elderly”.  
To support this ambition, a falls service will be commissioned as part of the community hub. 

 

Through discussion, debate and engagement with stakeholders across health and social care we have developed a strategic 
approach to commissioning care in the community. 
 

The strategic context is informed by a number of major national and local factors, including: 

 The current economic downturn. Despite the re-emergence of economic growth, the UK economy remains below its output 
level at the start of the financial crisis and the government has indicated a need to continue to restrain public spending.  
 

 A desire for greater integration between health and social care. The divides between care sectors often appear nonsensical 
to patients, and provide discontinuity of care and duplication of resources. However, moving towards more integrated care 
across different organizations, with different financial and delivery challenges remains far from easy. 

 

 “The demographic challenge has arguably been overstated in terms of the number of heavily dependent older people 
requiring care”.  What may be clearer is the generally larger number of those requiring some form of care, and their 
expectation of when and how that care is delivered. There may not be an objective need for greater numbers of care home 
beds, but there may be a need for a greater range of services for the chronically ill, mostly accessible with short waiting 
times.  

 

 “A desire to develop much greater integration as a means of addressing a demographic challenge should not obscure the 
relative lack of supporting evidence for community initiatives (including some technological ‘solutions’) in reducing the 
number of emergency admissions”. The evidence base will need to be considered when considering significant shifts of 
resource from one care sector to another.  

 

P
age 167



 

 

Page 55 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 The ‘Scarborough complex’. The history of the Scarborough health community’s challenges over the last 10-15 years have 
been documented elsewhere. However, the recent acquisition of the Scarborough Hospital by York Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust (YFT) has not fundamentally resolved the challenges.  Although the YFT acquisition has been welcomed, it 
requires major changes to make services in the locality sustainable for the longer-term. 

 
The move to joint working at a corporate level indicates the significant pressures that face the NHS and Social Care as a 
growing elderly population, with a significant proportion of complex needs, and ever increasing public expectation threaten to 
overwhelm current services.  We are fully aware of this national issue in Scarborough and Ryedale with large proportions of our 
health budget being attributed to elderly care, emergency presentations at A&E and long stay acute admissions.  We recognise 
that this is not a sustainable position and seek to make radical changes over the forthcoming years.  Specifically in 2014-15 and 
2015-16 we will put in place the building blocks to allow patients to be treated as close to their home as possible by ensuring 
that primary care and community care has sufficient capacity and appropriate skills to avoid unnecessary visits and admissions 
to secondary care.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 168



 

 

Page 56 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

8.1 Developing the community strategy  

Through a series of workshops and stakeholder engagement the CCG has developed the vision for community services.(see 
diagram 3) 

To achieve a common approach to community system development we will seek to agree a series of overarching principles that all 
partner organizations can commit to and which guide subsequent actions. The initial proposed principles are: 

 Promoting health  
A priority should be given to evidenced based initiatives that improve population health. Whilst the direct health benefits and 
cost reductions may be largely into the longer-term, the overall gains are likely to be large.  
 

 The patient’s own residence as the default place for care delivery 
Accepting that there may not necessarily be a significant evidence base that ‘care closer to home’ is more economically 
efficient; the principle should underpin the overall strategy. It is considered to be supported by the majority of the patient 
population, and may allow significant cost reduction in expensive specialist facility based care.  

 

 No health without mental health. [DH 2011] 
Whilst many mainstream mental health services may be of high quality, there are significant gaps in ‘interface’ services, such 
as liaison psychiatry. The principle of no health without mental health should underpin the commissioning of all care 
services.  

 

 Common procedures for individual care needs assessment 
Delays in care planning and management, with resulting inefficiency and duplication may be attributed to a lack of common, 
integrated care assessment.  Partners commit to work to agree common assessment frameworks wherever possible.  

 

 Pooling of resources wherever possible to support joint care delivery  
The local experience of formal pooled budgets appears relatively limited and integration may benefit from much greater use 
of pooled budgets. The Better Care Fund should be seen as the minimum level of investment into integrated care, not the 
maximum.  

P
age 169



 

 

Page 57 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 Financial mechanisms that obstruct integrated care development should be adjusted or abandoned 
Although the introduction of Payment by Results (PbR) by the NHS has had many benefits, in some cases it appears to 
provide perverse incentives and can obstruct service redesign. Partners should commit to move away from such financial 
flows where they appear problematic. 

 

 Cost shunting is not efficiency 
Merely transferring a financial problem from one care sector or agency to another does not reduce the overall cost burden. 
The focus for efficiency gains is to reduce actual costs not to transfer financial pressures between sectors. 
 

 

It is essential there is commitment to support implementing the areas of action. It is also important to recognise it is unlikely in 
any major area of improvement that a detailed agreed plan of action will necessarily be produced at the outset. A lack of a 
detailed ‘blueprint’ should not be seen as a weakness: in some cases it may be a strength.  However, there will be a need to 
agree and support the overarching principle and objective. Partners may disagree as to precise implementation but such 
disagreement can be managed through a collective endorsement of service improvement as an approach and the need to act 
and reflect, through early actions and trials.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 170



 

 

Page 58 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Care 
homes 

Diagram 3 

Day project 

Community Hub: 
Social support. 

Community Geriatrician supported 
by GP Clinical Assistants. 

Therapists 

Pharmacist 
Dietician 

Specialist Nurses 
Access to mental health & 

diagnositcs 

 

 

Nursing 

C
o

m
m

u
n
ity

 
tra

n
s
p

o
rt C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 

NCT 
Social  

Voluntary 
GP 
DN 

NCT 
Social  

Voluntary 
GP 
DN 

Care 
home

s 

NCT 
Social  

Voluntary 
GP 
DN 

Care 
homes 

NCT 
Social  

Voluntary 
GP 
DN 

P
age 171



 

 

Page 59 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
 

 
SRCCG will continue to work closely with North Yorkshire County Council to improve health and reduce health inequalities as 
identified in the JSNA and draft Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The relevant sections of the JSNA include those for North 
Yorkshire as a whole as well as specific issues identified for SRCCG and can be found at Appendix 1. Public health improvement 
programmes commissioned by North Yorkshire County Council will be supported and implemented locally, including smoking 
cessation, drug and alcohol treatment services as well as immunisation and screening programmes that will be commissioned by 
NHS Commissioning Board. 
 

The stronger community system will support improved outcomes through clinically and cost-effective models of delivering 
sustainable, safe, patient focussed services. The aim of the services will be to improve the health outcomes of our communities, 
with particular focus on areas considered high priorities. 
 
From analysis of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) the CCG has identified four priority areas for improvement in 
health outcomes:-  
 

 Cancer 

 Cardiovascular care 

 Mental Health 

 Elderly care 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9. Improving Health and Reducing Inequality 

 

P
age 172



 

 

Page 60 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
9.1 Cancer.   
 
Cancer remains the lead cause of premature death in SR area.  The CCG will develop plans working with public health and other 
key stakeholders to reduce inequalities in outcomes between the most affluent and the most deprived communities in our 
population and to increase the 1 and 5 year survival rates to compare more favourably both national and internationally.   
 
Although the quality of cancer treatment for the CCG population is considered good, there remain opportunities to improve 
outcomes through earlier diagnosis. 
 
There are currently around 2,500 people living with cancer in the SR locality.  The aim of the National Cancer Survivorship Initiative 
is to ensure those living with and beyond cancer get the care and support they need to lead as healthy and active a life as possible, 
for as long as possible.  In March 2013, Living with and beyond cancer: Taking Action to Improve Outcomes was published to help 
inform the direction of survivorship work in England to 2015.  The document identified a number of key interventions that could 
make an immediate difference, including the introduction of “The Recovery Package” which includes: 
 

 Structured Holistic Needs Assessment and Care Planning 

 Treatment Summaries and Cancer Care reviews 

 Patient education and support events 

 Advice about and access to schemes that support people to undertake physical activity and healthy weight management 
 
The CCG is committed to working with providers and the Strategic Clinical Network to develop new models of care which will 
deliver these elements of care and reduce the need for continued follow up. 
 
 
9.2 Cardiovascular care. 
 
Cardiovascular outcomes are significantly worse for the CCG population than for the rest of North Yorkshire and contribute 
significantly to the health inequalities evident in the most deprived areas of the CCG. The most significant contribution to tackling 
the gap in life expectancy is therefore likely to come from the risk factors common to all these diseases, particularly smoking 

P
age 173



 

 

Page 61 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

cessation, as well as the detection and improved management of hypertension, raised cholesterol, coronary heart disease and 
diabetes. The graph below demonstrates the impact of cardiovascular disease on mortality. 
 
 

 
 
In 2012-13 the CCG targeted improvements in stroke care, in line with current NICE guidance with the aim of: improving the time 
stroke patients spend in a dedicated stroke unit; improving access to TIA clinics; and instituting early supported discharge for 
appropriate stroke patients. The focus on improving outcomes for stroke patients will continue. 
 

P
age 174



 

 

Page 62 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

The CCG and partners will continue the implementation of the developed model pathway for Congestive Heart Failure (CHF). 
Further developing work will focus on managing hypertension and angina in primary care. 
 
The CCG has committed to review diabetes care, particularly in relation to the relatively high rates of amputation in 
Scarborough and Ryedale. 
 
9.3 Elderly care. 
 
Alongside the work developing for LTCs the CCG is committed to improving the services for the elderly patients. The CCG intends 
to commission a rapid assessment service for elderly patients with complex needs and a falls service as part of the Community 
Hub. The aim is to provide rapid assessment and treatment planning for elderly patients (whether in or outside the hospital) 
seeking to avoid unnecessary hospital admission. Linkages to social care and the voluntary sector will support an approach of 
seeking to ‘maintain normality’ by ensuring adequate support is available. 
 
9.4 Improving mental health and achieving parity of esteem  
 
In line with No Health without Mental Health and the requirement in Everyone Counts to ensure parity of esteem, the CCG aims 
to improve the quality and access of mental health services  

 
Parity of Esteem is a key theme in Everyone Counts and fits well with SRCCGs strategy to focus on mental health services.  We 
are well aware that mental health services on the East Coast are not as robust or consistent as they should be.  There are 
numerous factors that have contributed historically to this, not least the difficulty of providing care in a remote location, distant from 
Mental Health Providers.  However, we are committed to improving the range of services and ensuring adequate access to 
diagnosis and therapy support: 

 
9.5 Psychological Therapies  
 

Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) is a national programme which supports the implementation of NICE guidance 
for people suffering from depression and anxiety disorders.  It was set up to offer patients a realistic and routine first-line treatment, 
combined where appropriate, with medication which traditionally had been the only treatment available. 

P
age 175



 

 

Page 63 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
In Scarborough and Ryedale the waiting times for IAPT is over 14 weeks for low intensity support and 14 months for high intensity 
support. This has led to a great deal of service user and referrer dissatisfaction and negative media attention. The current provision 
will not meet the operational target of 15% by the end of 2014/15 (The proportion of people who have depression and/or anxiety 
disorders who receive psychological therapies will be 15% by 2015).  The National IAPT programme has identified SRCCG as 
having a projection of 3.7%. 
 
SRCCG will commission a psychological therapies service that provides a range of therapies from low level interventions and 
support to high intensity treatment within primary and community settings that is responsive and accessible and meet the national 
target of 15% of the population accessing IAPT who meet the criteria. 
 

The services will: 
 

 Have one point of access 

 Be responsive and accessible, with an aim of waiting times of no more than 2 

 weeks 

 Offers choice of therapies (1-1 / group-work / use of technology) 

 Provide timely and informative feedback to primary care (GPs) on the outcomes of the treatment provided 
 
With the provision of this service we would expect to see improved outcomes, in particular: 
 

 A greater number of people will experience recovery and greater independence 

 People will have been supported to return to, or maintain optimal independence and wellbeing that enables them 
to participate in a social and productive life according to their needs and wishes. 

 People will have been supported to access education and employment 

 Reduction in escalation to a crisis situation 
 

 
 

P
age 176



 

 

Page 64 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

9.6 Dementia  

 
Currently, only about one third of people with dementia receive a formal diagnosis.  
When a diagnosis is made it is often too late for those suffering with the illness to make choices about their future care and is also 
often made at a time of crisis which could have been avoided if a diagnosis had been made earlier causing distress to patients and 
carers. 
 
In 2012 there were 779 people on GP registers with a diagnosis of dementia. This equates to 0.67% of the population.  
 
To overcome this problem SRCCG will: 

 Support the development of Dementia Friendly Communities within SR CCG to reduce stigma, increase awareness of 
dementia, increase early diagnosis and provide support to people to live independently for as long as possible 

 Work with Primary Care to increase the knowledge and skills of practice staff, increase efficiency of screening and links to 
memory clinics and care navigator. 

 
As a result of these developments, patients will: 
 

 Be able to make sense of their change of behaviour 

 Get an earlier diagnosis  

 Be able to make informed choices about their future – how they want to live and how they want to die. 

 Be able to learn coping mechanisms – for the person with dementia and their family and friends. 

 Be able to arrange for support to help them maintain their independence for as long as possible 

 Have an improved quality of life 
 
In addition to these services, the CCG will work in partnership with our Mental Health Provider, Acute Provider and local authority, 
to develop a dementia collaborative aimed at reviewing dementia care pathways across all sectors of care to ensure that support is 
available when needed and streamline care for patients with dementia.  This programme of work will be underpinned by Lean 
Thinking methodology. 
 

P
age 177



 

 

Page 65 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

9.7 Liaison Psychiatry 
 

People with a long term physical illness are three to four times more likely to have a mental illness and the prevalence of mental 
health conditions is particularly high (30-65%) among acute hospital patients.  This co-morbidity is associated with a number of 
adverse consequences, including poorer quality of care for the physical condition, reduced adherence to treatment, increased costs 
and poorer health outcomes.  Liaison Psychiatry services have been developed in response to this need and have shown to  
improve care and enable discharge earlier if patient’s mental health needs are addressed, also reducing re-admission rates.   
 
SRCCG will commission a comprehensive liaison service that is responsive to patients requiring mental health support in 
A&E and for complex cases on wards, in partnership with York Foundation Trust and Tees, Esk and Wear Valley Mental 
Health Trust. The service will bring appropriate detection of mental illness, signposting of specialist mental health services, 
working to avoid re-admissions and up skilling ward staff.   
 
We anticipate the outcomes of this service to be: 
 

 Increased diagnosis of mental health (including dementia) 

 Decrease in bed occupancy 

 Reduction in inappropriate investigations 

 Reduction in discharge to care homes 

 Improved service user and carer experience 
 

9.8 Vulnerable People 

9.8.1 Learning disabilities 
 

On the 10th December 2012, the Government published its final report into the events at Winterbourne View Hospital and set out a 
programme of action to transform services so that vulnerable people will no longer live inappropriately in hospitals and are cared for 
in line with best practice.   
 

P
age 178



 

 

Page 66 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

The Partnership Commissioning Unit(PCU) on behalf of the CCG has put an action plan in place to ensure the requirements of the 
concordat are met. 
 
The PCU has developed a register in line with the concordat that identifies where everyone is placed. 
A programme of reviews is being undertaken. All those patients in in-patient settings have been reviewed. Those in residential and 
nursing homes who are placed out of area are being reviewed by the concordat deadline. 
For those where it is appropriate to discharge them or move them into area plans are being put in place to support this. 

 
A commissioning strategy will be developed to respond to the needs of those in hospital settings and out of area to provide services 
in the community as close to home as possible. 

 
We would expect to see the following outcomes as a result of service changes: 
 

 People will be getting the appropriate care that meets their individual needs 

 People will be placed close to home if that is appropriate for them 

 People will be in placements that are safe and of high quality and are value for money. 

 People will be supported to reach their potential and live as independently as possible. 
 
The CCG will implement the recommendations within Closing the Gap including: 

 
To improve the physical health of those with mental health: 

 
Having a mental health problem increases the risk of physical ill health. Currently, men with a severe mental illness die on average 
20 years earlier than other people; women die 15 years earlier. This group of patients have higher rates of cancer, heart disease, 
respiratory disease and diabetes. 
 
People with mental health problems have higher levels of alcohol misuse and obesity than the population as a whole, and do less 
physical activity. Some 42% of all tobacco smoked is done so by people with mental health problems. 
 

P
age 179



 

 

Page 67 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

The CCG will look at improving the standards of physical health care within mental health in-patient facilities to support earlier 
diagnosis and treatment of common illnesses. This is vital to our on-going goal of reducing premature mortality. 

 
We will encourage GPs and other health care workers to promote healthy lifestyle and provide access to support to stop smoking, 
increase physical activity levels and eat a balanced diet. 

 
To ensure that people living with mental health problems have the same levels of access to and outcomes from mainstream 
services as the general population, we will encourage people with mental health problems to access existing health and dental 
checks, and to understand the effects of medication and the need for screening and immunisation.  

 
As a result we would expect the following outcomes: 

 

 Reduction in the number of premature deaths in people with mental health problems. 

 Improved physical health of those with mental ill health 

 Increased use of screening and health checks by those with mental ill health. 
 

Roll out of Psychological Therapies to ensure children, young people and those from minority or marginalised 

communities have access to support 

 

Half of those with lifetime mental health problems first experience symptoms by the age of 14.  Psychological therapies need to be 

delivered in a different way to children and young people compared to adults. 

 

Improve support to carers of those with Mental ill health 
 

Caring for someone with a mental health problem can be hugely draining both  emotionally and financially.  The CCG will work with 
partners in the Local Authority to provide better support and ensure carers are involved more closely with decisions about service 
provision. 
 
 

P
age 180



 

 

Page 68 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
 
Improve the support to those with mental ill health as they grow from young person to adulthood 
 
It is recognised that young people who rely on mental health services are often ‘lost’ to the system when they reach adulthood.  The 
CCG will utilise the national specification (currently being developed) for transition from Children’s Mental Health Service to Adult 
Services to build on best practice and evidence from a range of service models to commission high quality measurable person 
centred services. 
 
9.9 Children’s services 

Working in partnership with Local Authority colleagues and co-commissioners our aim is to enable children and their families to 
have the best start in life and achieve improved health outcomes and reduce health inequalities.  This includes commissioning 
integrated maternity services for the local population which are safe, effective and high quality.  In adopting a life course approach 
there will be a strong focus on early intervention, especially for our most vulnerable groups, so that all children are able to achieve 
positive lives and receive appropriate health care, at the right time in the most appropriate setting. 

By developing and commissioning modern models of integrated care we will ensure that children and young people with complex 
and additional health needs, including Special Education Needs, receive high quality services which support them and their 
families. 

Emotional health and well-being is a prerequisite for good general health and well-being and essential for ensuring children have a 
good start in life and achieve their optimum potential.  In line with “No health without Mental Health” emotional health and 
wellbeing will be a cross cutting theme for inclusion within all children’s partnership commissioning and development of care 
pathways.  Particular care will be taken to identify vulnerable groups to ensure there is timely access to preventative, early 
interventions and treatment services across all ages.  

In 2014 York Foundation Trust will be undertaking an assessment of their paediatric surgery standards across both sites to ensure 
that there is compliance with national guidelines. 

P
age 181



 

 

Page 69 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

As part of the capital programme at Scarborough Hospital, changes are planned to the current layout of the children’s facilities.  
The CCG is involved in these discussions and will work with YFT to implement change. 

 
9.9.1 Safeguarding and Looked After Children (LAC) 

The CCG has an established team of Designated Professionals for Safeguarding Children (i.e covering both the Child Protection 
and Looked After Children agendas) to work across the whole health economy in North Yorkshire and York as per the 

recommendations in the NHS England Accountability and Assurance Framework (2013) and in line with the ‘Working Together’ 

statutory guidance. 
 
There are clear safeguarding governance and assurance pathways within the CCG and in relation to commissioned services 
including relevant polices and agreed arrangements for representation on multi-agency partnership bodies  (the Local Safeguarding 
Children Board, the Safeguarding Adult Board, the LAC Strategic Partnership for North Yorkshire and the Health Partnerships 
Group).  
 
The CCG has audited its arrangements for safeguarding children against the statutory requirements set out in Section 11 of the 
Children Act (2004). 
 
The Designated Professionals Business Plan (set out in the Annual Report 2012-13) describes priorities for future working across 
the CCG area to strengthen and further embed safeguarding children and LAC arrangements. This includes:  
  

 Improved data reporting through shared access to LCS 

 Joint Initial Health Assessments action plan 

 A more streamlined and effective specialist LAC team 

 Complex needs pathway 

 Work being undertaken regarding care leavers 
 

 

P
age 182



 

 

Page 70 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

Describing the vision, values and direction for the health community does not inevitably mean the associated objectives are 
achieved. Effective means to execute the strategy and deliver its benefits are the main work of the CCG and its partner agencies.  
As such all delivery mechanisms, and corporate elements should reflect planning and implementation of the strategy. Assurance 
frameworks, including risk management, should take the strategy as their foundation: assurance of strategic delivery as their main 
concern 

 
Delivery will be supported by: 
 

 Strong practice engagement. As a membership organisation this will be critical to the CCG. This active membership will 
not merely support the CCG Governing Body: it will be its main method of delivering the strategy. This will include 
performance management of practice performance and facilitating innovation through tools such as practice grouped CCG 
learning sets. 

 Joint Commissioning. The CCG will actively seek out arrangements with other commissioners to support effective, 
planning, procurement, and contracting. Current examples include the established joint commissioning committee with North 
Yorkshire County Council. Joint commissioning will support ‘delivery at scale’: those areas where commissioning or redesign 
at a larger geographical level may provide benefit. As such the CCG will continue to support certain elements of the work 
emerging from the North Yorkshire and York Review. 

 Joint health promotion initiatives. Working with upper-tier and lower-tier Local Authorities and the Public Health team, the 
CCG is engaged in actions relating to reducing the incidence of smoking (particularly in pregnancy) and in alcohol and 
substance abuse (statistically the CCG has the most significant challenges in the county). 

 Programme management. The CCG’s officer team will manage the competing priorities and workload through a systematic 
use of project management methodology, linking with that used in other agencies to provide effective programme 
coordination. The overall strategy will be treated as a 5 year transformation programme. The integrated plan will be 
underpinned by a detailed project delivery plan, detailing specific actions, timescales, and project deliverables. 

10. Delivery and Performance Management 

health inequalities focussed on priority areas and ensuring Parity of Esteem 

 

P
age 183



 

 

Page 71 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 Service improvement. The CCG does not believe that in every area it seeks improvement it can clearly describe a blueprint 
for success: rather it may need to use proven service improvement methodologies to facilitate bottom-up service redesign 
that is meaningful to a local context and has been designed by patients, public, and local clinicians. 

 Communication. Integration in particular will be delivered more effectively by staff being empowered to communicate with 
each other and to redesign communication channels when they are seen to be ineffective. Appropriate points of 
communication and coordination will support better multi-agency working and smooth the patient journey. 

 Leadership. The critical test for SRCCG is that it can provide clinical leadership to implement its strategy and improve its 
healthcare system. The CCG leaders will be the champions of the strategy and its vision for the future. 

 Patients and the public. If the leadership needs to promote a sense of collective ownership to shared problems, it 
presupposes that the collective will support problem solving. The most important element of delivery is that of engaging 
patients and the wider public in decision-making, resource allocation, and service planning. 

 Organisational development. Underpinning the delivery mechanisms of the CCG will be an organisational development 
plan that focuses on supporting strategic delivery and developing CCG corporate capacity. 

 

To support programme delivery and to provide assurance as to the quality of existing commissioned services the CCG has 
established a strong performance management framework. It has reviewed the risks of performance delivery of existing services 
and developed a performance management plan to address high-risk areas and support effective delivery. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 184



 

 

Page 72 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

 
 
The CCG is committed to improving access to patient led services, where: 
 

 People have a range of choices and of information and help to make choices 

 There are standards and safeguards to protect patients 

 NHS organisations – Commissioners and Providers - understand the needs of their patients and actively engage with 
patients and carers to use feedback to improve services. 
 

Improving access and designing new pathways of care for patients within our communities will play a major role in this strategy.   
 
The CCG has a responsibility to ensure that patients are treated within national waiting times in line with the NHS Constitution.  
We are aware that this has not always been the case for our population and although the Provider may be meeting the standards 
at an aggregate level, often our patients attending Scarborough Hospital have not been treated within either the 18 week, A&E or 
cancer standards.  This is not always the fault of commissioner or provider, but often because patients choose to wait longer to 
be treated locally.  We will continue to work closely with YFT to improve waiting times and ensure that our patients do not wait 
longer than the national recommendations. 
 
Whether it be to facilitate the transfer of activity from secondary care to primary and community care, the optimisation of patients 
in primary care, development of the community hub, development of the urgent care service and the streamlining of specialist 
services all will require patients to be able to access services at the appropriate time and place: 
 
 
 

 

 

 

11. Access 

health inequalities focussed on priority areas and ensuring Parity of Esteem 

 

P
age 185



 

 

Page 73 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

 

In exercising its functions the CCG will have a general duty to act with a view to securing continuous improvements in the quality 
of services for patients and in outcomes, with particular regard to clinical effectiveness, safety and patient experience. This means 
that the CCG has to put in place effective systems and processes to proactively identify early warning of failing services, 
monitoring and acting on patient feedback, identify quality including safety issues and secure continuous improvements in the 
quality of services provided. 

 
SRCCG’s Quality and Performance Committee is responsible for providing assurance to the Board that commissioned services 
are being delivered to a high quality and in a safe manner. A quality and Assurance Strategy will be developed to provide clarity 
about the CCGs role and ambition for improving quality in the services it commissions.  

 
A range of data from many different sources will ensure that the CCG captures relevant information on the three domains of 
quality: effectiveness, safety and patient experience. Our sources of intelligence will include but will not be restricted to the 
following which are grouped for ease of reading but which cut across all three domains: 

 
12.1 Quality 
 

 Staff satisfaction and wellbeing evidenced through improved Staff Opinion Survey results 

 External assurances via audit reports, peer reviews and inspection reports 

 On-going compliance with CQC Essential Quality and Safety Standards 

 Contract Performance Schedules/CQUINs/Quality Accounts 

 Quality of care in care homes 

 Quality of primary care provision 

 Quality impact assessment of service redesigns 

 Quality impact assessment of Provider Cost Improvement Programmes 

 Priorities set out in the Operating Framework relevant to quality 

12. Quality & Performance Management 

health inequalities focussed on priority areas and ensuring Parity of Esteem 

 

P
age 186



 

 

Page 74 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
12.2 Safety 
 

 Safeguarding children and young people 

 Safeguarding adults 

 Safeguarding Looked After Children 

 Serious Incidents, never events and homicide reports/unlawful killing 

 CAS alerts closure rates and outstanding issues 

 NRLS trends analysis 

 Infection prevention and control 

 Providing assurance on the clinical governance arrangements in commissioned services 

 Compliance with NICE guidance (implementation and adherence) 

 Analysis of mortality rates (HSMR, SHMI and crude rates) 
 
12.3 Patient experience 
 

 Patient experience reports including complaints reports 

 National Patient Survey results and associated improvement plans 

 Compliance with Eliminating Mixed Sex Accommodation guidance 

 Patient engagement and communication activities including patient and 

       carer forums 
 
 
SRCCG will be relying on the services and expertise within the Commissioning Support Unit to convert the mass of data and 
information into intelligence that can be easily analysed and monitored pro-actively, across care pathways and all care settings, to 
assess risk and promote continuous quality improvement. 

 
A web based performance dashboard providing up-to-date information relating to services we commission has been developed to 
facilitate this process. 

P
age 187



 

 

Page 75 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
12.4 Quality Assurance Framework 
 
Our quality assurance framework will include but will not be limited to: 

 

 SRCCG Governing Body 

 SRCCG Quality and Performance Committee 

 SRCCG Patient Engagement and Communication Committee 

 Practice Patient forums 

 Local Safeguarding Children’s Board 

 Local Adult Safeguarding Board 

 Health and Well Being Board 

 Joint Strategic Commissioning meetings 

 Safeguarding Children’s Framework 

 Safeguarding Adults Framework 

 Serious Incident Review Group 

 Care Home Forum 

 Data Group 

 GP Member Consortia meeting 

 Contract Management Boards 

 Contract Management Quality and Performance Sub Groups 
 
12.5 Contract Management 
 
Quality schedules and CQUIN (Commissioning for Quality and Innovation) which form part of the contract between the CCG and 
providers contain a range of key performance indicators and stretch targets relating to patient experience, patient safety and 
clinical outcomes. The provider reports against the Quality Schedules and CQUINs on a monthly basis. 
 

P
age 188



 

 

Page 76 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

Contract Management Board meetings provide a forum for detailed oversight and scrutiny of provider performance against 
service quality, performance schedules and CQUINs frameworks. With smaller contracts, where a Quality and Performance sub 
group has not been established, a CCG Officer (or a CSU officer delegated to act on behalf of the CCG or a Host 
Commissioner) leads this dialogue through the main contract meeting. 
 
Where performance issues arise, plans are put in place to achieve compliance as detailed in the Quality and 
Performance/CQUIN schedule, and unresolved issues are escalated to the overarching contract sub group. 
 
The Quality and Performance Committee receives monthly reports on the performance of providers against their respective quality 
and performance schedules and CQUINs and monitors any plans put in place to resolve compliance issues as set out in the 
schedules or by agreement. The SRCCG Board receives a bi-monthly performance and quality exception report that currently 
covers underperformance and on- going risks. 
 
 
12.6 Reporting of Patient Safety Incidents 
 
Patient safety incident reporting is ultimately the responsibility of healthcare professionals in the first instance to flag up and report 
incidents when they happen. SRCCG will work with the providers to promote a culture of openness and transparency to ensure that 
expected levels of reporting continue.  Incident reporting is a vital mechanism for identifying downward trends in the quality of care 
and facilitating learning. 
 
All Serious Incidents (SIs) are reported through the Department of Health’s central Strategic Executive Information System 
(StEIS).  On behalf of the CCG the CSU will manage the process of receiving and reviewing completed investigation reports from 
the provider to ensure that comprehensive investigations have been undertaken which identify organisational learning and confirm 
assurance with regards to patient safety. 
 
CCGs will remain accountable for the sign off and closure of SIs and as such needs to establish internal mechanisms for carrying 
out this duty including sharing any learning and picking up on trends to support improved quality and patient safety.  It is proposed 
that in order to promote shared learning and to make best use of the CSU resource, that the CCG collaborates with other CCGs, 

P
age 189



 

 

Page 77 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

in partnership across North Yorkshire, in either case through a restructured and augmented SI review group (facilitated by the 
CSU). 
 
The Quality and Performance Committee will receive a monthly report summarising the Serious Incidents (SI) and incidents that 
have occurred and identifying the number of incidents, emerging themes and actions taken to address concerns. 
 
12.7 Feedback from the public, patients and staff 
 
The CCG is utilising a variety of approaches and relevant sources of information on patient and public feedback to identify 
quality issues before they become serious failures including; complaints and Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) data, 
national survey data. The CCG will take steps to look at better ways of obtaining real time data and more innovative ways to 
collect patient experience data. 

 

It is important the CCG develops a system to ensure CCG is able to obtain intelligence from these and triangulate where possible. 
The CCG will take appropriate steps to engage with any new process or systems that the emerging NHSCB Local Area Teams 
establish in relation to incident reporting and complaints management in Primary Care. 
 
The CCG working with the CSU ensures that a comprehensive Complaints process is in place and will agree the relevant route 
within the CCG governance framework in order to review themes and trends and identify patterns for recommending change in 
practice. The CCG will receive at least quarterly summaries including the complaints and PALS activities, to identify emerging 
themes and trends and details of actions/recommendations made to improve services through the experience of and learning from 
complaints, and other contact with our patients and the public. 
 
12.8 Quality Accounts 
 
Publication of an annual Quality Account is a Department of Health requirement to encourage provider and commissioning 
organisations to assess quality across the entire range of their healthcare services, with a focus on continuous quality 
improvement. Quality Accounts are a key mechanism to demonstrate that a focus on improving service quality is being 
maintained. The CCG will need to contribute in the planning and development stage of the providers quality account and will be 

P
age 190



 

 

Page 78 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

responsible for providing scrutiny and a supporting statement which will be included within the account, which are publicly 
available documents. 
 
12.9 Continuous Quality Improvement 
 
The CCG is committed to putting quality at the heart of everything we do.  Using a continuous quality improvement (CQI) 
methodology, it will strive to commission high quality services for its patients. Core Concepts of CQI are: 
 

 Quality is defined as meeting and/or exceeding the expectations of our customers. 

 Success is achieved through meeting the needs of those served. 

 Most problems are found in processes, not in people. CQI does not seek to blame, but rather to improve processes. 

 Unintended variation in processes can lead to unwanted variation in outcomes, and therefore CQI seeks to reduce or 
eliminate unwanted variation. 

 It is possible to achieve continual improvement through small, incremental changes. 

 Continuous improvement is most effective when it becomes a natural part of the way every day work is done. 
 
CQI is an approach to quality management that builds upon traditional quality assurance methods by emphasizing the 
organisation and systems: it focuses on "process" rather than the individual; it recognizes both internal and external 
"customers"; it promotes the need for objective data to analyse and improve processes. 

 

CQI is a management philosophy which contends that most things can be improved. The CCG will endeavour to develop a 
culture where CQI is applied to everyday work to meet the needs of the population served and the services commissioned. 

 
12.10 Ambitions for improving quality and outcomes 
 
Analysis of the JNSA identifies four priority areas for improvement in health outcomes for the population of Scarborough and 
Ryedale: Cancer, Cardiovascular, Mental Health and Elderly Care.   
 
Initiatives related to these disease areas include: 

P
age 191



 

 

Page 79 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 Continue to work closely with YFT to reduce avoidable mortality  

 Continue and develop smoking cessation plans with regards to elective surgery, smoking in pregnancy and no smoking in 
hospital in conjunction with Public Health 

 Improve early diagnosis for cancer patients 

 Improve acute and rehabilitation stroke care  

 Review of current cardiology services 

 Review of diabetes service 

 Development of Psychiatric liaison service,  

 Improved diagnosis and support for dementia and improved low level support for patients with mental health problems 

 Acute assessment for frail, elderly patients with complex needs 

 Partnership working with LA on alcohol and drug treatment services 

 Review of rheumatology service 

 Review of children’s services and development of children’s strategy 

 Continue work to reduce emergency admissions with asthma, diabetes and epilepsy  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 192



 

 

Page 80 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

 
 

The CCG acknowledges the critical role innovation will make as a catalyst in delivering the scale, pace and challenges of 
transformation and levels of ambition required in patient outcomes, quality & safety, performance and efficiency of services.  
 
Innovation is the most significant enabler which commissioners and providers can use to plan sustainable and fully integrated 
health and social care services into the future and ensure the improvements in clinical and patient experience outcomes outlined in 
their trajectories. 
 
To this end the CCG along with its partners will look to cultivate and embed innovation throughout every stage of the 
commissioning cycle and planning processes. It will ensure every willing stakeholder is enabled to contribute to the development of 
new ideas and adoption of existing relevant innovations. 
 
The aim will be to maximise the positive impact of innovation across: 
 

 Commissioning practices and approach - develop the highest quality commissioning, decision-making and resource 
allocation underpinned by patient-centred research-based evidence and innovation 

 Engagement and empowerment – sharing and accessing information with patients, public, staff & providers to enable 24/7 
integrated working & care planning; and collaboration with all key partners (including other CCGs and industry) in order to 
drive key research themes 

 Clinical practice – using technologies, devices, medications, therapies, equipment & treatment strategies  

 Models of care and systems of service delivery - including pathway redesign, configuration of services, estates and assistive 
technology 
 

This will require the CCG to address innovation in the following three ways when looking at every programme of transformation, 
service development or action plan to drive meeting their ambitions: 
 

13. Innovation 

health inequalities focussed on priority areas and ensuring Parity of Esteem 

 

P
age 193



 

 

Page 81 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 Revisit all areas of identified variation and outliers in outcomes (e.g. through QOF and Commissioning for Value analysis) 
and assess progress with implementing best practice and innovations which are known to have a demonstrable 
improvement on outcomes (e.g. enhanced recovery programmes; NICE guidelines and quality standards, and TAGs 
(Comply or Explain regime); WHO Safer Surgery Checklist; Productive services; NHS Quality Improvement programmes) 
 

 Assessment of progress with providers adopting the evidenced, high impact innovations and emerging/ early adoption 
exemplars (e.g. Innovation, Health & Wealth 6 High Impact Innovations & 108 potential high impact innovations; Yorkshire & 
Humber Area Health & Science Network Improvement Academy high impact innovations in stroke prevention in AF patients 
& mortality review programme; Anytown Tool 

 
 Identification of key new and emerging innovations through horizon scanning for adaption and adoption, alongside key 

research priorities to focus on which could structure and drive the local R&D strategy 
 
This focus and commitment will require dedicating significant time, leadership and resources in order to make innovation a reality 
and drive meaningful adoption and diffusion in practice.  
  
The CCG is working closely with its key partners in the national Innovation, Health & Wealth team, the regional Innovation Hub 
(Medipex), the Academic Health & Science Network (AHSN), the Area Team, the NYHCSU, PHE and the National Institute for 
Health Research & Development (NIHR). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 194



 

 

Page 82 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Since the NHS was established in 1948, its spending has increased by an average of 4% in real terms each year.  

 

As A Call to Action points out, this position is not sustainable in the present economic climate and all public sector organisations 
are tasked with continuing to provide a high standard of care/services within limited financial resources. 

 

One of the CCGs core values is to ensure Value for Money and we will strive to spend our public budget of £150 million in the 
most effective and efficient way by:  
 

 Improving productivity across all sectors by: 

o Clinical pathway re-design and process improvements 

o Using continuous improvement methodologies such as Lean Thinking to reduce waste 

o Making better use of estate and facilities 

o Finding new ways to generate income 

o Right care/right place/right professional 

o Reducing waste in medicine and appliances 

o Maximising potential of our most expensive resources – people 

 

 Allocating spend rationally: 

o Historically NHS contracts have “rolled” forward with little objective assessment of whether or not the services 
being provided were value for money.  We will review our contract arrangements and make changes where 
appropriate. 

 

 Innovation: 

14. Value for Money 

health inequalities focussed on priority areas and ensuring Parity of Esteem 

 

P
age 195



 

 

Page 83 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

o Reducing face to face consultations by adopting technology 

o Shared care across sectors 

o Sharing data across health and social care to reduce duplication 

 

 Encouraging patients to manage their own care: 

o Raising public awareness of health issues 

o Advocating early screening and diagnosis 

o Reducing elective procedures/interventions where outcomes are deemed to be ineffective or solely cosmetic 

 

 Only using hospital services where no other option is appropriate: 

o Developing the community hub 

o Procuring new urgent care service 

o Improving access in primary care 

o Developing support mechanisms in community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 196



 

 

Page 84 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

 

SRCCG does not underestimate the challenge of building a new organisation. In order for the CCG to be fit for purpose a 
structured organisational development plan has been developed to help shape the interventions required to help the new 
organisation evolve into a responsive, collaborative and effective team that is known to “make a difference through clinical 
leadership. 
 
SRCCG is committed to supporting developing individuals as well as the team in which they work and we recognise the 
importance of working in partnership with the Commissioning Support Unit (CSU) and other CCGs to deliver efficient and cost 
effective commissioning for the local healthcare economy. 
 
The Organisational Development plan sets out the interventions that are needed to demonstrate to member practices, the NHS CB 
and patients and public that SRCCG is fit for purpose and recognises the areas that need to be strengthened. Organisational 
development is “the practice of planned intervention to bring about significant improvements in organisational effectiveness” and 
the plan sets out how SRCCG intends to continue to develop. The CCG and has developed an organisational structure that 
reflects the need to promote clinical leadership and effectively utilises staffing resources. The principles behind the structure are: 
 

 Clear leadership roles for clinical leaders within the CCG 

 A core team of highly skilled officers and support staff to facilitate clinical 
  commissioning 

 Strong joint commissioning relationships with other local CCGs and Local 
  Authorities 

 Strong support from the Commissioning Support Unit (CSU) across a broad 
            range of areas 
 
The organisation will ensure the strategic plan is delivered through a robust governance and programme management system with 
overarching clinical leadership.   
 

15. Organisational Structure and Development 

health inequalities focussed on priority areas and ensuring Parity of Esteem 

 

P
age 197



 

 

Page 85 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 Joint system-wide leadership / board arrangements across all partners to the Strategic Plan: 

 Health and Well Being and joint Integrated Care Board 

 Contract Management and Quality Sub Groups with main Providers 

 Council of Clinical Representatives 

 CCG Governing Body  
 

 Clear project documentation and milestones:  

 The CCG has commissioned a Programme Management Tool from CSU which will be used by Project managers and 
relevant management groups/Board to input and track performance against milestones.   

 Rigorous governance and PMO arrangements: 

 Regular programme management and project updates to CCG Business Committee and Governing Body. 

 Fortnightly QIPP steering group with regular updates to Business Committee and Governing Body 

 

15.1 Strategic Alliances with CCGs 

 

SRCCG is engaged in collaborative commissioning arrangements with 4 other North Yorkshire and York CCGs. The arrangements 
between the 5 former North Yorkshire and York CCGs are covered within the terms of the Strategic Collaborative Commissioning 
Board (SCCB). As part of the joint contract arrangements for 2014/15 we will also be liaising closely with the East Riding of 
Yorkshire CCG. 

 

15.2 Joint Commissioning with Local Authorities 

 
The CCG has established a Joint Commissioning Committee with representation from: 

 the lead Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) (Scarborough and Ryedale CCG to act as host liaising with other CCGs as 
associate commissioners) 

 North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) Adult and Community Services Directorate 

 The North Yorkshire Public Health Directorate (currently under the auspices of the PCT, but later under the auspices of 
NYCC. 

P
age 198



 

 

Page 86 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
The Board will function as joint forum of the SRCCG Board and of NYCC Adult and Community services, with delegated 
responsibility from both bodies. 
 
The JCB will initially take responsibility for the management of: 

 The current intermediate care pooled budget (circa £200k) 

 The resources used to commission care related voluntary sector provision (currently jointly commissioned but not through a 
pool) 

 The locality reablement resource, feeding into the county wide joint board 
 

15.3 Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
The CCG has been a lead partner in the shadow North Yorkshire Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) from its inception. It is a 
contributor to the developing HWB strategy, of which the current CCG strategy aligns very closely. The CCG will be an active 
player in the further development of this strategy and its on-going implementation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 199



 

 

Page 87 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
15.4 Local Strategic Partnerships (LSP) 
 
The CCG has been actively involved in the LSPs of Scarborough and Ryedale lower-tier authorities. This has included work 
targeting support to the vulnerable elderly and on childhood obesity. 
 
Support for improving the wider determinants of health is being delivered through the CCG’s engagement in support of the wider 
economic regeneration initiates in the locality. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 200



 

 

Page 88 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

 

 

SRCCG has developed a strong assurance framework, supported and delivered by its organisational structures and corporate 
leadership. The Seven Principles of Public Life (often referred to as the ‘Nolan Principles’) underpin the objectives and behaviour 
of the CCG. They are: 

 

 Selflessness Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. They should not do so in order to gain 
financial or other benefits for themselves, their family or their friends. 

 Integrity Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or other obligation to outside individuals 
or organisations that might seek to influence them in the performance of their official duties. 

 Objectivity In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending 
individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of public office should make choices on merit. 

 Accountability Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to the public and must submit 
themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office 

 Openness Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the decisions and actions that they take. They 
should give reasons for their decisions and restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly demands it. 

 Honesty Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to their public duties and to take steps 
to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest. 

 Leadership Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by leadership and example. 

 

The CCG has established appropriate policies to support its good governance including producing and publishing a conflicts of 
interest register as part of a corporate conflicts of interest policy. 

 

The Board Assurance Framework has been developed to provide assurance to the Governing Body that the CCG strategic 
objectives are being delivered and corporate risks managed. The outline assurance framework is provided as a supporting 
document, along with the latest version of the corporate risk register. 

16. Governance and Assurance 

health inequalities focussed on priority areas and ensuring Parity of Esteem 

 

P
age 201



 

 

Page 89 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

 

 

The CCG has developed a strong process for engagement of all major stakeholders. This has been led by the Governing 
Body’s Communication and Engagement Committee (CEC), which has produced an ambitious Communications and 
Engagement Strategy. This strategy sets out plans for enhancing the way the CCG communicates and engages with patients, 
the public and wider stakeholders, describing the methods that will be used and the evaluation of its relative success. 

 

We take very seriously the comments that we receive from patients, carers and various stakeholders and value them in helping 
us to commission services.  For example 
 

 
What you said 

 

 
What we did 

Reduce unnecessary follow up appointments Agreed with providers the most clinically appropriate place for 
FU and transferred routine FU to GPs. 
 

Difficult to know who and how to raise concerns and complaints 
with since changes to NHS commissioning structure. 
 

Improved SRCCG website and supporting policies and 
processes to sign post patients 

Duplicated services and /or disjointed provided to vulnerable 
patients 
 

Piloting neighbourhood care teams with care coordinators 

Lack of information and appropriate systems to allow patients to 
choose provider and consultant 
 

Working with provider to accelerate programme of work to 
ensure patients have choice 

The process and timeliness of Continuing Health Care 
assessments needs to improve 

Recruited additional resources to address the back log of 
outstanding assessments and improved processes and 

17. Stakeholder engagement  

health inequalities focussed on priority areas and ensuring Parity of Esteem 

 

P
age 202



 

 

Page 90 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

communications with patients. 

Patients have difficulty deciding where to go with minor injuries 
and urgent care needs. 

Improved patient information leaflets whilst carrying out a 
complete review of urgent care services with planned 
procurement. 
 

Gap in services for newly diagnosed diabetics Commenced work on reviewing education programmes for 
diabetics. 
 

Higher levels of than national average of amputation rates Commissioned work to understand reasons for variations in 
outcomes. 
 

Patients with COPD had difficulty accessing pulmonary 
rehabilitation 

Venue for rehabilitation sessions changed to one that is more 
accessible and number of sessions increased. 
 

Inequity of access to IVF services 
 

Commitment to commission IVF services with details of level of 
service and start date being assessed. 
 

Unacceptable waiting times for assessments for autism 
 

Identified funds to provide additional assessment to clear back 
log. 

People with mental health problems do not have access to 
talking therapies 
 

Worked with current mental health providers to increase access 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 203



 

 

Page 91 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 
 

 

18.1 Financial Framework  

Over the last year, the CCG has worked to establish itself, with appropriate management of services for the population in 
Scarborough and Ryedale, whilst paying back an inherited deficit position from North Yorkshire PCT and working towards achieving 
a balanced financial position. 

The transformation the CCG aims to achieve will require a shift of resources across the health system, and overlapping the health 
and care boundaries; the challenge will be to do this at scale, within available timescales. The overarching vision of the CCG is to 
take a whole system approach with significant partnership working with all Local authorities within its boundaries and a 
collaborative approach with its main acute and community provider York Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.  

The CCG has a running cost allowance, which is reducing over time, within which to manage the changes across the system. To 
make best use of this limited resource, we will be working with our partners to deliver service transformation effectively across the 
wider North Yorkshire and East Coast area. 

18.2  Medium term financial plan 2014/15 – 2017/18  

SRCCG has developed its medium term financial plan based on this Strategy, taking into consideration the predicted population 
changes over the period, underlying growth in activity and prices, as well as efficiency assumptions in providers and our own 
investment and service transformation agenda. A summary of the plan is shown in Table 1, with further detail about how the plan 
was built up provided below. 

18.3 Financial Planning Assumptions  

18. Financial Plan 

health inequalities focussed on priority areas and ensuring Parity of Esteem 

 

P
age 204



 

 

Page 92 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

The financial information included within this document is based on the principles set out in the document Everyone Counts: 
Planning For Patients 2014/15 To 2018/19, and supporting documents such as Payment by Results guidance.  

The following assumptions have been made  

• Resource allocation and Running Cost allowance in line with the notified allocations for 2014/15 and 2015/16, and uplifted by 
indicative rates based on demographic and allocation growth of 3% for year 3, and just under 2% for years 4 and 5. 

• Achievement of a 1% surplus in 2013/14, and maintenance of this surplus level thereafter 

• A creation of recurrent headroom (ring fenced funds that can only be used non recurrently) at a level of 2.5% in 2014/15, 
dropping to 1% from 2015/16. This helps the CCG in managing the transfer of funds to the Better Care Fund. 

• Transfer of £0.9m resource into an enablement fund pooled with North Yorkshire Council in 2014/15, and transfer to the 
Better Care Funds from 2015/16 of £5.5 million per annum. 

• Inflation on acute providers is 2.6% in 2014/15, rising to 4.4% by 2016/17 before falling again to 3.3% in 2018/19. All other 
inflation is assumed at 2.2% for the duration of the plan.  

• Efficiency is assumed at -4.0% per annum for the duration of the plan. 

• The assumptions on tariff inflation and efficiency will be reset annually upon publication of the national tariff guidance.  

• Payments for non-elective activity will continue at 30% marginal tariff rate for the duration of the plan, similarly any QIPP 
reductions related to non-elective activity would also be at 30% marginal rate unless activity returns to a level below the 
2008/09 threshold. 

• The financial impact of non-payment for readmissions has been built into the plan although the clinical audit to review the 
baseline is underway  

P
age 205



 

 

Page 93 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

• The CCG has made allowance, in line with guidance, for ringfencing of the contract reductions for the non-elective threshold 
and readmissions penalties, and plans to spend the money on schemes to reduce non-elective admissions, and 
readmissions. 

• Payment of CQUINS (Commissioning for Quality and Innovation) payments at the national level of 2.5%. 

• Demographic growth of 0.9% is included in most areas of commissioning. The exception is Prescribing budgets, where 
growth of 5% is assumed, based on historical trends. 

• The required QIPP (Quality, Innovation Productivity and Prevention schemes) cost savings requirement for the CCG is then 
calculated to bring the organisations plan back within its financial allocation. 

No recurrent investments over and above the current expected costs are assumed. The CCG has some non-recurrent reserves to 
allow for trials, pump priming and support to QIPP schemes and service transformation projects, but the expectation is that new 
models of care when up and running will be affordable with in the current available funding. 

P
age 206



 

 

Page 94 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

(£ 000) 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Revenue Resource Limit 149,147 154,372 158,718 161,556 164,193 166,990 

              

Programme Activity 144,843 149,206 153,744 156,537 159,064 161,895 

Running Costs 2,850 2,820 2,521 2,505 2,490 2,476 

Contingency  - 800 800 850 850 850 

Total Costs 147,693 147,693 147,693 147,693 147,693 147,693 

Surplus 1,454 1,546 1,653 1,664 1,789 1,769 

QIPP requirement   6,000 6,000 4,500 4,500 4,500 

Table1: 5 year financial plan 

18.4 Financial collaboration and risk sharing  

There is a strong commitment across the four former North Yorkshire CCG’s, (Scarborough and Ryedale CCG, Vale of York CCG, 
Harrogate and District CCG and Hambleton, Richmond and Whitby CCG) to maintain historic collaboration.  There are three key 
strands to this:  

• Functions run at a North Yorkshire Level where there is an intention to continue through commissioning support services, for 
example continuing care, commissioning for vulnerable people, non-contract activity.  

• There will be North Yorkshire “host” contract arrangements where one CCG will lead on negotiation, in year performance and 
contract management.  

P
age 207



 

 

Page 95 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

• Financial risk sharing is proposed to cover three areas: continuing health care, funded nursing care, high cost patients. All four 
North Yorkshire CCGs will pool resources to share the risks and benefits of these areas, liaising with the associated CCG of NHS 
Airedale, Wharfedale and Craven.  

The collaborative approach and risk sharing will allow us to maximise the use of our administrative resource, as well as mitigate 
some of the financial variation that might be seen in a smaller organisation due to random variation. 

P
age 208



 

 

Page 96 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

18.5 Where does the money go?  

The table below: details where the CCG expends its resources. The majority of resource is expended with York Teaching Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust, following the acquisition of Scarborough and North East Yorkshire, accounting for 51% of expenditure.  

Contract/ Spend area £ million % of spend 

York Teaching Hospitals NHS FT 73.9 51.0% 

Tees Esk and Wear Valley NHS FT 12.7 8.8% 

York Ambulance Service NHST 5.5 3.8% 

Hull and East Yorkshire NHST 4.3 3.0% 

Harrogate and district NHS FT 1.7 1.2% 

Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHST 1.1 0.8% 

Other Acute, Community and Mental Health Commissioning 6.9 4.8% 

Continuing Care 13.1 9.0% 

Primary Care 22.9 15.8% 

Other commissioning and services 2.8 1.9% 

Table 2 where does the money go (2013/14 estimated outturn figures) 

18.6 Running costs  

The NHS Commissioning Board has set a running cost allowance for each CGG based on registered population adjusted to Office 
of National Statistics (ONS) clusters. For Scarborough and Ryedale CCG this is £2.82m for 2014/15, which equates to £23.90 per 
head of population (unadjusted). A significant number of support functions will be provided by the North Yorkshire and Humber 
Commissioning Support Unit (CSU). The financial resource framework required to support CSU functions has been developed and 

P
age 209



 

 

Page 97 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

provides the required functions within an affordable financial envelope. Additionally, the North Yorkshire CCG’s collectively support 
a Partnership Commissioning Unit (PCU) which administers Continuing Health Care, Mental Health Contracts and some of the risk 
shares on behalf of all organisations. The PCU is hosted by Scarborough and Ryedale CCG. 

18.7 Practice Level information  

Up to 2010/11 the PCT utilised the DH fair shares toolkit to calculate practice level budgets as part of the practice based 
commissioning initiative. Once the CCG is established as a statutory NHS body it will be provided with an allocation, PCT level data 
collection exercises have been conducted in September 2011 and July 2012 to ensure the DH has sufficient information to map 
expenditure from the current NHS architecture to the new system which incorporates CCGs. In addition a revised allocation formula 
will be put in place. This will notify the CCG of its Actual allocation and an assessment will be made of its distance from a fair 
shares allocation. It is also anticipated that a policy on how CCGs may move to a fair shares allocation will be published. In a period 
of flat growth where uplifts to the overall NHS allocation are only intended to cover inflationary increases any movement towards 
fair shares will be small, as such the CCG should not anticipate any significant movement from the overall PCT allocation for 12/13, 
once it has been disaggregated.  

Once the overall CCG allocation is known the intention will be to refresh practice level budgets and ensure there is a consistent 
process for continuing the movement towards fair share practice level budgets.  

 

 

P
age 210



 

 

Page 98 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

18.8 Financial governance  

As part of its establishment the CCG has established robust financial and corporate governance arrangements. There are several 
key policy and procedure documents, being:  

Standing Orders and Standing Financial instructions  

Prime financial procedure documents  

Scheme of Delegation  

In addition the CCG will be using the Shared Business Services ledger system to ensure its obligations for accounting for public 
funding can be met.  

Committees of the board are be in place to seek assurance that the organisational governance is sound and assurance can be 
placed on the mechanisms in place. This is done predominantly through the Audit committee and the Finance and Contracting 
committee.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 211



 

 

Page 99 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

18.9 QIPP  

The CCG QIPP target for 14/15 is £6m, or nearly 4% of expenditure. A summary of the schemes are provided below, there will be a mix of new 
schemes and full year effect of schemes that commenced in 2013/14. The Financial plan for future years (above) is predicted on the basis that 
QIPP requirements in each year are delivered.  

 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Community service transformation 0.0 1,350.0 1,350.0 1,350.0 0.0 

Continuing Care management and provision 500.0 600.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 

Direct access and procedures of low clinical value 
reductions 

1,949.9 864.0 450.0 250.0 150.0 

medicines management 950.0 950.0 975.0 1,025.0 1,025.0 

mental health out of area transfers  200.0 100.0 50.0 50.0 25.0 

Inappropriate admissions/ Community support 375.0 675.0 1,025.0 1,325.0 2,850.0 

Review of non-tariff services 113.8 112.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Outpatient Follow Up reductions 1,211.9 650.0 550.0 400.0 350.0 

Urgent Care / A&E reconfiguration 700.0 698.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Grand Total 6,000.6 6,000.5 4,500.0 4,500.0 4,500.0 

Table 3 Strategic QIPP plan 

QIPP schemes for the CCG are in addition to any national provider efficiency requirements set in the operating framework and PBR 
tariff guidance. The medium term QIPP schemes are tabled above. There is still some required but unidentified QIPP at this point.  

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 212



 

 

Page 100 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

 

The CCG has undertaken a baseline assessment against the national Equality Delivery System for the NHS. This has helped 
demonstrate initial progress on equality and diversity and will help us achieve compliance with the Public Sector Equality 
Duty/Equality Impact Analysis. 

 

In support of this the CCG has developed an Equality Assessment Toolkit and as part of its wider programme of engagement and 
consultation will perform a full equality impact assessment on the strategy and its major objectives and actions. Equality Impact 
Assessment will be undertaken to ensure proposals are considered and developed appropriately as part of the implementation 
process. 

 

 

 

  

As mentioned throughout this document, the challenges facing the NHS as a whole and this CCG are immense.  At the time of 
writing, we estimate the following to be our key risks with regard to delivering this strategy: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

19. Equality & Diversity 

health inequalities focussed on priority areas and ensuring Parity of Esteem 

 

20. Risks 

1 Ensuring the NHS Constitutional targets are met for our patients 

2 Pace of change 

5 

4 

3 Delivery of the QIPP plan 

 
Primary care configuration to ensure adequate access 

Secondary Care Reconfiguration 

P
age 213



 

 

Page 101 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

 

 2014-15 2015-16 2016-19 
Self Help Introduce Expert Programme for diabetes 

Smoking cessation campaigns 

Continue education  

Primary 
Care 

Develop Federation 

Extend opening hours 

Develop basket of locally enhanced services 

Pilot District Nursing aligned to practices 

Develop Neighbourhood Care Teams 

Health Care Assistant competency pilot 

Optimize patients before referral 

Reduce variation 

Optimize Medicines management 

Develop care plans for over 75s 

Primary care has capacity to accept transfer from secondary care 

Practices work closer together and share workload 

Pharmacies/Allied health professionals extended roles to reduce GP 
workload 

Review pathways for children with lower 
respiratory infections 

Continue to transform and transfer hospital 
activity 

Sustainable model of care 

Community 
Care 

Develop Community Hub in Malton 

Develop Nurse Practitioner in care homes 

Develop Community Hub in Scarborough 

Review pathways for Chronic Ambulatory Care conditions 

Improve rehabilitation 

Continue to transform and transfer hospital 
activity 

Sustainable model of care 

Planned 
Care 

Develop Expert Consulting 

Develop new enablement service 

Review pathways in cardiology/rheumatology/diabetes/ophthalmology 

Reduce 1
st
 and follow up Out Patient attendances 

Develop primary care orthopaedic triage 

Improve efficiency 

Shift appropriate activity into primary and community 

Review Stroke Model 

Develop children’s strategy 

Implement changes from service reviews 

Review sleep apnoea service 

Continue to improve efficiency and shift activity 

Implement Children’s Strategyand develop 

Children’s centre 

Review pathways for children with lower 
respiratory infections 

Sustainable Providers 

Urgent Care Engage, design and procure new OOH/Urgent care service 

Work with Urgent Care Working Group to ensure streamlined urgent care 

New urgent care service commences April 2015 

Utilise technology to link urgent/emergency and hub 

24/7 working 

Emergency 
Care 

Service Improvement Event “Perfect Week” to 

 inform system changes 

Develop new ambulance pathways 

Refine emergency care model and align to urgent care and hub 
model 

Introduce short stay assessment 

24/7 working 

Tertiary 
Care 

Commence discussions with CCGs, Networks and Providers to agree future 
configuration of services 

Work with secondary care and tertiary providers to configure services Centres of Excellence providing specialist care 

Mental 
Health 

Develop Liaison Psychiatry 

Improve Talking Therapies 

Improve Autism service 

Improve ADHD service 

Improve CAMHS  

Continue to increase resource and expand services to achieve parity 
of esteem 

Sustainable model of mental health care for East 
Coast 

 

 

21. Timetable to success 

health inequalities focussed on priority areas and ensuring Parity of Esteem 

 

P
age 214



 

 

Page 102 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 
What we measure How we measure Where we 

were in 
2012 

Our aim How we will do it By when 

Reducing Emergency 
admissions 

Unplanned hospital admissions for chronic 
ambulatory care sensitive conditions  

Unplanned hospital admissions for asthma, diabetes 
and epilepsy in under 19s 

Emergency admissions for acute conditions that 
should not normally require admission 

Emergency admissions for children with lower 
respiratory tract infections 

Rate per 100,000 of population registered with CCG 

2031 1722 Develop Community Hub & NCTs 

Develop care home support 

Service Improvement Event “The Perfect Week” 

Improve pathways for children with asthma, diabetes, 
epilepsy and lower respiratory tract infections 

Develop Children’s Centre in Scarborough bring all 
agencies together to support children and families 

Introduce new Ambulance pathways 

Improve pathways for End of Life care 

March 2019 

Securing additional years 
of life 

(Potential years of life lost 
[PYLL] 

PYLL rate per 100,000 population based on annual 
Office National Statistics avoidable mortality for 
England 

2768  2580  Improve stroke care 

Smoking cessation campaigns 

Improve cancer diagnosis rates 

Cardiovascular work 

Improve rehabilitation 

March 2019 

Improving health related 
quality of life for people 
with one or more long term 
conditions 

Average health status score for individuals who 
identify themselves as having a long term condition 

72.4 73.4 Diabetes pathways 

Asthma, epilepsy,  

Liaison psychiatry, dementia work 

NCTs 

Community Hub/NCTs to support patients 

Alcohol worker in A&E 

March 2019 

Proportion of people 
reporting a positive 
experience of care in 
hospital 

Rate of “poor” responses of inpatient care when 
answering the Inpatient survey per 100 patients (each 
patient being asked 15 questions) 

95.5 94.9 Meet NHS constitutional standards  

Reduce HCAIs 

Reduce Never Events 

Reduce cancelled appointments 

Roll out Compassion in Practice 

Support Serious Incident process and sharing 
learning 

Maximising care of deteriorating patients 

March 2019 

Proportion of people 
reporting a positive 
experience of care outside 
hospital 

Rate of “fairly poor” and “very poor” experience 
across general practice and Out of Hours services per 
100 patients 

5.1  3.6 Develop integrated OOH/urgent care service 

Increase primary care capacity 

Align district nurses to NCTs 

Develop community hub 

March 2019 

22. Improving Quality and Outcomes:  How we will measure success 

health inequalities focussed on priority areas and ensuring Parity of Esteem 

 

P
age 215



 

 

Page 103 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

 

 

 

 
 
This document provides an outline of the CCG ambitions over the next five years.   
 
Inevitably, some of the plan may change over this period of time due to national and local pressures, however our key strategic aim 
to commission high quality services that are sustainable and provided as close to home as clinically and practically possible will 
remain. 
 
Patients accessing health and social care in 2019 will do so in a completely different way to now.  More emphasis will be on care 
at home or as close to home as is practical and clinically safe.  Fewer patients will attend hospital either for out -patient or in-
patient stays.  Patients requiring major or specialist support may have to travel to centres of excellence but day to day support 
will be provided by teams of multi-professionals dedicated to managing individual patients and supported them to avoid crisis 
intervention. 
 
Organisations that currently work in silos will work collaboratively to ensure the patient receives the most appropriate care 
package, regardless of the organisation delivering it, in the most appropriate setting. 
 
In order to bring about these essential changes, there will be difficult conversations and difficult decisions to make especially 
around services at our local hospital.  However, we are committed to sustaining a local hospital although the services it provides 
may be different from those it provides today. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23. Summary 

health inequalities focussed on priority areas and ensuring Parity of Esteem 

 

P
age 216



 

 

Page 104 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

References 
 
Department of Health (2005) Creating a Patient-led NHS 
 
Department of Health (2010) NHS White Paper, Equity and excellence: Liberating the NHS 
 
Department of Health (2011) No Health Without Mental Health 
 
Department of Health (2012) Transforming Care: A national response to Winterbourne View Hospital  
 
Department of Health (2014) Closing the Gap: Priorities for essential change in mental health. 
 
Department of Health (2012) Compassion in Practice: Nursing, Midwifery and Care Staff, Our Vision and Strategy 
 
D’Souza, S and Gupta, S (2013) Preventing admission of older people to hospital, British Medical Journal;346;f3186 
 
Francis, R (Chair) (2013) Report of the Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public Inquiry. The Stationary Office, London; Accessed at: 
http://www.midstaffspublicinquiry.com/sites/default/files/report/Executive%20summary.pdf 
 
Keogh, B (2013)  Review into the quality of care and treatment provided by 14 hospital trusts in England: overview report, accessed at:  
http://www.nhs.uk/NHSEngland/bruce-keogh-review/Documents/outcomes/keogh-review-final-report.pdf 
 
Living With and Beyond Cancer: Taking Action to improve Outcomes (NCIS 2013) 

 
Monitor, (October 2103) Closing the NHS funding gap: how to get better value health care for patients 
 
NHS England (2013) NHS Services, Seven Days a Week Forum: Clinical Standards 
 
NHS England (2013a) Everyone Counts: Planning for Patients 2014/15 - 2018/19 
 
NHS England (2013b) A call to Action 
 
NHS England (2013c) Accountability and Assurance Framework Safeguarding Vulnerable People in the Reformed NHS  
 
NHS England (2013) Better procurement, Better value Care: A Procurement Development. 
 

P
age 217

http://www.nhs.uk/NHSEngland/bruce-keogh-review/Documents/outcomes/keogh-review-final-report.pdf


 

 

Page 105 of 105 
SRCCG Integrated Plan _June 2014, version 13 doc 

 

NHS England (2013) New Ways of Working, Broad Commissioning Principles. Programme for the NHS 
 
NHS England ((2013/14) CCG Assurance Framework 
 
North Yorkshire Health and Well Being Board (2013) North Yorkshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-2018 
 
Nuffield Trust, A decade of Austerity? December 2012 
 
Public Health England (2013) Commissioning for Value Insight Pack 
 
Public Health England (2014) Sustainable, Resilient, Healthy People and Places, A sustainable development strategy for the NHS. 

 
Scarborough and Ryedale CCG (2013) Communications and stakeholder engagement strategy  
 
Spiker, J and McInnes, J (2013) Population Ageing: the time-bomb that isn’t, British Medical Journal; 347:f6598 

 
 

 

P
age 218



 Page 1 of 11 Strategic Plan – Appendix 1 -  June 2014 

 

  Appendix 1 
 

  Scarborough and Ryedale CCG Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
 
This geographical summary should be read in conjunction with the North Yorkshire summary as needs identified in the North Yorkshire section are applicable 

to all districts and CCGs. 

 

Population 
 

The map below shows the geographical boundaries (constrained to North Yorkshire County boundaries) for the Clinical Commissioning Groups. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 219



 Page 2 of 11 Strategic Plan – Appendix 1 -  June 2014 

 

 

Scarborough and Ryedale CCG comprises 17 General Practices with a combined registered population of 117,516, the vast majority of whom (74%) live in 

Scarborough district with a significant amount also living in Ryedale (25%). 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Source: Exceter September 1

P
age 220



 Page 3 of 11 Strategic Plan – Appendix 1 -  June 2014 

 

 

 
 
 

P
age 221



 Page 4 of 11 Strategic Plan – Appendix 1 -  June 2014 

 

Deprivation 
 
Scarborough and Ryedale CCG has a large proportion (53.1%) of its registered population resident in the most deprived areas of North Yorkshire 
County. 

 

 
Based on the overall IMD score, the map below shows the most and least deprived areas within Scarborough and Ryedale CCG (i.e. the most 
deprived fifth of the population within the CCG, through to the least deprived) 

 
Outcomes 
 
Also see Scarborough and Ryedale District summaries for further detail on outcomes 
 
All age, all cause mortality (AAACM) is a measure of the overall health of a population over a given period. Between 2004-06 and 2008-10 the AAACM 
rate fell from 592 per 100,000 to 514 per 100,000 in practices in Scarborough CCG, statistically significantly higher than the North Yorkshire average 
of 464 

P
age 222



 Page 5 of 11 Strategic Plan – Appendix 1 -  June 2014 

 

 

 

 
 

Circulatory diseases are the leading cause of death amongst those registered with Scarborough CCG accounting 

for 40% of all deaths. 
 

 

 

 

P
age 223



 Page 6 of 11 Strategic Plan – Appendix 1 -  June 2014 

 

 

Between 2004-06 and 2008-10 the premature death rate (aged <75 years) fell from 296 per 
100,000 to 243 per 100,000 in Scarborough and Ryedale CCG, statistically significantly higher than the North Yorkshire average of 210124 
 

 
 
The leading cause of death for those dying prematurely (<75 years) in Scarborough and Ryedale CCG 
is Cancer, accounting for 38% of all deaths. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 224



 Page 7 of 11 Strategic Plan – Appendix 1 -  June 2014 

 

 
 
 
 
When comparing the life expectancy of the most deprived members of the community to the least deprived there is a clear inequality. Men who 
live in Scarborough CCG’s most deprived communities will die, on average 8.0 years earlier than their least deprived counterparts.  Similarly, 
women in the most deprived communities in Scarborough CCG will die, on average 6.2 years earlier than those in the least deprived 
communities. Between 
2001-05 and 2006-10, the Slope Index of Inequalities (SII) for males decreased from 9.7 years to 8.0 years.  For females, the SII increased 
from 6.0 years to 6.2 years. However, these figures should be interpreted bearing in mind the wide confidence intervals around the SII. 
 
 

Community Health Profiles 
 

The Department of Health commissioned the Network of Public Health Observatories to publish Community Health Profiles on an annual 

basis for each local authority in England. Although they are not published at CCG level, the district level health summaries that appeared in 

the 2011 profiles can be found in the district summaries, outlining how the health of people in the districts compares with the rest of 

England. The 2012 profiles will be published in summer 2012 at  http://www.apho.org.uk/default.aspx?RID=49802. 
 

Scarborough and Ryedale CCG Big Issues 
 
The issues received from people and organisations based in the Scarborough CCG area were overall similar to those received from other 

areas of the county. Issues from the Ryedale district part of the CCG area tended to have slightly more emphasis around transport, 

access to local services and other issues connected with rurality than from the less rural part laying within Scarborough district. 

 
Issues that were mentioned during the JSNA events held in the Ryedale and Scarborough districts during December 2011 were fairly typical 

of other areas. All the issues raised during the Ryedale event covered topics also mentioned at one or more of the events held in other 

districts across the county. Although some of the issues that were mentioned during the JSNA Scarborough district event were typical of 

other areas, the total number of issues raised was higher than at most of the other events and several issues were uniquely raised that were 

not mentioned at any of the other events across the county. 

 

P
age 225

http://www.apho.org.uk/default.aspx?RID=49802


 Page 8 of 11 Strategic Plan – Appendix 1 -  June 2014 

 

Issues mentioned during discussion at the Ryedale and Scarborough district JSNA events 

Issues Event 

Access to services – transport, availability, location Ryedale 

Access to information, and in appropriate format Ryedale 

Care v reablement Ryedale 

Drugs & alcohol – culture change Ryedale 

Education about nutrition and other healthy lifestyle issues   Ryedale 

Implications of an ageing population Ryedale 

Joined-up working Ryedale 

Social Isolation - cannot all be done by the 
community, Integrated solutions 

 

Ryedale 

What is already available locally? Ryedale 

Accommodation and housing – link to mental health. (Avoiding ghettos)   Only mentioned at the Scarborough event 
Advocacy Only mentioned at the Scarborough event 

Affordable childcare Only mentioned at the Scarborough event 

Alcohol – availability, changing attitudes and behaviour   Scarborough district 

Avoid duplication of services Only mentioned at the Scarborough event 

Education – information – lifetime investment Scarborough district 

Effective support for family carers Scarborough district 

Equal access to services (especially interpreters in health services)   Only mentioned at the Scarborough event 

Family support isn't always there Scarborough district 

Isolation (particularly older population) Scarborough district 

Mental wellbeing – responding earlier Scarborough district 

Need doors opening to access community assets Only mentioned at the Scarborough event 

No short term funding – look to the future Only mentioned at the Scarborough event 

Obesogenic environment Only mentioned at the Scarborough event 

Simplification of assessment process (especially social care)   Scarborough district 

Stop Consultancy Only mentioned at the Scarborough event 

Supporting communities to be more supportive Scarborough district 

 

 

P
age 226



 Page 9 of 11 Strategic Plan – Appendix 1 -  June 2014 

 

Issues identified for Scarborough and Ryedale CCG 
 

In addition to the needs identified across North Yorkshire, the following issues have been highlighted specifically in this locality. They have 

been described by Marmot Domain: 

 

A Give every child the best start in life 

Scarborough District has almost double the percentage of children in poverty as the rest of North Yorkshire (21%) 
 

B Enable all children, young people and adults to maximise their capabilities and have control over their lives 

• Lower educational attainment on most indicators compared to the rest of North 

Yorkshire and England. 

• Falsgrave Park, Ramshill, Castle, Central and North Bay wards had a significantly higher rate of teenage pregnancy than the national 

average. 

 
C Create fair employment and good work for all 

• Higher unemployment rate in Scarborough compared to North Yorkshire and England. 

 

D Ensure a healthy standard of living for all 

• Higher rate of households in fuel poverty in Scarborough (26.3%) and Ryedale   (28.2%) compared to England (18.4%). 

 

E Create and develop healthy and sustainable places and communities 

• Scarborough District has the highest and Ryedale District the lowest crime levels in North Yorkshire. 

• Ryedale has a house price to earnings ratio in the worst quartile for affordability compared to England. 

• Scarborough had the highest incidence of overcrowded housing at 4.95% of households, substantially higher than any other North 

Yorkshire district but lower than the national average of 7.13% for England. 

 
 

P
age 227



 Page 10 of 11 Strategic Plan – Appendix 1 -  June 2014 

 

F Strengthen the role of ill-health prevention 

• Recorded crime attributable to alcohol in Scarborough District is the highest (7.1 per 1000 population) in North Yorkshire. 

• There is a need to develop a Falls Service in Scarborough/Whitby /Ryedale. 

• For reception children, obesity prevalence was second highest in Scarborough (8.0%). 

• For year 6 children, obesity prevalence was highest in Scarborough (17.8%) and 

Ryedale (17.7%). 

• Eastfield and Seamer fall into the bottom national quartile for expected levels of participation in at least 3 days x 30 minutes, moderate 

intensity adult physical activity. 

• Children’s participation in sport and physical activity is significantly lower than the 

England average in Ryedale District. 

• Higher levels of Chlamydia screening in Scarborough District compared to North 

Yorkshire. 

• Scarborough has the highest rates of smoking in North Yorkshire. 

• Over the last five years, the percentage of mothers who were smokers giving  

     birth at Scarborough was consistently significantly higher than the national  
average. During 2010/11 at Scarborough, 19.5% (almost 2 in every 10 mothers)   were recorded as being a smoker at the time of delivery. 

• During 2009/10, all districts within North Yorkshire had smoking attributable hospital admission rates per 100,000 population that were 

significantly lower than the national average, with the exception of Scarborough, which was significantly higher. 

 
G Maximise the effectiveness of condition or treatment pathways (additional domain) 

• Scarborough and Ryedale Districts had Coronary Heart Disease mortality rates significantly higher than the national average. 

• The % of people with diabetes who have an HbA1c <7 was 2nd lowest in Scarborough and Ryedale CCG across North Yorkshire. 

• Scarborough is in the 2nd bottom quintile nationally for dying in place or usual residence (i.e. below average). 

P
age 228



 Page 11 of 11 Strategic Plan – Appendix 1 -  June 2014 

 

• 24/7 community nursing service in Scarborough Area needs developing for end of life care. 

• Blood pressure control for people with hypertension is lower in Scarborough and 

Ryedale CCG than other areas in North Yorkshire. 

• Scarborough District had rates significantly higher mortality rates from stroke than the national average. 

 
Population Groups 

 
Carers 

 

• Scarborough District has the highest rate of claimants for carer’s allowance in North Yorkshire at 1.00% of the population, higher than the 

England average. 

 
Homeless 

 

• The number of homelessness acceptances per 1000 households in North Yorkshire is 2nd highest in Scarborough (3.00 per 1000). 

 
Older People 

 

• The number of people in Ryedale District aged 65 and over is set to increase from 

12,300 to around 15,800 by 2021. 

• The number of people in Scarborough District aged 65 and over is set to increase from 25,500 to around 31,300 by 2021. 

 
 

P
age 229



Appendix 2 

Practice sizes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PRACTICE 
CODE PRACTICE NAME 

Clinical 
Commissioning 

Group 
1 Jan Raw 

List 

1 Jan 
Weighted 

List 

 GMS         
 B82001 Dr D A Oldroyd & Partners Scarborough 10360 11003.22 
 B82011 Dr D R Carrie & Partners Scarborough 4954 5402.99 
 B82024 Eastfield Medical Centre Scarborough 7480 8520.82 
 B82037 Filey Surgery Scarborough 8768 10793.46 
 B82038 Prospect Road Surgery Scarborough 7677 7518.22 
 B82054 Scarborough Medical Group Scarborough 12331 13956.11 
 B82056 Claremont Surgery Scarborough     Closed as at 01/01/2014 

B82058 Norwood House Surgery Scarborough 6278 6509.51 
 B82063 Dr P J Robinson & Partners Scarborough 7959 9488.62 
 B82088 Trafalgar Medical Practice Scarborough 5438 5561.69 
 B82092 Belgrave Surgery Scarborough 4643 4915.92 
 B82106 Hackness Road Surgery Scarborough 3250 3503.94 
 B82609 Ampleforth Surgery Scarborough 3892 3997.16 
 B82628 Dr J Penfold & Partners Scarborough 4067 5081.93 
 PMS         
 B82025 Derwent Practice Scarborough 19677 19879.99 
 B82611 Peasholm Surgery Scarborough 8746 8959.22 
 APMS         
 Y02669 Castle Health Centre Scarborough 2492 2374.03 
 

P
age 230



Page 1 of 4 Strategic Plan – Appendix 3 -  March 2014 
 

      Appendix 3 
 

The Office Of National Statistics (ONS) population forecasts for the CCG areas  (Sub-national Population 
Projections, 2010-based projections) 
 

 

Data

AGE GROUP 2011 2012 % 2012 2013 % 2013 2014 % 2014 2015 % 2015 

0-4 5.5 0.0% 5.5 0.0% 5.5 0.0% 5.5 3.6% 5.7

5-9 5.2 1.9% 5.3 0.0% 5.3 1.9% 5.4 1.9% 5.5

10-14 5.5 -1.8% 5.4 -3.7% 5.2 1.9% 5.3 0.0% 5.3

15-19 6.4 -3.1% 6.2 -1.6% 6.1 -4.9% 5.8 0.0% 5.8

20-24 6.6 0.0% 6.6 -1.5% 6.5 -1.5% 6.4 -3.1% 6.2

25-29 5.2 3.8% 5.4 3.7% 5.6 1.8% 5.7 0.0% 5.7

30-34 4.4 2.3% 4.5 0.0% 4.5 4.4% 4.7 4.3% 4.9

35-39 5.4 -7.4% 5.0 -6.0% 4.7 0.0% 4.7 -2.1% 4.6

40-44 6.7 -1.5% 6.6 -4.5% 6.3 -3.2% 6.1 -3.3% 5.9

45-49 7.9 -1.3% 7.8 -2.6% 7.6 -2.6% 7.4 -4.1% 7.1

50-54 7.7 2.6% 7.9 1.3% 8.0 0.0% 8.0 0.0% 8.0

55-59 7.3 -1.4% 7.2 2.8% 7.4 2.7% 7.6 2.6% 7.8

60-64 8.7 -6.9% 8.1 -3.7% 7.8 -2.6% 7.6 -2.6% 7.4

65-69 7.4 9.5% 8.1 3.7% 8.4 2.4% 8.6 0.0% 8.6

70-74 6.0 0.0% 6.0 1.7% 6.1 3.3% 6.3 3.2% 6.5

75-79 4.8 0.0% 4.8 4.2% 5.0 4.0% 5.2 0.0% 5.2

80-84 3.7 -2.7% 3.6 0.0% 3.6 0.0% 3.6 2.8% 3.7

85-89 2.3 0.0% 2.3 4.3% 2.4 0.0% 2.4 0.0% 2.4

90+ 1.4 0.0% 1.4 0.0% 1.4 7.1% 1.5 6.7% 1.6

Grand Total 108.1 -0.4% 107.7 -0.3% 107.4 0.4% 107.8 0.1% 107.9

P
age 231



Page 2 of 4 Strategic Plan – Appendix 3 -  March 2014 
 

  

Data

AGE GROUP 2011 2012 % 2012 2013 % 2013 2014 % 2014 2015 % 2015 

0-4 2.4 0.0% 2.4 4.2% 2.5 0.0% 2.5 0.0% 2.5

5-9 2.5 4.0% 2.6 0.0% 2.6 0.0% 2.6 0.0% 2.6

10-14 3.0 -3.3% 2.9 0.0% 2.9 -6.9% 2.7 3.7% 2.8

15-19 3.7 -2.7% 3.6 -5.6% 3.4 -2.9% 3.3 -6.1% 3.1

20-24 2.2 0.0% 2.2 0.0% 2.2 0.0% 2.2 0.0% 2.2

25-29 2.0 0.0% 2.0 10.0% 2.2 0.0% 2.2 9.1% 2.4

30-34 2.2 0.0% 2.2 -4.5% 2.1 4.8% 2.2 0.0% 2.2

35-39 2.8 -7.1% 2.6 -3.8% 2.5 -4.0% 2.4 0.0% 2.4

40-44 3.7 -2.7% 3.6 -2.8% 3.5 -2.9% 3.4 -5.9% 3.2

45-49 4.1 2.4% 4.2 -2.4% 4.1 -2.4% 4.0 -2.5% 3.9

50-54 3.9 2.6% 4.0 5.0% 4.2 0.0% 4.2 2.4% 4.3

55-59 3.9 0.0% 3.9 0.0% 3.9 0.0% 3.9 2.6% 4.0

60-64 4.4 -4.5% 4.2 -4.8% 4.0 0.0% 4.0 0.0% 4.0

65-69 3.8 5.3% 4.0 5.0% 4.2 2.4% 4.3 0.0% 4.3

70-74 2.9 0.0% 2.9 6.9% 3.1 3.2% 3.2 3.1% 3.3

75-79 2.2 9.1% 2.4 0.0% 2.4 0.0% 2.4 0.0% 2.4

80-84 1.8 0.0% 1.8 0.0% 1.8 0.0% 1.8 0.0% 1.8

85-89 1.0 0.0% 1.0 0.0% 1.0 10.0% 1.1 9.1% 1.2

90+ 0.6 0.0% 0.6 16.7% 0.7 0.0% 0.7 0.0% 0.7

Grand Total 53.1 0.0% 53.1 0.4% 53.3 -0.4% 53.1 0.4% 53.3

P
age 232



Page 3 of 4 Strategic Plan – Appendix 3 -  March 2014 
 

 

 
 

Data

Speciality Point of Delivery 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

130 - OPHTHALMOLOGY First Outpatients 3,350 3,355 3,386 3,421 3,451

Follow-up Outpatients 9,981 10,008 10,154 10,297 10,411

Outpatient Procedures 2,827 2,835 2,888 2,940 2,975

130 - OPHTHALMOLOGY Total 16,158 16,197 16,428 16,658 16,837

110 - TRAUMA & ORTHOPAEDICSFirst Outpatients 4,895 4,873 4,868 4,879 4,886

Follow-up Outpatients 9,836 9,827 9,868 9,919 9,948

Outpatient Procedures 203 201 202 203 203

110 - TRAUMA & ORTHOPAEDICS Total 14,934 14,902 14,937 15,001 15,037

330 - DERMATOLOGY First Outpatients 1,453 1,450 1,453 1,459 1,462

Follow-up Outpatients 2,629 2,626 2,639 2,651 2,663

Outpatient Procedures 5,149 5,152 5,161 5,189 5,188

330 - DERMATOLOGY Total 9,231 9,228 9,253 9,299 9,314

100 - GENERAL SURGERY First Outpatients 1,959 1,959 1,969 1,982 1,986

Follow-up Outpatients 4,065 4,071 4,108 4,143 4,167

Outpatient Procedures 907 908 916 925 929

100 - GENERAL SURGERY Total 6,931 6,939 6,993 7,049 7,082

120 - ENT First Outpatients 1,758 1,759 1,763 1,770 1,776

Follow-up Outpatients 2,593 2,596 2,598 2,615 2,625

Outpatient Procedures 1,640 1,642 1,652 1,668 1,677

120 - ENT Total 5,991 5,996 6,013 6,052 6,077

502 - GYNAECOLOGY First Outpatients 1,102 1,095 1,091 1,086 1,083

Follow-up Outpatients 1,822 1,815 1,806 1,802 1,796

Outpatient Procedures 2,596 2,585 2,573 2,572 2,562

502 - GYNAECOLOGY Total 5,520 5,495 5,470 5,460 5,441

320 - CARDIOLOGY First Outpatients 1,485 1,486 1,497 1,507 1,514

Follow-up Outpatients 3,553 3,571 3,624 3,676 3,720

Outpatient Procedures 327 329 333 337 338

320 - CARDIOLOGY Total 5,365 5,385 5,454 5,521 5,572

191 - PAIN MANAGEMENT First Outpatients 455 453 452 454 453

Follow-up Outpatients 3,137 3,134 3,145 3,165 3,170

Outpatient Procedures 1,251 1,244 1,242 1,250 1,250

191 - PAIN MANAGEMENT Total 4,843 4,831 4,839 4,868 4,873

501 - OBSTETRICS First Outpatients 807 803 796 796 796

Follow-up Outpatients 2,639 2,623 2,606 2,606 2,609

Outpatient Procedures 1,284 1,273 1,262 1,263 1,264

501 - OBSTETRICS Total 4,730 4,699 4,664 4,666 4,669

420 - PAEDIATRICS First Outpatients 983 984 983 985 1,005

Follow-up Outpatients 3,057 3,052 3,028 3,028 3,071

Outpatient Procedures 2 2 2 2 2

420 - PAEDIATRICS Total 4,042 4,038 4,013 4,015 4,077

Grand Total 77,745 77,710 78,065 78,589 78,980

From the ONS data the CCG has calculated based on 
recent historic activity the estimated activity by 
speciality and by major admission type.  These tables 
show the top 10 specialties for out-patient activity 
and the top 15 for in-patient activity. 
 

P
age 233



Page 4 of 4 Strategic Plan – Appendix 3 -  March 2014 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Data

Point of Delivery Speciality 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

Elective 301 - GASTROENTEROLOGY 2,721 2,728 2,750 2,772 2,779

101 - UROLOGY 1,932 1,944 1,969 1,996 2,019

370 - MEDICAL ONCOLOGY 1,731 1,740 1,768 1,789 1,800

110 - TRAUMA & ORTHOPAEDICS 1,677 1,679 1,689 1,698 1,702

130 - OPHTHALMOLOGY 1,305 1,308 1,331 1,354 1,370

100 - GENERAL SURGERY 1,254 1,257 1,263 1,272 1,277

303 - CLINICAL HAEMATOLOGY 1,022 1,016 1,017 1,022 1,026

502 - GYNAECOLOGY 713 709 703 699 695

300 - GENERAL MEDICINE 592 598 607 615 618

191 - PAIN MANAGEMENT 528 527 529 532 534

120 - ENT 397 396 396 397 399

144 - MAXILLO-FACIAL SURGERY 346 345 348 351 352

320 - CARDIOLOGY 322 324 327 331 333

410 - RHEUMATOLOGY 265 266 268 272 272

104 - COLORECTAL SURGERY 235 236 238 239 242

Elective Total 15,040 15,074 15,202 15,339 15,419

Non-elective 300 - GENERAL MEDICINE 3,981 3,995 4,043 4,090 4,119

420 - PAEDIATRICS 1,749 1,751 1,753 1,756 1,795

501 - OBSTETRICS 1,693 1,686 1,673 1,666 1,662

100 - GENERAL SURGERY 1,577 1,576 1,583 1,594 1,604

430 - GERIATRIC MEDICINE 1,297 1,294 1,323 1,351 1,397

560 - MIDWIFE EPISODE 628 628 628 627 628

110 - TRAUMA & ORTHOPAEDICS 605 605 613 620 623

320 - CARDIOLOGY 444 447 454 461 466

502 - GYNAECOLOGY 430 429 427 426 425

180 - ACCIDENT & EMERGENCY 259 258 260 262 263

340 - RESPIRATORY MEDICINE 206 208 212 214 216

101 - UROLOGY 188 188 190 192 194

120 - ENT 106 106 107 108 109

303 - CLINICAL HAEMATOLOGY 93 92 92 92 92

160 - PLASTIC SURGERY 83 83 83 83 83

301 - GASTROENTEROLOGY 83 83 83 84 85

Non-elective Total 13,422 13,428 13,524 13,624 13,760

Grand Total 28,462 28,501 28,726 28,963 29,179

P
age 234



                     
Appendix 4 

 
 

Improving Health and Reducing Inequality Sustainable, high quality services 

Plan on a Page 2014-16 

Vision 

Values 

Commitment 

Strategic 

Priorities 

Improving the health and well-being of our communities 

To commission high quality services: To engage patients, carers and other organisations in our planning and decision process: To ensure value for money: 
To be open and honest in our transactions, and accountable to our communities 

Ensuring NHS Constitution standards are met: Delivering the NHS Mandate: Engaging and Empowering Citizens: Delivering the NHS Outcomes Framework: 
Facilitating Change in health and Social Care 

Building Strong Community Systems 

Cancer Cardio-

vascular 

Mental 

Health 

Elderly 

care 

QIPP Re-design Provider 

Landscape 

Health and Social Care Transformation 

Aims 

Early 

diagnosis 

Smoking 

cessation 

Stroke 

 care 

Cardiology 

Liaison Psychiatry 

Dementia 

Talking 

Therapy 

Falls 

End of 

Life Care 

Acute Assessment 

Autism 

ADHD 

CAMHS 

Chronic pain Urgent Care Elective 

productivity 

Cardiology 

Integrated 

OOH/Urgent 

Care 

Emergency 

Care 

Planned Care 

Community 

Prescribing 

Demand 

Management 

Specialised 

services 

Primary care 

configuration 

Voluntary 

Transfer 

activity/resource 

from secondary 

care 

Community 

 Hub 

Evening 

Response 

Day 

support 

Health 

Trainers 
Self Help 

Neighbourhood 

Care Teams 

Support to Care 

Homes 

Ophthalmology 
Local Priority Falls 

Access Quality Innovation Value 

 

Sleep apnoea 

pathway 

Diagnostics 

P
age 235



Appendix 5 

 

 

Plan on a Page 2014-19 

Vision 

Values 

Commitment 

Strategic 
Priorities 

Improving the health and well-being of our communities 

To commission high quality services: To engage patients, carers and other organisations in our planning and decision process: To ensure value for money: To be open and 
honest in our transactions, and accountable to our communities 

Ensuring NHS Constitution standards are met: Delivering the NHS Mandate: Engaging and Empowering Citizens: Delivering the NHS Outcomes Framework: Facilitating 
Change in health and Social Care 

Improving Health and Reducing Inequality Building Strong Community Systems Sustainable, high quality services 

2014/15 

2015/16 

2016/19 

Re-design OOH/urgent care service and proceed to tender 
Review diabetes, rheumatology, ophthalmology, chronic pain, cardiology services 
Introduce liaison psychiatry, increase access to IAPT, review CAMHS, ADHD and Autism pathways 
Develop Community Hub in Malton and roll out to Scarborough 
Continue implementation of Neighbourhood Care Teams 
Primary  care reconfiguration and federation discussions 
Undertake capacity planning to ensure system resilience  
Service improvement event “The Perfect Week” 
Lay foundation for whole scale health and social care changes 

Implement delegated responsibility for co-commissioning primary care 
Fully integrated community hubs linking with neighbourhood care teams to provide wrap around support for patients with long term conditions and the frail elderly 
Care home support 
Integrated OOH/Urgent care service 
Review sleep apnoea service 
Implement service review changes/procurement identified in 2014/15 
Continue to transfer activity/resources from secondary care to community and primary care 
Continue to develop mental health services 
Maximise utilisation of voluntary sector 
Review provision of diagnostics 

7 day a week NHS services 
Develop and implement children’s centre in Scarborough 
Complete transformation of community and primary care to allow transfer of activity/resource from secondary care 
Modern model of integrated care – virtual or organisational – delivering care around individual patients, supporting patients to remain at home 
Sustainable local hospital and wider secondary care and tertiary services to create step change in elective productivity and centres of excellence 
Review pathway for children with lower respiratory infections 
Develop improved access to preventative services 
Parity of esteem becomes part of everyday commissioning of services 
Maximise use of technology and innovation 

P
age 236



Appendix 6 

The Vision and Strategy for Nurses, Midwives and Care Staff 

6 Areas of Action 
1. Helping people to stay independent, maximise well-being and improving health outcomes.

2. Working with people to provide a positive experience of care.

3. Delivering high quality care and measuring the impact.

4. Building and strengthening leadership.

5. Ensuring we have the right staff, with the right skills in the right place.

6. Supporting positive staff experience.

Our Culture of Compassionate Care - The 6 Cs 
Care 

Compassion 

Competence 

Communication 

Courage 

Commitment 

P
age 237



Appendix 7
Start Well, Live Well, Age 
Well, HC&V Sustainability & 
Transformation Plan

P
age 238



Start well, live
well, age well 
HUMBER COAST AND VALE SUSTAINABILITY
AND TRANSFORMATION PLAN SUMMARY

November 2016

Page 239



Our vision for the Humber Coast and
Vale Sustainability & Transformation
Plan (STP) is to be seen as a health and
care system that has the will and the
ability to help its population start well,
live well and age well. 

We are proud of our local health and social
care services and the thousands of staff who
provide them today, but there is much more
to be done. 23% of our 1.4m population live
in the most deprived areas of England and
we are seeing significant variations in health
outcomes seen in the diverse rural, urban
and coastal communities. Adults in some
areas are leading less healthy lifestyles and as
a result are at greater risk of developing long
term conditions that seriously impair their
lives and future prospects.

Our ideas are not just about medical
solutions. We are facing unprecedented
demand for services, a long-term shortage of
the skilled people we need to provide them
and a looming funding gap of more than
£420m by 2020/21. This means that we must
make changes that can support our people
to be healthier, that improve the quality of
care they receive and that balance our books
financially. Making changes now is integral to
drive improvements for the future.

The STP is an opportunity for the public
services and our vibrant voluntary sector to
work effectively together in a partnership
that can deliver huge benefits. The plan
focusses on the wider determinants of health
in our footprint, with all public services
working together to support people to take
more responsibility for their own health. Our
proposals are designed to give everyone
access to the right care in the right place at
the right time. National standards are
minimum standards, and we think people in
Humber Coast and Vale deserve more.

We believe that the ideas set out in this
document are the right approach for the
Humber Coast and Vale footprint, but they
are not the easiest. We will not make any
decisions without consulting our population
and our staff on the changes we believe we
should make. Indeed, much of what we
propose is based on easing the concerns
that people have already told us about. 

We are now ready to work collectively to
deliver the best care possible for the people
of Humber Coast and Vale. We will be as
efficient as possible with the resources we
have to meet our population health and care
needs in the best way.

Emma Latimer
Humber Coast and Vale STP Lead and Chief
Officer NHS Hull CCG

Foreword

Since April 2016, people from health and
care organisations across the region,
together with our vibrant voluntary
sector, have been working together. We
have developed proposals that we
believe will change the way you manage
your own health and how you receive
health and social care when you need it,
in the place where you live.

What’s
happening?

Why do we need these proposals in our region?

Mortality is 
much worse 
than the 
national average

Smoking, alcohol 
abuse and obesity 
rates are higher 
than the 
national average

Cancer is the leading 
cause of death in
under 75s. Cancer kills 
more than 4,000 people 
a year in Humber Coast 
and Vale, with lung 
cancer being the 
biggest killer

of people aged 16-74 
have mental health 
disorders

14%
of A&E patients require 
no treatment. 

40%

People are having 
to wait more 
than four weeks 
to access some 
mental health 
services

of hospital beds are 
used by people who 
don’t need them

25-50% 

Our annual turnover in 
the Humber Coast and 
Vale healthcare system is 

£3bn

If we do nothing we 
will have a budget 
deficit of £420 
million by 

2020/2021

of patients said they couldn’t 
have an appointment at their 
GP on the day they wanted to

51%

36.5% of patients 
who went to A&E 
went there because 
their GP practice was
unavailable or closed

of people seen by 
GPs could have had 
their issue resolved 
another way 

27% 

P
age 240



The Humber Coast and Vale area covers
six NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups
and six local authority boundaries
representing communities in Hull, East
Riding, York, Scarborough and Ryedale,
North Lincolnshire and North East
Lincolnshire - we call this our planning
footprint. This scale creates opportunities
to share resource in areas where we are
currently stretched, providing a better service

to patients and a better experience for the
staff who work within those services. 

Support services such as finance can also be
shared to reduce costs and improve
efficiency. Most of the things we do, however,
will aim to deliver the best care we can
locally, shaped around local need. 

We will work at
scale and locally

Selby

Tadcaster

Malton

Goole

Driffield

Pickering

Scarborough

Filey

Bridlington

Hornsea

Beverley

Cottingham

Withernseakingston-upon-Hull

Barton-upon-Humber

Scunthorpe

Brigg

Grimsby

Cleethorpes

NHS Scarborough
and Ryedale CCG

NHS East Riding
of Yorkshire CCG

NHS Vale of York CCG

NHS Hull CCG

NHS North Lincolnshire CCG

NHS North East 
Lincolnshire CCG

York

Market
Weighton

P
age 241



Health services, local authorities, providers and voluntary sector colleagues across
our footprint are working together to develop the Humber Coast and Vale STP.  

The organisations that make up the Humber Coast and Vale Partnership Board are:

Who is 
involved?

East Riding of Yorkshire CCG
Hull CCG

North Lincolnshire CCG
North East Lincolnshire CCG

Scarborough and Ryedale CCG
Vale of York CCG

Humber NHS Foundation Trust
Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS Foundation Trust

Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust
Hull and East Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust
Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber 

NHS Foundation Trust
York Teaching Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust

P
age 242



6
The Sustainability and Transformation
Plan (STP) for Humber Coast and Vale is
the blueprint for an ambitious approach
to prevention and public health that
puts your needs at the centre of service
redesign.

The plan describes how we will move
towards place-based provision of care and
services. It focuses on the wider
determinants of health in our footprint and
how public services will work together to
support everyone to take more responsibility
for their own health.

Our proposals aim to design a healthcare
system that by 2021 helps people to start
well, live well and age well, that improves the
quality of care and services that you receive
and ensures that the system is financially
sustainable for the long-term so that we can
continue to deliver the services that you
need. 

We must meet three
challenges - our “triple aims”

We will deliver our ideas by concentrating on
three things in our footprint. These are our
“triple aims”:

•    Achieving our desired outcomes – 
    “will the service be good?”
•   Maintaining quality services – 
    “will the service be safe and 
    operationally sustainable?”  
•   Closing our financial gap – 
    “will the service be financially 
    sustainable?”

What can
we do?

I only go to hospital when it is planned
and necessary and I am in hospital for the
minimum amount of time needed.

Six priorities
We have put six priorities that at the 
heart of the change we want to 
achieve. These are:

•    Helping people stay well
•   Place-based care
•   Creating the best hospital care
•   Supporting people with mental
    health problems
•   Helping people through cancer
•   Strategic commissioning

Supports everyone to manage their own care better

Reduces dependence on hospitals

Uses our resources more efficiently

Our vision for 2021 is a system that:

I know how to
look after myself
to reduce my
chances of falling
ill.

“

“

“ “

I know how to get help at
an early stage to avoid a
crisis.

“ “

P
age 243



Our priorities

Helping people stay well We want to focus on prevention – in other
words help people to help themselves to
stay well.

Our big ideas are:

•   Offer high quality smoking cessation 
    services based on what we know works
•   Give people advice and resources to look 
    after themselves.
•   Take steps to identify and act early on 
    cardiovascular disease and diabetes
•   Implement prevention activities that we 
    know work well across all localities – such
    as those that tackle obesity, alcohol 
    misuse and falls.

Place based care Our big ideas are:

•   Invest in General Practice in order to 
    improve access to GPs.
•   Allow practices to modernise and 
    transform the way they work and, over 
    time, increase the number of GPs in our 
    footprint.
•   Join up local services so that the health 
    system works for everyone. Local teams 
    will coordinate and deliver as much care 
    as possible in the community. These teams
    will include GPs, social care, some services
    currently found in a hospital and services 
    from our vibrant local community and 
    voluntary sector.
•   Transform urgent and emergency care 
    services to ensure that people are able to 
    access the level of service that is 
    appropriate to their need on a seven day 
    basis and reduce the need for them to go
    to hospital.

People want to receive excellent care, close
to their home, at times that work with
their lifestyle. They are frustrated that they
need to give the same information to different
professionals often on the same day.

P
age 244



Creating the best 
hospital care 

Our big ideas are:

•   Improve the quality of hospital services 
    through working together to redesign 
    clinical and operational processes.
•   Develop high quality specialised services. 
    We propose to review complex 
    rehabilitation services, paediatrics, 
    neonatal intensive care and specialised 
    orthopaedics over the next five years.
•   Share support services to become more 
    efficient where there will be little direct 
    impact on the quality of patient care. We 
    are considering doing this for pathology, 
    pharmacy, procurement and imaging.
•   Develop a consistent Humber Coast and 
    Vale level of maternity care.

People who work in our hospitals tell us that
they want to collaborate, innovate and
challenge the way services are currently
delivered.We know that we have a population
that is getting older and this is leading to an
increase in demand for hospital services.

Supporting people with
mental health problems

Our big ideas are:

•    We will make treatment in the community 
    our default option, addressing existing gaps 
    in onward placements and services, and 
    making better use of beds across the patch.
•    Invest in best start and prevention strategies 
    for the under-fives focussed on bonding and 
    attachment. These will be delivered through 
    health visitors, schools and parenting support.
•    Create new services to avoid unnecessary 
    hospital stays. We will do this in collaboration
    with the new integrated multi-disciplinary 
    teams.
•    Provide services that maintain independence.
    The style of the care provided in hospital or 
    other care settings can mean that people, 
    especially those with dementia, can start to 
    lose their independence. We will work with 
    hospital and community based services to 
    identify how to help people to continue with
    their activities of daily living and be 
    supported to make informed decisions 
    about their care.

We know that we have a lot to do to improve
mental health services. More services need to
be provided close to home rather than in
hospital and children, young people and
adults need better access to mental
health support services.

Helping people
through cancer 

The number of people living with and
beyond cancer is predicted to increase by
28% by 2030, which means we need to
change the way we treat cancer. 

We want to simplify the way that cancer
treatment is accessed, reduce the levels of
variation and increase our focus on the
prevention of cancer.

Our big ideas are:

•   By managing cancer diagnostics across the
    patch they should become more efficient, 
    which means patients will be able to 
    access them when they need to.
•   Provide a consistent cancer recovery 
    service for all patients across Humber 
    Coast and Vale.
•   Take steps to identify and act early on 
    cancer.

A focus on improving cancer services is
important as Humber Coast and Vale has
higher than national average incidence
and mortality rates for all cancers. 

Strategic commissioning Our big ideas are:

•   Implement a strategic commissioning 
    model that has a real focus on 
    prevention, wellbeing, self-care and 
    delivering outcomes that matter for 
    patients.
•   Plan hospital services to reduce variation, 
    measure the success of services against 
    the things that are important to the 
    population and make best use of the staff, 
    particularly for services where it is hard to
    recruit people.
•   Plan services at ‘place’ level that will be 
    developed locally on a smaller scale, for 
    example our new integrated 
    multi-disciplinary locality teams. This 
    means that the services offered through 
    these teams should meet the needs of 
    the people who live there rather than a 
    “one size fits all” approach.

Currently, patients may receive a different type
of treatment or a different level of care
depending on where they access services.
Similarly, too many organisations are
commissioning services. We aim to strike a
balance between planning some services at
scale so that we can get the best value from
them and planning other services on a local
level so that they can be built around the
needs of individual communities.

P
age 245



Improving our health and care system in
the way we describe will not happen
overnight. We are trying to resolve
challenges that our communities and
public and voluntary sector
organisations have been dealing with for
a long time. It will also require a
significant change in the way we work as
organisations. We are putting in place
some processes to help us make this
happen. 

Finance
We have developed a plan that will support
us in closing the ‘do nothing’ £420m funding
gap by 2021. Big changes in the way we will
work involve us delivering a system control
total. This will involve planning and
monitoring our services based on what
people in our communities think is
important, rather than the number of times
we see patients.

Governance
Our Strategic Partnership Board and our
Strategic Executive Group support us in
making the right decisions. Our Clinical
Advisory Group will make sure clinical views
are at the heart of what we do, but we know
we have to do more to support clinicians in
this role. We have begun to recruit into our
programme team and our governance and
resource model will continue to strengthen
as we move into implementation.

Workforce
Our Local Workforce Action Board (LWAB)
has planned two initiatives to help us to
make sure we have the skills we need to
deliver our strategy. These initiatives involve
developing both support staff and advanced
practice staff at scale. Both of these initiatives
will significantly help us to fill the gaps we
have in our workforce.

Our estate
Implementing this plan means we will have
different estate needs across Humber Coast
and Vale public sector partners. As demand
changes we will need to use our estate
flexibly to support delivery of our strategy.

Communication and
engagement
We have challenging proposals for Humber
Coast and Vale and are working on a
comprehensive communications and
engagement plan that has citizens and
patients, staff and partners at its heart. We
will not make any decisions without
consulting our population and our staff on
the changes we believe are needed.

Technology
We have a single plan across Humber Coast
and Vale for using technology to transform
our health and care services. This includes
developing a single electronic care record
that can be shared and accessed by health
and care professionals, meaning that people
will tell their story only once.

How will we make
the change happen?

How will these proposals
affect our communities 
and staff?

I have less duplication
in my work and I can
focus on what is
important

I enjoy the work I do
as I believe it makes
a difference

I have
enough

time to do
my job well

I can work easily and in
partnership with my colleagues

from other organisations

The services I work in are truly
designed around the patient

I am satisfied in my work
and understand the routes
for progression if I want it

I am able to work
seamlessly across care
settings to get the job

done 

I feel
supported to
keep myself
well 

I have 24/7 access to an on call
primary care practitioner, or
appropriate practitioner to meet
my urgent care needs

I understand there are better
alternatives than using my local

A&E for urgent care

I receive a consistent, excellent
quality of treatment from all
health and care organisations in

across the patch

I only go to hospital
when it is planned

and necessary 

I have access to
hospital services which
meet my need

We want to make Humber Coast and Vale a
better place to live. We want to develop health
and care services that people want to use and
work in. Over the next five years, we want
people to be able to say:

P
age 246



Citizen voice is at the heart of
everything we do. The ideas in this plan
are based on what many of you have
told us you want and need. Over the
coming months we will build on the
engagement we have carried out over
the past two years, talking to our staff
and local people about the plan so that
many more of you have the
opportunity to contribute as the plan
develops.

We will be working with Healthwatch
and other voluntary sector partners to
make sure that we have sought and
heard views from a wide range of
communities and the ideas from those
groups will be built into our plans.

You can contact us now with your
views in a number of ways:

Tell us what
you think

Email: HULLCCG.contactus@nhs.net

Freepost: 
RTGL-RGEB-JABG
2nd Floor
Wilberforce Court
Alfred Gelder St
Hull
HU1 1UY

Telephone: 01482 344700

Page 247



This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 4 OCTOBER 2018

REPORT TO: OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 4 OCTOBER 2018

REPORT OF THE: DELIVERY & FRONTLINE SERVICES LEAD
BECKIE BENNETT

TITLE OF REPORT: TERMS OF REFERENCE - SCRUTINY REVIEW OF 
GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS FOR SERVICES WITH 
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To present Members of the Committee a set of terms of reference for the scrutiny review  
of the governance arrangements for services with North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) 
for approval.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That members of the Committee:

a) Agree the terms of reference for the review of governance arrangements for services 
with NYCC.

3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The key to a successful scrutiny review is agreeing a clear terms of reference before 
embarking on the review.

3.2 The task group will undertake the work on the review and requires a minimum of three 
Members of the Committee – already agreed to be Councillors Acomb, Clark and Jowitt – 
however the task group meetings are open to all Members of the Scrutiny Committee.

3.3 The first phase of the review will inform the scope and timeframe for the subsequent phase 
of the review.

4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1 There are no significant risks associated with this report. It is anticipated that the work on 
the governance arrangements for shared services with NYCC will mitigate future risks by 
informing a generic framework to ensure consistency and to be applied to any other future 
service delivery models.

Page 249



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 4 OCTOBER 2018

REPORT

5.0 BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION

5.1 At the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 14 June 2018, Members agreed 
the next topic would be a review of the governance arrangements for shared services being 
entered into with NYCC following the delegation which was approved at Council on 15 
March 2018 (minute 76) and 28 June 2018 (minute 19).  The decision record is attached at 
Appendix A.

5.2 This review will consider: and understand the governance arrangements for services with 
NYCC covering:

 Human Resources (HR) including Organisational Development, Employment 
Support Servies (Payroll) and Health and Wellbeing (Occupational Health) 

 Section 151 Officer and other Financial Services
 Chief Executive (RDC and Assistant Director (NYCC)

The review also aims to define and understand the various types of agreement the Council 
has with others for services and/or support services included in the Council’s Contracts 
Register covering value, start/review dates and term.

5.3 Three task group meetings have taken place to discuss the remit of this review (on 9 
August, 10 and 20 September) and to manage the work involved with this review, two 
priority areas have been identified. 

5.4 The first priority is the governance arrangements for services being entered into with 
NYCC following the delegation being approved in June.  The review will start with HR as 
the Service Level Agreements (SLAs) are in place and then the review will move on to the 
other areas once the finalised agreements are in place. 

5.5 The second priority, possibly following the completion of the first priority review area due 
to time constraints, is to consider a generic framework to ensure consistency and to be 
applied to any other future service delivery models.

5.6 It is estimated that the first area of this review will conclude by January 2019.  Progress 
reports will be submitted to the Committee during the review.

5.7 Recommendations may include the development of a generic governance framework to 
be applied to any other future service delivery models or if time allows the review may 
consider this as a second priority review area.  

6.0 POLICY CONTEXT

6.1 The Council has an aim to Transform the Council by understanding our communities and 
meeting their needs and developing the leadership, capacity and capability to deliver future 
improvements, considering options for alternative models of delivery.

6.2 The aim of the Towards 2020 programme is to transform our workforce and the way they 
work,  systematically redesigning  the Councils services and optimising our assets, IT and 
systems, to ensure that the Council is relevant to residents and meeting local needs.

7.0 CONSULTATION

7.1 Existing shared service arrangements  will be reviewed which will involve engagement and 
consultation with others to understand how their governance arrangements work and how 
they could be applied to the Council’s arrangements with NYCC.

Page 250



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 4 OCTOBER 2018

8.0 REPORT DETAILS

8.1 The tables attached at Appendix B present a draft terms of reference for the review covering 
the following areas:

 Aim of the review
 Why has this review been selected?
 Who will undertake the review?
 How will the review be undertaken?
 What are the expected outputs?
 Timescale

9.0 IMPLICATIONS
9.1 The following implications have been identified:

a) Financial
None currently beyond existing budget provision

b) Legal
None currently though advice may needed to ensure robust and compliant governance 
arrangements are in place to protect the Council

c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime & 
Disorder) 
None identified at this stage though it is acknowledged that there is the potential for the 
outcomes of the review to affect certain posts.

Beckie Bennett
Delivery and Frontline Services Lead

Author: Beckie Bennett, Delivery and Frontline Services Lead
Telephone No: 01653 600666 ext: 483
E-Mail Address: beckie.bennett@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None

Background Papers are available for inspection at:
N/A

Page 251

mailto:clare.slater@ryedale.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

15 March 2018

Council

Minute 76: Recruitment and appointment of a Chief Executive – Proposal to recruit 
and appoint a Chief Executive

Resolved

This Council commits, in principle, to appoint a shared post of Chief Executive / Head of 
Paid Service of Ryedale District Council and Assistant Chief Executive of North Yorkshire 
County Council (NYCC). The appointments sub-committee is authorised to agree the terms 
of a shared post, the methodology and procedure for the open recruitment process with 
NYCC, and commence that recruitment process; all previous decisions of Council mandating 
the type of recruitment process and terms of employment are rescinded. 

In the event the appointments sub-committee is unable to conclude negotiations with NYCC 
to appoint a shared post, the sub-committee is authorised to either:

 agree the terms of a shared post with an alternative authority and commence a 
recruitment process; or,

 commence a unilateral recruitment process for a Head of Paid Service of Ryedale 
District Council.

Full Council reserves the right to approve the final appointment of a Head of Paid Service.

The interim arrangements agreed by Council on 31 August 2017 in Minute 35 (Options for 
the Interim Arrangements for the Post of Chief Executive) continue on the existing terms and 
conditions until a new Chief Executive is appointed and in post. 

Further that the Interim Chief Executive be given delegated authority to enter into an 
arrangement with North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC), for the provision of a Section 151 
Officer and other finance services as a matter of urgency, and to determine whether similar 
arrangements should be made for any other services where it can be demonstrated that this 
represents best value for the Council.

Should such an arrangement with NYCC not be possible for the provision of a section 151 
Officer or other finance services or any particular service, then the Interim Chief Executive is 
further authorised to conclude similar arrangements with any other local authority. For the 
avoidance of doubt, in the event the Interim Chief Executive is unable to conclude 
negotiations with NYCC or another local authority to appoint  an interim Section 151 Officer 
then in accordance with the usual practice in such matters, a list of suitable interim Section 
151 Officers be obtained from external recruitment consultants and then the Interim Chief 
Executive will make the appointment of an interim Section 151 Officer on such terms as are 
considered reasonable in consultation with the Chairman of the Policy and Resources 
Committee.

Page 253



28 June 2018

Council

Minute 19: Recruitment of a Chief Executive

Resolved

That Council approve:

1.    That Stacey Burlet be appointed to the following posts:

 Chief Executive
 Returning Officer
 Electoral Registration Officer

2.    That Stacey Burlet be designated as the Council’s Head of Paid Service;

3.    That the salary for the role of Chief Executive be £100,000 per annum with the provision 
to increase to £105,000 per annum subject to performance appraisal; 

4.    That the District Council enter into a secondment agreement with North Yorkshire 
County Council (NYCC) and that NYCC pay the pro-rata proportion of the salary cost 
(including on-costs).

Page 254



APPENDIX B
 

DRAFT Terms of Reference
Scrutiny Review of Governance Arrangements for Services

with North Yorkshire County Council

Aim of the Review Priority 1:
To review and understand the governance arrangements for services with North 
Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) covering:

- Human Resources including Organisational Development, 
Employment Support Service (Payroll) and Health and Wellbeing 
(Occupational Health)

- Section 151 Officer and other Financial servuices
- Chief Executive (RDC) and Assistant Director (NYCC)

The review also aims to define and understand the various types of agreement 
the Council has with others for services and/or support services included in the 
Council’s Contracts Register covering value, start/review dates and term.

Priority 2:
To consider a generic framework to ensure consistency and to be applied to 
any other future service delivery models 

Why has this review 
been selected?

Overview and Scrutiny Committee selected this topic for the next scrutiny review 
on 14 June 2018 as a priority given recent arrangements for shared services 
being entered into with NYCC following the delegation being approved. (Appendix 
A for decision record, click on hyperlinks for minutes).

Council 28.6.18 minute 19

Council 15.3.18 Minute 76

Who will carry out 
the review?

The review will be carried out by a task group including:
 A minimum of 3 members of the O and S committee Cllrs Acomb, Clark 

and Jowitt (but open to all members of O and S) agreed on 25 July 2018 
 Support will be provided by the Delivery and Frontline Services Lead, the 

Senior Commissioning Officer and the Projects, Programmes and 
Performance Officer

 With input from other officers as required

How the review will 
be carried out?

The task group will examine the existing shared service arrangements in place at 
the Council.   These will be compared with other best practice examples of shared 
service arrangements to understand how these ensure good governance 
arrangements are in place, how effective they are and the benefit of applying 
them to the NYCC arrangements to ensure that robust governance is in place for 
performance management and value for money.  

The review will explore other shared service arrangements already in operation 
including the Better Together model in place between NYCC and Selby DC.  It 
will also examine other relevant agreements with a view to identifying common 
themes  as well as researching best practice guidance on shared service delivery 
models.  Any findings will inform any recommendations together with enabling the 
development of a generic framework to be applied to all future agreements where 
the Council buys in services or enters into arrangements for alternative service 
delivery models.

Page 255

https://democracy.ryedale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=114&MId=2881&Ver=4
https://democracy.ryedale.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=16799


APPENDIX B
What are the 
expected outputs?

It is expected that the task group will produce a report, summarising the evidence 
they have gathered to enable a proposed way forward for the governance 
arrangements for services with NYCC. 

The aim is to ensure the governance arrangements are sound, consistent and are 
being applied properly within a robust framework and performance management 
is in place.

A proposed governance framework may include:

Is there a process to follow when an issue or service is identified as requiring 
action or if alternative delivery models represent best value ?

Are the appropriate decision making processes in place and robust? 

Is there an appropriate signed agreement in place?

Is the agreement fit for purpose?

Is there a delivery plan?

How are the outcomes of the agreement being measured?

Are there adequate controls and KPIs in place to ensure any actions are identified 
and implemented?

What are the mechanisms for remedy or withdrawal if the agreement fails?

Are there any recommendations to improve or change any of the arrangements 
(the outcome of the scrutiny review)

Timescale It is anticipated that the group will conclude the outcomes of the review by January 
2019. Progress reports will be submitted to the Committee at regular intervals 
during the review.

Page 256



Ryedale District Council
Delivering the Council Plan Year to Date Report 
1 April to 31 August 2018 asasas 

1 April – 31 August 2018

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH
This Council wants to do all it can to create the conditions for economic success in our area. 

We want Ryedale residents to have the skills, opportunities and living conditions that allow them to benefit from a healthy local economy and enjoy a good 
quality of life. A supply of local labour with the right skills is also essential for our businesses. 

We need new homes, particularly affordable homes for local people. We can only influence and seek to facilitate these matters in partnership with others. 

We monitor our relative performance in terms of the key baseline issues of: Employment and benefit claimant levels, Wage levels, Qualifications and 
education, Supply of homes (market and affordable) and housing sites. Housing affordability, including fuel poverty, and dealing with homelessness. 

Where local performance doesn’t reflect our ambitions for our economy and communities, we will work with the appropriate partners to seek to address this 
through the most deliverable means. 

The Council has approved the Local Plan Sites Document which has been submitted for examination with hearing sessions anticipated in September and 
October 2018. It is expected that the Sites document will be adopted winter 2018/spring 2019.

CUSTOMERS AND COMMUNITIES
Customer facing services such as Council tax collection and rebate and housing benefit have maintained performance levels.

The community team are developing new ways of working with parishes and communities, and working closely with partners including the police and fire.

The processing performance of change events in housing benefits in continues to improve following targeted work.

The Council has continued to determine major applications in a timely manner with 100% of major applications determined in time and/or agreed extensions 
of time, with the minor and other development categories both performing above target to the end of August 2018.

The processing of Freedom of Information requests is performing just below target, but we have now allocated this to Customer Services since the last 
report and this has already led to a reduction in processing times.

ONE RYEDALE
Council Tax and Business Rates collection rates have remained at or close to 2017/18 levels up to the end of August 2018.

Work is continuing to improve quarterly reporting performance information in this priority area.

P
age 257



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH
- Promoting a strong economy with thriving business and supporting infrastructure
- Capitalising on our culture, leisure and tourism opportunities
- Managing the environment of Ryedale with partners
- Enabling the provision of housing that meets existing and anticipates future need
- Minimising homelessness, improving the standard and availability of rented accommodation and supporting people to live independently

PEOPLE - GARY HOUSDEN, SPECIALIST SERVICES LEAD
Traffic Light Short Name Note Latest Actual 

Result
Latest Target Last Update Trend Chart

The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 came into force 1 April 2018 and is a major legislative change.  Due to new ways of working and a new IT system it is not possible to report on figures 
which were previously recorded.  New KPI’s will be established in the near future in consultation with neighbouring authorities.

Since the 1 April 2018 we have had 216 enquiries through the Jigsaw system:

Snapshot as at 12th September 2018:
• 66 Clients are in Approach (Not threatened with Homelessness)

• 17 Application Triggered, (initial investigations have commenced)
• 19 in Prevention (Threatened with Homelessness within 56 days)

• 8 in Relief (Actually Homeless)
• 4 Main duty has been accepted (Full duty accepted)

• 106 cases have been dealt with and closed

Number of affordable 
homes delivered 

Following 40 affordable units 
completed in 2017/18, performance is 
expected to be much improved this 
year as several developments are due 
for completion. The Peckitts Yard 
development at Sheriff Hutton has 
delivered 6 units in the first quarter.

6 19
(One quarter of 

the annual target 
of 75)

Q1 2018/19 result

P
age 258



ENVIRONMENT - GARY HOUSDEN, SPECIALIST SERVICES LEAD
Traffic Light Short Name Note Latest Actual 

Result
Latest Target Last Update Trend Chart

% of Food establishments 
in the area broadly 
compliant with food 
hygiene law

The “broadly compliant” performance 
Indicator is defined as the percentage 
of food establishments within the local 
authority area that are broadly 
compliant with food law. The 
assessment is based on a scoring 
system that is defined in the national 
Code of Practice.

85% 72%
National Target

2017/18 result

CUSTOMERS AND COMMUNITIES
- Designing all of our services with the customer at the heart of everything we do
- Making the best use of resources to ensure maximum benefit for all customers and communities across the district, particularly the most vulnerable
- Helping our partners to keep our communities safe and healthy
- Supporting communities to identify their needs, plan and develop local solutions and resilience

CUSTOMER SERVICES - ANGELA JONES, CUSTOMER SERVICES LEAD
Traffic Light Short Name Note Latest Actual 

Result
Latest Target Last Update Trend Chart

Speed of processing new 
Housing Benefit claims

Performance in processing new 
Housing Benefit claims is slightly 
improved on last year
 

18.36 days 21 days Average result for 
2018/19 as of 
August 2018

P
age 259



Traffic Light Short Name Note Latest Actual 
Result

Latest Target Last Update Trend Chart

Speed of processing new 
claims for Council Tax 
Support

Performance in processing new 
Council Tax Support claims is slightly 
down in comparison to last year

26.69 days 25 days Average result for 
2018/19 as of 
August 2018

Speed of processing 
Housing Benefit change 
events

Performance in processing changes 
to Housing Benefit claims is much 
improved this year, for example in 
August 2017 the speed of processing 
changes was 12 days and now in 
August 2018 it is down to 2.19 days.

4.09 days 12 days Average result for 
2018/19 as of 
August 2018

Speed of processing 
Council Tax Support 
change events

Performance in processing changes 
to Council Tax Support has improved 
in comparison to last year.

9.56 days 12 days Average result for 
2018/19 as of 
August 2018

P
age 260



Traffic Light Short Name Note Latest Actual 
Result

Latest Target Last Update Trend Chart

Customer Complaints 
resolved within five working 
days

2 out of the 6 customer complaints 
received during Quarter 1 were dealt 
with by the 5 day deadline. The 
processing of complaints has now 
moved to a new team to improve 
resilience in this area.

33.3% 50% Q1 2018/19 result

% FOI Requests responded 
to within 20 working days

From 317 FOIs received so far this 
year, 16 have not been answered 
within the 20 working day limit. 

April-August result 94.95% 95%

P
age 261



PLACE - GARY HOUSDEN, SPECIALIST SERVICES LEAD
Traffic Light Short Name Note Latest Actual 

Result
Latest Target Last Update Trend Chart

Processing of planning 
applications: Major 
applications (13 weeks)

All 12 major planning applications 
received so far this year have been 
processed within the required 13 
week period.

100.00% 70.00% August 2018 result

Processing of planning 
applications: Minor 
applications (8 weeks)

84 Minor planning applications have 
been received so far this year, with 
performance much improved on last 
year to process within 8 weeks.

93.00% 80.00% August 2018 result

Processing of planning 
applications: Other 
applications (8 weeks)

154 Other planning applications have 
been received to date this year, with 
processing performance improved in 
every month in comparison to last 
year.

91.50% 90.00% August 2018 result

P
age 262



Traffic Light Short Name Note Latest Actual 
Result

Latest Target Last Update Trend Chart

Standard searches 
carried out in 10 working 
days

97.0% 100.0% August 2018 result

Planning appeals 
allowed

As with previous years, the overall 
number of appeals is very low so the 
performance out turn can be volatile. 
However, during Q1, no planning 
appeals were allowed.

0.0% 33.0% Q1 2018/19 result

P
age 263



OPERATIONS - BECKIE BENNETT, DELIVERY AND FRONTLINE SERVICES LEAD
Traffic Light Short Name Note Latest Actual 

Result
Latest Target Last Update Trend Chart

% of Household Waste 
Recycled

20.27% 20.00% Q1 2018/19 result

% of Household Waste 
Composted

30.43% 23.00% Q1 2018/19 result

% of household waste sent 
for reuse, recycling and 
composting

50.70% 43.00% Q1 2018/19 result

 

P
age 264



ONE RYEDALE
- Working together as One Ryedale, members and staff share the PROUD values and behaviours
- Utilising assets in supporting the delivery of priorities
- Developing business opportunities for the council and optimise income
- Building capacity and influencing policy in partnership
- Enabling services through the innovative use of ICT
- Delivering the Towards 2020 programme and anticipating further savings required to 2022

CUSTOMER SERVICES - ANGELA JONES, CUSTOMER SERVICES LEAD
Traffic Light Short Name Note Last Update Latest Actual 

Result
Latest Target Trend Chart

Ryedale DC Website 
Page Views

From April to August 2018
268,932 page views
Frequently visited webpages include:
- View/Comment on a planning 
application
- Find your bin collection day

August 2018 
result

55,610 52,502
July 2018

% of Council Tax 
collected

Collection rates tend to be lower 
between April & January compared to 
the previous year, but catches back 
up in February & March.

August 2018 
result

48.53% 48.45%
August 2017

P
age 265



Traffic Light Short Name Note Last Update Latest Actual 
Result

Latest Target Trend Chart

% of Non-domestic Rates 
Collected

Decrease in collection compared to 
previous year attributable to various 
factors. Primarily increase in uptake of 
12 monthly instalment plans and 
Rateable Value changes.

August 2018 
result

51.38% 51.55%
August 2017

 

P
age 266



Ryedale District Council
Annual Performance Indicator Overview

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH
- Promoting a strong economy with thriving businesses and supporting infrastructure for future generations
- Capitalising on our culture, leisure and tourism opportunities
- Managing the environment of Ryedale with partners
- Enabling the provision of housing that meets existing and anticipates future need
- Minimising homelessness, improving the standard and availability of rented accommodation and supporting people to live independently

Economic Growth
Gary Housden, Specialist Services Lead

2017/18 2016/17Short Name

Value Target Status Value Target Status

Lead Officer

% Ryedale population aged 16-64 qualified - NVQ1 or equivalent 96.6% N/A 93% N/A Gary Housden

% Ryedale population aged 16-64 qualified - NVQ2 or equivalent 91.6% N/A 85% N/A Gary Housden

% Ryedale population aged 16-64 qualified - NVQ3 or equivalent 60.3% N/A 59.6% N/A Gary Housden

% Ryedale population aged 16-64 qualified - NVQ4 or equivalent 40.7% N/A 36.8% N/A Gary Housden

Employment Rate - aged 16-64 79.4% N/A 78.6% N/A Gary Housden

Gross weekly earnings by residency £446.00 £443.00 £443.10 £411.80 Gary Housden

Gross weekly earnings by workplace £455.10 £460.10 £460.10 £410.40 Gary Housden

Population of Ryedale 54,300 53,900 53,900 53,300 Gary Housden

Total Number of Business Enterprises 3,605 3,555 3,555 3,535 Gary Housden

Environment
Beckie Bennett, Delivery and Frontline Services Lead

Gary Housden, Specialist Services Lead
2017/18 2016/17Short Name

Value Target Status Value Target Status
Lead Officer

% CO2 reduction from LA operations 8.8% 18.5% Beckie Bennett

Tonnes of CO2 from LA operations

A new process for collating data 
is being implemented to make 
the calculation of this indicator 

more efficient. The 2017-18 
result will be available for the 

next reporting period.

1,828 1,680 Beckie Bennett

P
age 267



Short Name 2017/18 2016/17 Lead Officer
Value Target Status Value Target Status

% of Food establishments in the area broadly compliant with food hygiene law 85% 72% 88% 72% Gary Housden

Number of monitoring locations exceeding the annual mean Nitrogen Dioxide objective level 0 0 0 0 Gary Housden

% Households in Ryedale in Fuel Poverty (Low Income High Cost) Data not available from central 
government

11.2% 13.3% Gary Housden

Housing delivery
Gary Housden, Specialist Services Lead

2017/18 2016/17Short Name
Value Target Status Value Target Status

Lead Officer

Net additional homes provided 278 200 321 200 Gary Housden

Number of affordable homes delivered 48 75 52 75 Gary Housden

Planning appeals allowed 22.2% 33.0% 36.0% 33.0% Gary Housden

Supply of deliverable housing sites 108% 100% 120.0% 100.0% Gary Housden

Reducing homelessness
Gary Housden, Specialist Services Lead

2017/18 2016/17Short Name
Value Target Status Value Target Status

Lead Officer

Affordability Ratio 9.31 8.93 8.93 8.6 Gary Housden

Average length of stay in temporary accommodation (B&B, weeks) 3.25 
weeks

4.00 
weeks

2.42 
weeks

6.00 
weeks

Gary Housden

Homeless applications decided 33 working days 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% Gary Housden

Number of Homeless Applications 35 52 23 52 Gary Housden

Prevention of Homelessness cases through Advice and Proactive Intervention 171 156 173 156 Gary Housden

 

P
age 268



CUSTOMERS AND COMMUNITIES
- Designing all of our services with the customer at the heart of everything we do
- Making the best use of resources to ensure maximum benefit for all customers and communities across the district, particularly the most vulnerable
- Helping our partners to keep our communities safe and healthy
- Supporting communities to identify their needs, plan and develop local solutions and resilience

Customer Focus
Angela Jones, Customer Services Lead
Gary Housden, Specialist Services Lead

2017/18 2016/17Short Name
Value Target Status Value Target Status

Lead Officer

% FOI Requests responded to within 20 working days 86.01% 95% 97.17% 95% Angela Jones

Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for Council Tax Support claims 12.97 days 12.0 days 4.96 days 12.0 days Angela Jones

Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for Housing Benefit claims 3.0 days 12.0 days 3.3 days 12.0 days Angela Jones

Speed of processing - new Council Tax Support claims 26.3 days 25.0 days 33.9 days 25.0 days Angela Jones

Speed of processing - new Housing Benefit claims 16.3 days 25.0 days 32.6 days 25.0 days Angela Jones

Total Job Seeker Allowance and Universal Credit Out of Work Claimants Aged 16 - 64 1.58% N/A 1.04% N/A Gary Housden

Customer Value
Angela Jones, Customer Services Lead
Gary Housden, Specialist Services Lead

2017/18 2016/17Short Name
Value Target Status Value Target Status

Lead Officer

Processing of planning applications: Major applications (13 weeks) 100.00% 70.00% 90.00% 70.00% Gary Housden

Processing of planning applications: Minor applications (8 weeks) 81.00% 80.00% 70.60% 80.00% Gary Housden

Processing of planning applications: Other applications (8 weeks) 85.60% 90.00% 88.67% 90.00% Gary Housden

Planning appeals allowed 22.2% 33.0% 36.0% 33.0% Gary Housden

P
age 269



Short Name 2017/18 2016/17 Lead Officer
Value Target Status Value Target Status

Standard searches carried out in 10 working days 96.1% 100.0% 98.2% 100.0% Angela Jones

Take up of services
Beckie Bennett, Delivery and Frontline Services Lead

2017/18 2016/17Short Name
Value Target Status Value Target Status

Lead Officer

% of Household Waste Composted 24.21% 23.00% 24.17% 23.00% Beckie Bennett

% of Household Waste Recycled 21.98% 20.00% 22.24% 20.00% Beckie Bennett

Residual household waste - kg per household 452.18
kg/hh

450.00
kg/hh

462.65
kg/hh

450.00
kg/hh

Beckie Bennett

ONE RYEDALE
- Working together as One Ryedale, members and staff share the PROUD values and behaviours
- Utilising assets in supporting the delivery of priorities
- Developing business opportunities for the council and optimise income
- Building capacity and influencing policy in partnership
- Enabling services through the innovative use of ICT
- Delivering the Towards 2020 programme and anticipating further savings required to 2022

Budget monitoring
Beckie Bennett, Delivery and Frontline Services Lead

Angela Jones, Customer Services Lead
Anton Hodge, s151 Officer

2017/18 2016/17Short Name
Value Target Status Value Target Status

Lead Officer

Car Park Ticket Income £713,540 £761,100 £727,170 £707,090 Beckie Bennett

Housing Benefit Overpayment Income £142,649 £100,000 £137,626 £100,000 Angela Jones

Income from recyclates £262,553 £167,532 £177,021 £127,404 Beckie Bennett

P
age 270



Short Name 2017/18 2016/17 Lead Officer
Value Target Status Value Target Status

Income from searches £100,107 £87,500 £100,352 £87,500 Angela Jones

Investment Property Income £73,839 £72,390 £101,270 £89,320 Anton Hodge

Ryecare Income £235,986 £221,390 £200,414 £198,730 Angela Jones

Trade Waste Income £442,004 £472,830 £442,512 £463,570 Beckie Bennett

Building capacity through partnership
2017/18 2016/17Short Name

Value Target Status Value Target Status
Lead Officer

Staff Appraisals completed in WorkPAL 88% 85% N/A N/A Human Resources

Delivering the Financial Strategy
Angela Jones, Customer Services Lead

2017/18 2016/17Short Name
Value Target Status Value Target Status

Lead Officer

% of Council Tax collected 98.73% 98.80% 98.80% 98.76% Angela Jones

% of Non-domestic Rates collected 99.56% 99.39% 99.39% 99.18% Angela Jones

Salaries monitoring
Anton Hodge, s151 Officer

2017/18 2016/17Short Name
Value Target Status Value Target Status

Lead Officer

Salaries £5,240,329 £5,481,952 £4,925,280 £5,207,110 Anton Hodge

 

P
age 271



T
his page is intentionally left blank



18 July 2018

By email

Clare Slater
Interim Chief Executive
Ryedale District Council

Dear Clare Slater,

Annual Review letter 2018

I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) about your authority for the year
ended 31 March 2018. The enclosed tables present the number of complaints and enquiries
received about your authority and the decisions we made during the period. I hope this
information will prove helpful in assessing your authority’s performance in handling
complaints.

Complaint statistics
In providing these statistics, I would stress that the volume of complaints does not, in itself,
indicate the quality of the council’s performance. High volumes of complaints can be a sign
of an open, learning organisation, as well as sometimes being an early warning of wider
problems. Low complaint volumes can be a worrying sign that an organisation is not alive to
user feedback, rather than always being an indicator that all is well. So, I would encourage
you to use these figures as the start of a conversation, rather than an absolute measure of
corporate health. One of the most significant statistics attached is the number of upheld
complaints. This shows how frequently we find fault with the council when we investigate.
Equally importantly, we also give a figure for the number of cases where we decided your
authority had offered a satisfactory remedy during the local complaints process. Both figures
provide important insights.

I want to emphasise the statistics in this letter reflect the data we hold, and may not
necessarily align with the data your authority holds. For example, our numbers include
enquiries from people we signpost back to the authority, some of whom may never contact
you.

In line with usual practice, we are publishing our annual data for all authorities on our
website, alongside an annual review of local government complaints. The aim of this is to be
transparent and provide information that aids the scrutiny of local services.

Page 273



Future development of annual review letters
Last year, we highlighted our plans to move away from a simplistic focus on complaint
volumes and instead turn focus onto the lessons that can be learned and the wider
improvements we can achieve through our recommendations to improve services for the
many. We have produced a new corporate strategy for 2018-21 which commits us to more
comprehensibly publish information about the outcomes of our investigations and the
occasions our recommendations result in improvements to local services.

We will be providing this broader range of data for the first time in next year’s letters, as well as
creating an interactive map of local authority performance on our website. We believe this
will lead to improved transparency of our work, as well as providing increased recognition to
the improvements councils have agreed to make following our interventions. We will
therefore be seeking views from councils on the future format of our annual letters early next
year.

Supporting local scrutiny
One of the purposes of our annual letters to councils is to help ensure learning from
complaints informs scrutiny at the local level. Sharing the learning from our investigations
and supporting the democratic scrutiny of public services continues to be one of our key
priorities. We have created a dedicated section of our website which contains a host of
information to help scrutiny committees and councillors to hold their authority to account –
complaints data, decision statements, public interest reports, focus reports and scrutiny
questions. This can be found at www.lgo.org.uk/scrutiny I would be grateful if you could
encourage your elected members and scrutiny committees to make use of these resources.

Learning from complaints to improve services
We share the issues we see in our investigations to help councils learn from the issues
others have experienced and avoid making the same mistakes. We do this through the
reports and other resources we publish. Over the last year, we have seen examples of
councils adopting a positive attitude towards complaints and working constructively with us
to remedy injustices and take on board the learning from our cases. In one great example, a
county council has seized the opportunity to entirely redesign how its occupational therapists
work with all of it districts, to improve partnership working and increase transparency for the
public. This originated from a single complaint. This is the sort of culture we all benefit from –
one that takes the learning from complaints and uses it to improve services.

Complaint handling training
We have a well-established and successful training programme supporting local authorities
and independent care providers to help improve local complaint handling. In 2017-18 we
delivered 58 courses, training more than 800 people. We also set up a network of council
link officers to promote and share best practice in complaint handling, and hosted a series of
seminars for that group. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training.

Yours sincerely,

Michael King

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 274



Local Authority Report: Ryedale District Council
For the Period Ending: 31/03/2018

For further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website:
http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics

Complaints and enquiries received

Adult Care
Services

Benefits and
Tax

Corporate
and Other
Services

Education
and

Children’s
Services

Environment
Services

Highways
and

Transport
Housing

Planning and
Development

Other Total

0 1 1 0 2 0 2 5 0 11

Decisions made Detailed Investigations

Incomplete or
Invalid

Advice Given

Referred
back for

Local
Resolution

Closed After
Initial

Enquiries
Not Upheld Upheld Uphold Rate Total

1 0 4 3 1 0 0% 9

Notes Complaints Remedied

Our uphold rate is calculated in relation to the total number of detailed investigations.

The number of remedied complaints may not equal the number of upheld complaints.
This is because, while we may uphold a complaint because we find fault, we may not
always find grounds to say that fault caused injustice that ought to be remedied.

by LGO
Satisfactorily by

Authority before LGO
Involvement

0 0

P
age 275



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Decisions made
Reference Authority Category Decided Decision Remedy

17000739 Ryedale District Council Planning & Development 18/04/2017 Incomplete/Invalid Null
17000758 Ryedale District Council Housing 18/04/2017 Referred back for local resolution Null
17001430 Ryedale District Council Planning & Development 23/05/2017 Closed after initial enquiries Null
17001923 Ryedale District Council Planning & Development 25/05/2017 Referred back for local resolution Null
17002505 Ryedale District Council Housing 16/05/2017 Referred back for local resolution Null
17009350 Ryedale District Council Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation 10/10/2017 Closed after initial enquiries Null
17009357 Ryedale District Council Benefits & Tax 13/03/2018 Not Upheld Null
17016917 Ryedale District Council Corporate & Other Services 16/02/2018 Closed after initial enquiries Null
17018466 Ryedale District Council Planning & Development 07/03/2018 Referred back for local resolution Null

P
age 277



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Complaints Q1 2018-19
Generated on: 24 September 2018

Community Officers

Summary of Complaint Complaint Type Complaint Remedy Additional 
Action Ward Stage of 

Complaint Opened Date Closed Date Total

Loss of pitch at Helmsley 
Market

Dissatisfaction with the 
way Council policies are 

carried out

Explanation given and 
trader placed on waiting 

list 
Helmsley Formal complaint 25-Jun-2018 30-Jul-2018 1 

Facilities

Summary of Complaint Complaint Type Complaint Remedy Additional 
Action Ward Stage of 

Complaint Opened Date Closed Date Total

Tenancy changes in The 
Ropery, Pickering

Dissatisfaction with the 
way Council policies are 

carried out

Investigation 
undertaken and 

explanation given

Retrospective 
Change of Use 

application 
submitted by 

RDC 

Pickering West Formal complaint 30-May-2018 25-Jun-2018 1 

P
age 279



Specialist Environment

Summary of Complaint Complaint Type Complaint Remedy Additional 
Action Ward Stage of 

Complaint Opened Date Closed Date Total

Adequacy of Stray Dog 
provision

Failure to achieve 
standards of service   Helmsley Initial complaint 28-Jun-2018 Ongoing 1 

Specialist People

Summary of Complaint Complaint Type Complaint Remedy Additional 
Action Ward Stage of 

Complaint Opened Date Closed Date Total

Dispute regarding a 
Housing Health and 

Safety Rating System 
inspection

Dissatisfaction with the 
way Council policies are 

carried out

Investigation 
undertaken and 

explanation given

Advised to lobby 
MP and 

housebuilder
Norton East Formal complaint 15-May-2018 27-Jun-2018 1 

Specialist Place

Summary of Complaint Complaint Type Complaint Remedy Additional 
Action Ward Stage of 

Complaint Opened Date Closed Date Total

Planning alleged breach of 
confidentiality and bias

Complaints regarding 
conduct, attitude and 
actions of employees

Investigation 
undertaken and 

explanation given
 Sherburn Formal complaint 10-Apr-2018 09-Jul-2018

Complaint regarding the 
determination of planning 

application

Dissatisfaction with the 
way Council policies are 

carried out

Investigation 
undertaken and 

explanation given
 Pickering East Formal complaint 13-Jun-2018 06-Sept-2018 

 
 2

TOTAL 6

P
age 280



Number of corporate complaints received (As of 30/06/2018)

2018/19
Department 2018/19 complaints Completed within 5 

working days
Community Officers 1 100%
Facilities 1 0%
Environment 1 0%
People 1 0%
Place 2 50%
TOTAL 6

Year Number of Complaints 
2018/19 as of 30/06/18 6
2017/18 56 
2016/17 29 
2015/16 62 
2014/15 54 

P
age 281



2017/18
Department 2017/18 complaints Completed within 5 

working days
Customer Services 6 50%
Place Team 12 33%
People Team 5 60%
Streetscene 18 83%
Community Team 3 100%
Facilities 2 50%
Resources and Enabling 4 0%
Multiple service areas 1 0%
Confidential 1 100%
Environment 4 100%
TOTAL 56

Department 2016/17 complaints Completed within 5 
working days

Revenues and Benefits 6 33.3%
Development 
Management/Place 

11 27.3%

Economy and Community 1 100%
Facilities 2 100%
Health and Environment 2 100%
Legal Services 2 50%
Streetscene 5 75%
TOTAL 29

2016/17

P
age 282



2015/16

Department 2015/16 complaints Completed within 5 
working days

Access to Services 6 100%
Revenues and Benefits 12 83%
Development 
Management/Place 

12 67%

Democratic Services 6 100%
Facilities 3 33%
Health and Environment 3 67%
Housing Services 3 33%
Human Resources 2 100%
ICT 1 100%
Legal Services 4 25%
Streetscene 10 90%

62

P
age 283



P
age 284



 

        

Scrutiny guidance: things to think about  

The Government is preparing new statutory guidance on overview and scrutiny in local government. This 
will be published in December 2018. The Centre for Public Scrutiny has been commissioned by the Ministry 
for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) to draft parts of the guidance.  

It is important that the guidance reflects the needs of councils (particularly scrutiny practitioners), of local 
people, and of local democracy more generally. Those at local level are likely to have the best sense of the 
kinds of guidance which is likely to help, or hinder, the way that overview and scrutiny operates.  

For this reason, the Centre for Public Scrutiny and the Association of Democratic Services Officers are 
working together to encourage officers and councillors to discuss the guidance’s content, and to feed back 
on what they might need.  

We have prepared this document to assist councils, and other interested people, to have discussions at 
local level that they can feed back to inform the drafting of the guidance.  

What’s the background? 

The last guidance from Government on scrutiny was issued in 2006. The role of scrutiny has changed 
significantly since then – just as local government has changed. In 2017, the Communities and Local 
Government Select Committee conducted an inquiry into overview and scrutiny. The Committee said,  

“The role of scrutiny has evolved since its inception. The 2000 Act empowers committees to review 
decisions made by the executive and to make reports and recommendations for the executive’s 
consideration. In the seventeen years since, the way in which scrutiny committees perform their 
function has understandably changed. One such way has been an increase in scrutiny of external 
bodies, most notably health bodies. Councils have delivered services through increasingly varied 
partnership arrangements - including contracting to private companies, creating arms-length bodies 
or working with other public bodies - and scrutiny has responded by adjusting how it scrutinises the 
issues that matter to local residents.”  

Because of this evolving role, the Committee recommended that Government issue revised guidance to 
councils on how scrutiny should be supported. In doing so, the Committee highlighted the importance that 
“organisational culture” (how people act and behave, and their values) has on the success of scrutiny.  

The Government issued a response in early 2018 in which they committed to producing guidance this year.  

What is to be covered? 

Government’s view is that each council is best placed to decide which arrangements best suit its 
own individual circumstances. With this in mind:  

• How can the guidance help by making it clear to council executives / senior officers the kind 
of support that should be given to scrutiny (in a cultural sense)?  

• In a more general sense how might the guidance help scrutiny to build a positive 
relationship with the executive, emphasising the need for scrutiny’s independence?  

• Should the guidance highlight the need for a greater profile and respect for scrutiny by the 
executive?  

• Should the guidance go into detail on issues around work planning – recommending focus 
and prioritisation? 

• How can the guidance help scrutiny with access to and use of information? 

Page 285



• Local councillors are best placed to understand the needs of local people, but how can the 
guidance help scrutiny councillors to ensure that scrutiny is supported to engage with the 
public in this way?  

• How can the guidance help scrutiny more generally to develop a positive profile for itself at 
local level? 

• Are there sections / elements that you think might be particularly helpful – or unhelpful? 
 
There are three specific issues where Government is keen that the guidance provides some further detail. 
These are: 

• Scrutiny of “external bodies” (this might be bodies operating under contract, commissioned 
partners, alternative delivery vehicles, more traditional partners and so on) 

• Access to information (access to, and use of, information effectively by scrutiny having been a 
challenge for many practitioners) 

• Scrutiny of financial resilience and sustainability of councils (recognising the recent, and 
continuing, pressures on the sector and scrutiny’s role in helping to understand them) 

What will the status of the guidance be? 

The guidance will be statutory guidance, issued under section 9Q(1) of the Local Government Act 2000. 
This means that councils will have to “have regard to” the guidance in the way that they work and the 
decisions they make. The phrase “have regard to” has a particular legal meeting, which is essentially that a 
body subject to such guidance has to have a clear reason for departing from it. Your council’s Monitoring 
Officer is the best person to provide further advice on what this might mean for how you interpret the 
guidance locally.  

The status of the guidance means that it is particularly important that it is supportive of arrangements that 
promote and support strong independent scrutiny however that might be carried out – and that it does not 
risk putting in place barriers, however inadvertent, to this happening. Hence the importance of speaking to 
practitioners.  

How can you make your voice heard? 

Scrutiny practitioners have already – through the Select Committee’s inquiry – had an opportunity to 
comment and discuss a range of issues relating to the function and its future. Government has access to 
the fruits of this work, so we are not suggesting that practitioners take this opportunity to talk again about 
scrutiny in general terms – hence our outlining of the main issues in the section above.  

We are suggesting that you talk over these issues in a range of ways: 

• At a regional scrutiny network meeting. There are a number of regional scrutiny networks, which 
meet periodically. The Centre for Public Scrutiny can provide information about forthcoming 
meetings in your area.  

• At an ad-hoc meeting which might draw together practitioners from an area where there is not 
currently a scrutiny network. So you might want to get together with colleagues from neighbouring 
councils to talk things through.  

• Through the membership networks within the Association of Democratic Services Officers.  

• At a formal scrutiny committee meeting, or a workshop that you organise in your own council.  

Timescales for this work are quite challenging. Government is seeking to draft the guidance in early 
October. For this reason, the conversations above will need to happen over the course of September.  

You can send your thoughts directly to Ed Hammond (Director of Research, CfPS) at 
ed.hammond@cfps.org.uk  and Graham Knapper (LG Stewardship, MHCLG) at 
graham.knapper@communities.gsi.gov.uk  

Page 286

mailto:ed.hammond@cfps.org.uk
mailto:graham.knapper@communities.gsi.gov.uk


Ryedale DC response to the Overview and Scrutiny in local government inquiry by the 
Housing, Communities and Local Government Committee

Submitted 8 March 2017

Questions raised by the Committee in italics

 Whether scrutiny committees in local authorities in England are effective in holding decision-
makers to account

As a fourth option district council, there are proportionately few decisions which can be 
scrutinised by the single Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The Council has a Planning and 
Licensing Committee of which only Planning Policy decisions can be scrutinised by the O and S 
Committee, and a Policy and Resources Committee of which only the part A items can 
scrutinised, as the part B items are referred to Council. The division of decisions is as follows for 
the municipal year to date:

Policy and Resources Part A items 2016/17: 13

Planning Committee Policy items 2016/17: 2

Total: 15

 The extent to which scrutiny committees operate with political impartiality and independence 
from executives

As a fourth option authority, 10 members sit on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Some 
members clearly see the committee as being the rightful territory of the official opposition group, 
but the majority of both the controlling group and the opposition groups manage an effective 
level of political impartiality. Members are able to demonstrate the most effective impartiality 
when undertaking scrutiny work on matters relating to wider issues involving partners and 
stakeholders, this is less so in review work which looks at the internal workings of the Council. 
Impartiality is also effective when the member of the O and S committee meet as the Corporate 
Governance and Standards committee and sub committee.

 Whether scrutiny officers are independent of and separate from those being scrutinised

As a fourth option district council we don't have any scrutiny officers, and so officers lead 
reviews with members and these may well be involving their own service areas.

 How chairs and members are selected

Chairs and members are appointed every year at Annual Council in May.

 Whether powers to summon witnesses are adequate

These powers have always been adequate for Ryedale District Council

 The potential for local authority scrutiny to act as a voice for local service users

Page 287



The potential is clear for RDC as was evident in the review of the Post Office network and the 
ability to advocate for local communities during the network change programme. This was 
achieved through the level of Community Engagement undertaken as part of the review. The 
level of engagement is determined by the topics selected.

 How topics for scrutiny are selected

Members are  asked to agree a shortlist of possible topics for discussion, officers then prepare 
drafts scoping documents for each option (usually a shortlist of three topics) and when the 
preferred option is agreed by the subsequent meeting of the committee, a detailed terms of 
reference is prepared following the direction of the committee. The review is then undertaken. 

 The support given to the scrutiny function by political leaders and senior officers, including the 
resources allocated (for example whether there is a designated officer team)

There is no dedicated officer team and the work of the Overview and Scrutiny committee is not 
the substantive role for any officer but has an identified lead officer who is a member of the 
senior leadership team and support from a member of the Programme and Performance Team.

 What use is made of specialist external advisers

We involve stakeholders in scrutiny reviews, as relevant to each topic. No use is currently made 
of external advisors.

 The effectiveness and importance of local authority scrutiny of external organisations

At RDC the focus of scrutiny reviews tends to be more towards the impact of services and policy 
decisions on local communities, than directly on the scrutiny of external partners. Partners do 
get involved in the investigation and challenge relating to a particular topic, for example as in the 
recent review of the role of Council in managing the risk of flooding. 

Link to the Ryedale DC Scrutiny Review on 'The Role of the Council in Flood Management'

 The role of scrutiny in devolution deals and the scrutiny models used in combined authorities

Ryedale is not currently covered by arrangements for either a combined authority or city region. 
RDC have been involved on the negotiations so far to develop possible governance 
arrangements for a combined authority for York, North Yorkshire the East Riding of Yorkshire 
and Hull. Effective scrutiny arrangements have been identified as vital to the success of future 
arrangements, the principle being promoted was as follows:

The ten constituent councils of the Combined Authority will establish a joint Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to exercise scrutiny functions over the Combined Authority. Each 
constituent council will appoint such elected members to the joint Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee as are required to achieve political balance across the area of the Combined 
Authority. Overview and Scrutiny membership must not include a Combined Authority member 
or a member of the Executive of a constituent council. 

7.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will have the power to- 

Page 288

http://democracy.ryedale.gov.uk/documents/s30749/5a%20Part%20B%20-%20HOE%20-%20Flooding%20Scrutiny%20Review%20FINAL%20Report%20Nov16.pdf


(a) Invite Combined Authority members and officers to attend meetings and answer questions 

(b) Invite others to attend the meetings 

(c) Review or scrutinise decisions or other actions taken by the Combined Authority 

(d) Make reports or recommendations to the Combined Authority 

(e) Require that a decision that has not been implemented be reconsidered by the members of 
the Combined Authority

 Examples where scrutiny has worked well and not so well 

Scrutiny in a fourth option district council is very challenging. The workload for the 10 members 
who sit on the single O and S committee also includes fulfilling the corporate governance and 
standards committee function, the audit committee function and the crime and disorder o and s 
function. In order to try to manage the workload for members the audit committee meets 
alternately with the scrutiny committee. This separation of the workload has improved the 
performance of the committee as the focus of the audit committee is so different and now 
distinct from the scrutiny role. The attendance at the committee has improved since the last 
elections in 2015.

Scrutiny reviews into topics which focus on the impact and influence of the council on the 
wellbeing of communities such as fuel poverty and  flooding tend to deliver the most successful 
reviews and effective recommendations however the recent review of the councils policy for 
management of assets has supported the delivery of the transformation programme.

Page 289



This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY 4 OCTOBER 2018
 

REPORT TO: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (SCRUTINY)

DATE: 4 OCTOBER 2018

REPORT OF THE: DELIVERY AND FRONTLINE SERVICES LEAD
BECKIE BENNETT

TITLE OF REPORT: SCRUTINY REVIEWS - PROGRESS REPORT  

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To provide an update on progress with implementing the recommendations agreed 
resulting from previous scrutiny reviews.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 It is recommended that Members: 

(i) note the progress report for previous scrutiny review recommendations 

3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To keep the Members of the Scrutiny Committee appraised of the progress with 
implementing recommendations made following previous reviews (Summary table 
attached at Annex A).

4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1 No significant risks have been identified 

5.0 POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1 Scrutiny reviews link to all the Councils Corporate Plan Priorities: Sustainable Growth, 
Customer and Communities and One Ryedale.

6.0 REPORT DETAILS

6.1 The table attached at Annex A details the recommendations agreed following previous 
scrutiny reviews and provides an update on progress.

7.0 IMPLICATIONS

7.1 The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial

None

Page 291



SCRUTINY 4 OCTOBER 2018
 

b) Legal
None

c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime & 
Disorder)
None

 
Beckie Bennett
Delivery and Frontline Services Lead

Author : Beckie Bennett, Delivery and Frontline Services Lead
Telephone No: 01653 600666  ext: 483 

E-Mail Address: beckie.bennett@ryedale.gov.uk 

Background Papers:

Links to final reports have been included in the table attached at Annex A

Page 292

mailto:beckie.bennett@ryedale.gov.uk


SCRUTINY REVIEWS - Progress Update as at 25 September 2018                                                                                                      Annex A

Scrutiny Review of Provision of Swimming Lessons in Ryedale District Councils Swimming Pools link to final report

Terms of Reference (approved 2 Nov 17)

Aim of the Review:
To consider the current 10 year contract between RDC and 
Everyone Active and understand

- the provision of swimming lessons 
- the potential consequences for swimming clubs and

Why has this review been selected?
The issue of swimming lesson provision was raised at Scrutiny 
Committee on 5 October 2017 by Everyone Active as part of their 
annual report to the committee.

Ryedale Swimming Club attended this committee and raised 
concerns about the planned changes Everyone Active were going to 
make to the provision of swimming lessons.

Who will carry out the review?
The review will be carried out by a task group including:

 A minimum of 2 members of the O and S committee (but 
open to all members of O and S) 

 Support will be provided by the Delivery and Frontline 
Services Lead, the Senior Commissioning Officer and the 
Projects, Programmes and Performance Officer

 With input from other officers as required, including the 
Monitoring Officer

The Scrutiny Review Final Report and Recommendations will be 
considered at the Policy and Resources Committee on 12 June 2018 
and at Full Council on 28 June 2018.

The recommendations, agreed at the committee meeting on 10 May 
are:

1. Ryedale Swimming Club (RSC) and Derwent Valley Swimming 
Club (DVSC) are allowed to continue their Learn To Swim (LTS) 
lessons for the people of Ryedale during the hours agreed in the 
Leisure Specification.

2. Everyone Active (EA) and the swimming clubs work together to 
ensure a smooth transition pathway from Everyone Active lessons to 
Club sessions.

3. Council considers an incremental increase in the specified hire 
charge per hour to the swimming clubs.

4. Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to take greater role in 
scrutinising the Performance Management of the Contract, in line with 
the terms of reference for the Committee

Recommendations 1-3 will be made as a Part B item to the next 
meeting of Policy and Resources Committee and then to Full Council 
as these require a decision to change existing policy.

Recommendation 4 to be agreed by the O and S Committee within 
the terms of reference for the Committee.

P
age 293

https://democracy.ryedale.gov.uk/documents/s37529/Swimming%20Lessons%20Scrutiny%20Review%20Report%20Final.pdf


SCRUTINY REVIEWS - Progress Update as at 25 September 2018                                                                                                      Annex A

How the review will be carried out?
The task group will consider the current contractual arrangement 
between the Council and Everyone Active and in particular the terms 
relating to pool activities and the provision of swimming lessons.

The review will include consultation with Everyone Active and two 
swimming clubs, Derwent Valley and Ryedale Swimming Clubs.

What are the expected outputs?
It is expected that the task group will produce a report, summarising 
the evidence they have gathered to enable a proposed way forward 
for the provision of swimming lessons.

Timescale
Progress reports will be submitted to the committee if required during 
the review.

Resolved at Council on 28 June 2018

That Council agree the final report attached as Appendix 1, which 
included the following recommendations:

1. Ryedale Swimming Club (RSC) and Derwent Valley Swimming 
Club (DVSC) are allowed to continue their Learn To Swim (LTS) 
lessons for the people of Ryedale during the hours agreed in 
the Leisure Specification.

2. Everyone Active (EA) and the swimming clubs work together to 
ensure a smooth transition pathway from Everyone Active 
lessons to Club sessions.

3. Council considers an incremental increase in the specified hire 
charge per hour to the swimming clubs.

4. In the event of any negotiations to do with E.A. no commitment 
or decisions will be taken without reference to Overview and 
Scrutiny and its relevant knowledge.

Voting Record
27 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions

P
age 294



SCRUTINY REVIEWS - Progress Update as at 25 September 2018                                                                                                      Annex A

Scrutiny Review of Staff Survey Results

Work in progress Professor John Raine and Mrs Eileen Dunstan, both with 
considerable research experience at the Institute of Local 
Government Studies, University of Birmingham, have been 
commissioned to assist with evidence-gathering as part of this 
Scrutiny Review. All staff were invited to share their experience 
working for the Council in confidence by 6 April 2018.

At the last meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
Thursday, May 10, the committee agreed that Members:

i. Receive the report re: Staff Survey – treat as exempt, including 
officers

ii. Place on the agenda for the next Overview and Scrutiny meeting

iii. That meeting to consider further actions to be taken

iv. That meeting to consider a response to the Full Council motion on 
6 July 2017, in particular “was Council misled”.

The Chair will give a verbal report at the meeting.

Scrutiny Review of Meeting Start Times and Management of Meetings - link to final report 

Recommendations - As agreed by Overview & Scrutiny 

(i) That the Constitution be amended to change the order of business 
for Full Council to put items for decision first;

On 21 September 2017 Policy and Resources Committee referred 
these recommendations to the Constitution Working Party.

P
age 295

https://democracy.ryedale.gov.uk/documents/s34737/7a%20Part%20B%20-%20Final%20Report%20-%20Scrutiny%20Review%20of%20Meeting%20Start%20Times%20Management%20of%20Meetings%20Main%20Repo.pdf


SCRUTINY REVIEWS - Progress Update as at 25 September 2018                                                                                                      Annex A

(ii) That the Constitution be amended to bring forward the guillotine, 
so that it takes effect after 3 hours;

(iii) That the Constitution be amended to require corrections to the 
minutes to be submitted in writing in advance of the meeting;

(iv) That working practices be amended so that questions to officers 
have to be dealt with ahead of, rather than during, meetings of Full 
Council;

(v) That the Constitution be amended to require the circulation of the 
Leader's Statement with the agenda;

(vi) That working practices be amended to stop reading out the 
Leader's Statement at meetings of Full Council.

Scrutiny Review of the Councils Role in Flood Management considered by Council on 8 December 2016 - link to final report

Recommendations as agreed by Council

1. That RDC commits £12,000 funding (up to a maximum of 20%) to 
resource a project manager to progress delivery of the Malton, 
Norton and Old Malton Flood Study project and drive partnership 
working, and seeks match funding from the partners of the Malton 
and Norton Project Group

NYCC have commissioned consultants to make progress with the MN 
and OM flood study which may identify the need for additional PM 
support.

2. RDC commits £2.5k (20%) funding towards a CCTV monitoring 
survey to understand the drainage system in Old Malton.

A CCTV survey in Old Malton commissioned by NYCC has now been 
completed and details will be made available in due course. RDC has 
contributed £2,000 towards this CCTV survey.

3. That Natural Flood Management (NFM) considerations should be 
integral to all local flood management solutions and that RDC 
continues to facilitate links across the various partners and interested 
stakeholders endorsing a whole catchment approach

The Yorkshire Derwent Partnership Board are currently developing a 
whole catchment area set of plans with specific delivery task groups in 
place to achieve outcomes eg Ryevitalise and a RDC rep attends, with 
a key objective of these projects being to develop natural flood 
management solutions.

P
age 296

https://democracy.ryedale.gov.uk/documents/s30749/5a%20Part%20B%20-%20HOE%20-%20Flooding%20Scrutiny%20Review%20FINAL%20Report%20Nov16.pdf


SCRUTINY REVIEWS - Progress Update as at 25 September 2018                                                                                                      Annex A

The Ryevitalise Landscape Partnership are currently in the 
development phase of a range of exciting projects supported by the 
Heritage Lottery Fund, North York Moors National Park and partners 
and are planning consultation over the coming months - follow this link 
to find out more and complete a short questionnaire

4. That RDC allocates a sum of £50,000 to a grant fund to support 
local flood solutions which will be allocated through Resources 
Working Party (similar to the arrangements for the allocation of 
Community Grants) where the criteria for allocation will also be 
agreed. Town and Parish Councils would be eligible to apply 
(including Malton and Brawby), as should any fully constituted 
community group, with any grant conditional on the preparation of a 
Community Resilience Plan to ensure sustainability and linkage to 
NYCC and other flood risk management partner organisations. Any 
contribution RDC makes towards a local solution involving equipment 
is on the basis that:

a) The community group or parish council engage with NYCC to set 
up a community resilience group (CRG) with a Community 
Resilience Plan (CRP)

b) The CRG undertake training and take responsibility for deploying 
and insuring the pump with sign off from NYCC

c) That the Resources Working Party make recommendations to the 
Policy & Resources Committee on the grant applications for this 
fund, and that the criteria be similar to that used for the Community 
Grant applications ie;
i. Grant must not exceed £5000.00 or 25% of the total cost - 
whichever is the lowest
ii. Grants up to £1000 may be 100% of the total cost.
iii. In certain circumstances the above criteria may be waived if it is 
felt that an application will be of exceptional benefit to a community.

All Parish and Town Councils have been informed of the availability of 
grant funding to support local flood solutions.

Work is continuing, with several meetings already planned, to support 
the development of projects which may be eligible and to ensure links 
to NYCC and community resilience plans.

The opportunity to apply for a flood grant is now open and 
communities have been invited to submit their applications for grant 
funding to enable the development of solutions with support from the 
relevant authorities.

Two flood grant applications were approved at Policy and Resources 
on 21 September -one for Malton and one for Brawby.

A third flood grant application has been made by Norton Town Council 
was approved by Policy and Resources on 23 November 2017.  

A total of £32,700 has been awarded from the £50,000 grant fund to 
date.

. 

P
age 297

https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/Ryevitalise


SCRUTINY REVIEWS - Progress Update as at 25 September 2018                                                                                                      Annex A

5. That the above spending be funded from the New Homes Bonus 
Reserve

6. That Council may consider that funding be allocated from the New 
Homes Bonus towards the funding gap of £1.8m of the approved GiA 
scheme for the alleviation of flooding in Malton, Norton and Old 
Malton. That any contribution should be to a maximum of 20% of the 
funding gap.

The further work commissioned by NYCC to progress the M, N and 
OM Study will provide more detailed costings to inform future 
stakeholder engagement to bridge the funding gap.  A bid to the LEP 
Growth Fund is now being progressed by NYCC to provide a business 
case for this project.

Scrutiny Review of Assets - link to final report considered by Council 08.09.2016

Recommendations - As agreed by Council

The Council policy on the management of property assets is as 
follows:

Vision: 

To optimise the use of the Councils property assets in supporting the 
delivery of the Councils priorities and delivering best value and value 
for money for the residents of Ryedale

Policy:

To achieve best value from each property asset by: 

 Occupying an asset for the efficient delivery of Council services 
or

 Renting to another to generate revenue income for the Council 
or

 Disposing of any asset which achieves neither of the above and 
which could generate a receipt for the Council

Principles:

A new asset management strategy is being developed by officers to 
enable the delivery of this policy.

The Chief Executive reassured Members that officers would not 
dispose of any major assets without coming back to Council if the 
policy was adopted. 

Member Briefings on 11 January and 1 June 2017 linking the budget 
and assets.

At the :Policy and Resources Committee on 21 September 2017 it was 
resolved:

That a clear direction be provided to officers to enable the work to be 
undertaken for decisions to be made by Council in February 2018 for 
the future of the Council's Asset portfolio, as follows: 

a) That officers work with partners to participate in the OPE 
programme bid for North Yorkshire, to be submitted in 
November 2017

b) Ryedale House is no longer fit for purpose and the 
maintenance costs are prohibitively expensive. Officers are to 

P
age 298

https://democracy.ryedale.gov.uk/documents/s29460/Assets%20Scrutiny%20Review%20Report%20Final.pdf


SCRUTINY REVIEWS - Progress Update as at 25 September 2018                                                                                                      Annex A

 To optimise the use of operational assets
 That fewer operational buildings is lowest cost and lowest risk to 

service delivery
 To manage the councils estate to achieve the best social, 

economic and environmental benefit for the communities of 
Ryedale

 To dispose of underutilised assets
 To acquire assets that would support the finances of the Council 

and delivery of the Council priorities
 That the proceeds of the sale of any of the assets be used to 

support the delivery of the Council's priorities.
 For disposal of any Council owned asset used for car parking, 

decisions should be made in the context of a car parking policy.

prepare a business case to support a move to new premises 
which aims to deliver the following:

 The preferred option of office accommodation on the site of 
the current Community House.

 to develop proposals for a hub for public sector and 
voluntary and community sector partners, linked to the OPE 
programme.

 When Ryedale House is no longer available, future meetings 
of Council to take place in the Milton Rooms and similar 
venues in Ryedale.

The brief for the public sector hub to include the following:

 Members to have access to a dedicated small office to 
accommodate 6 people, potential to provide a Leader’s 
office if required and space for committee meetings for 10 
members, officers and public seating. 

c) In the event the single public sector hub does not come to 
fruition, the option of locating to Harrison House is to also be 
considered.

d) Housing to be built on the Ryedale House site, a proportion of 
which to be affordable, ensuring best value. The possibility of a 
joint development including neighbouring sites to be explored.

e) The upper deck of Wentworth Street Car Park  to be 
considered for housing as part of the OPE programme.

f) The Council to consider relocating Streetscene services to the 
proposed Waste Transfer Station at Kirby Misperton. 

g) A review to take place of all Council assets to deliver the 
Council's Asset Management Policy.

P
age 299



SCRUTINY REVIEWS - Progress Update as at 25 September 2018                                                                                                      Annex A

On 15 March 2018 a further report is being considered by the Policy 
and Resources Committee.

Scrutiny Review of Fuel Poverty in Ryedale -  Link to final report 

Scrutiny Review of Members Involvement in Outside Bodies and 
as Member Champions - Link to final report

Please find below the decision of Council in March 2014 on the 
scrutiny of outside bodies, with comments in red:

Resolved

(i) That the following outside bodies be removed from the list:  
Supporting People NY Joint Committee (agreed at Annual 
Council on 16 May 2013), Endowment Governors Charity called 
Malton School, LG Yorkshire & Humber Elected Members 
Cohesion Group (agreed at Annual Council on 16 May 2013), 
Rural Action Yorkshire (formerly YRCC);  Actioned

(ii)   That substitute representatives be appointed for outside bodies, 
where their governance arrangements permit, and that it be the 
nominated representatives responsibility to notify the substitute 
if they are unable to attend a meeting of the outside body;  
Actioned

(iii)  That a précis from Member representatives on outside bodies 
be published on the website following each meeting, subject to 
the approval of the outside bodies, to ensure feedback of key 
decisions and discussions relevant to the Council is available, 
and including their attendance record; Template provided and 
reminders to Members, but no information ever received

(iv)  That appointments to outside bodies be for four year terms, from 
2015 onwards to coincide with the District elections, subject to 

P
age 300

https://democracy.ryedale.gov.uk/documents/s24859/Fuel%20Poverty%20Scrutiny%20Review%20Final%20Report%20October%2015.pdf
https://democracy.ryedale.gov.uk/documents/s15869/5a%20Part%20B%20-%20CS%20-%20Final%20Report%20-%20Scrutiny%20Review%20of%20the%20Role%20of%20Members%20on%20Outside%20Bodies%20and%20as%20Memb.pdf


SCRUTINY REVIEWS - Progress Update as at 25 September 2018                                                                                                      Annex A

an annual review by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
address any issues with attendance or publication of précis;  4 
year appointments actioned – no O&S review as no precis 
provided

(v)  That nominations of representatives to outside bodies should be 
made by Council based on their skills and expertise, in addition 
to attendance records, and that Members be asked to provide 
an oral statement of this upon nomination.  Requirement to 
make oral statement repealed in May 2015

(vi)  That the Independent Remuneration Panel be requested to 
review allowances payable to representatives on outside 
bodies, where a payment is currently made; Actioned

(vii)  (a)  That subject to the exceptions in sub paragraph (b) below , 
all Members note that any representative on an outside body 
cannot be involved in any financial or regulatory decision taken 
by the Council that relates to that body. They can make 
representations, either through the public speaking opportunity 
for a relevant application at Planning Committee, or for other 
committees and Full Council by addressing the meeting at the 
chairman’s discretion;

       (b)  The exceptions where Members may participate and vote 
are the setting of council tax or a precept under the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 or where a dispensation has 
been granted. 

Actioned

P
age 301



SCRUTINY REVIEWS - Progress Update as at 25 September 2018                                                                                                      Annex A

Members may wish to discuss the areas which have not been 
actioned which are outside the remit of officers.

Scrutiny Review of the Role the Council Should play in Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector Link to final report

Scrutiny Review of Post Offices 2010-11 Link to final report

P
age 302

https://democracy.ryedale.gov.uk/documents/s12025/1-Part%20A%20-%20Chairman%20of%20O%20and%20S%20-%20Support%20for%20VCS%20Scrutiny%20Review%202012%20Final%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.ryedale.gov.uk/documents/s8292/8%20HT%20-%20Annex%20A%20-%20Post%20Offices%20Scrutiny%20Review%202011.pdf

	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2018
	Minutes

	7 Report by Everyone Active on the 2017/18 delivery of the leisure contract for Ryedale District Council
	D&FS Everyone Active Appendix A Everyone Active Annual Report
	D&FS Everyone Active Appendix B Ryedale District Active Community Plan
	Section 1: Introduction
	Section 2: The Bigger Picture
	Section 3: Local Influencers & Strategy
	Section 3 – Active Community Plan - Framework for Actions
	Key Outcome Indicators
	Management Infrastructure, and Resourcing
	Children, young people, and adult programmes
	Club & Workforce Development
	Working in Partnership to raise the profile of Physical Activity
	Equality & Access Provision
	Section 6 – Measurement and Review
	Section 7 – Appendices


	8 Draft Terms of Reference - Scrutiny Review of Governance Arrangements for services with North Yorkshire County Council
	3a. Appendix A Council decision summary
	3b. DFSL Appendix B Draft TOR Scrutiny Review of Governance Arrangements for Services with NYCC

	9 Delivering the Council Plan
	2. 201718 Annual PI Report Delivering the Council Plan

	10 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review Letter 2018
	LGO Annual Review Letter - Ryedale District Council - Decided

	11 Customer Complaints Q1 2018-19
	12 Comments on guidance document from the Centre for Public Scrutiny
	march2017 rdc response to CLG scrutiny inquiry

	13 Scrutiny Reviews Progress Report
	4a DFSL - Scrutiny Reviews Progress Annex A


